
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 16, 2014 • Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2014 
 

4:00 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 
Thursday, January 16, 2014. 
 

2. Discuss upcoming City Board appointments and vacancies. 
 

3. Receive presentation from Roundstone Development on a proposed tax credit housing project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 16, 2014 • Page 2 of 5 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
3. Recognize Scott & White Health Plan and HEB for their continued sponsorship and support in 

2013 for various city events. 
  

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
IV. REPORTS 
 
4. Receive the Temple Economic Development Committee Annual Report. 
 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 

resolutions for each of the following: 
 

Minutes 
  

(A)  December 19, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 16, 2014 • Page 3 of 5 
 

Contracts, Leases, & Bids  
 
(B) 2014-7201-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an asbestos abatement 

contract with ARC Abatement of Waco for the asbestos abatement of two commercial 
structures funded through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) in the 
amount of $44,545. 

 
(C) 2014-7202-R:  Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency contract with Bell 

Contractors of Belton for the emergency replacement of a 6” sewer line using the pipe 
bursting method in the area of 1000 Block of North 11th Street and King Avenue in the 
amount of $96,554. 

 
(D) 2014-7203-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 

R.T Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., of Belton, for construction services required 
for the reconstruction and widening of South Pea Ridge Road from Tarver Road to 
Hogan Road in the amount of $481,047.25. 

 
(E) 2014-7204-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a contract 

with Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP (KPA) of Temple, to provide professional 
services during construction of Phase 2 of the Panda TBP Reclaimed Water Line in 
southeast Temple in an amount not to exceed $221,400. 

 
(F) 2014-7205-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 

Bruce Flanigan Construction, Inc. (Flanigan) of Belton, for activities required to 
construct Phase 2 of the Panda TBP Reclaimed Effluent Line in an amount not to 
exceed $2,111,111.20. 

 
(G) 2014-7206-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the acceptance of assignment 

of eight (8) permanent utility easements, one (1) lease, and two (2) temporary work 
space easements from Panda Temple Power II, LLC and authorizing reimbursement to 
Panda Temple Power II, LLC for the cost of preliminary engineering, right-of-way 
services, surveying work, and project management in a total amount not to exceed 
$900,000. 

 
(H) 2014-7207-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing submission of an application 

for funding through the US Environmental Protection Agency, Brownfield Assessment 
Grants program, for the final assessment needs and development of a clean-up plan for 
the Bend of the River property in the amount of $200,000. 

 
Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 
(I) 2013-4628: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending the 

calculation method for the certification pay for the certification of Paramedic/EMT in the 
Fire Department. 

 
(J) 2013-4630: SECOND READING - Z-FY-14-04: Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing a zoning change from TMED T4 District (T4) to Planned Development (T4) 
District on Lot 3, Block 7, Eugenia Terrace, addressed as 1605 South 5th Street. 

 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 16, 2014 • Page 4 of 5 
 

(K) 2013-4629: SECOND READING – A-FY-12-08:  Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the abandonment and conveyance of two existing alleys, each with a width 
of 20 feet and depth of 300 feet, located between the north right-of-way line of East 
Adams Avenue and the south right-of-way line of East Calhoun Avenue and reserving a 
public drainage and utility easement in the entire abandoned rights-of-way. 

 
Misc.  
 
(L) 2014-7207-R: A-FY-14-2: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the release of an 

existing 15' public utility easement located between Lots 7 and 8, Block 1, Summerhill 
PUD subdivision, located at 5509 and 5515 Summerhill Lane to allow for the 
construction of a home. 

 
(M) 2014-7208-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager or the 

Director of Finance to act on behalf of the City to review pricing offers submitted for the 
supply of electricity, and if in the best interest of the City, enter into a contract with the 
lowest responsible bidder for a period of 12 to 36 months beginning for electrical meter 
reads after May 2016. 

 
 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORDINANCES –SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
6. 2013-4627: SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-08:  Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Single-Family Three 
District (SF-3) on 54.097+/- acres and from Agricultural District (AG) to Office Two District (O-
2) on 2.315 ± acres, being part of the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Bell County, 
Texas, located along the north side of Prairie View Road, east of North Pea Ridge Road. 
 

ORDINANCES –FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
7. 2014-4631: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING -Z-FY-13-36:   Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance 2010-4413, Temple Unified Development 
Code, Article 3 to amend notification requirements; Article 4 to amend dimensional standards; 
Article 5 to add industrial uses; Article 6 to amend TMED landscaping requirements; Article 6 
to amend I-35 Overlay window requirements; Article 6 to amend the 1st and 3rd Street Overlay 
District; and Article 7 to amend off street parking requirements.   

 
8. 2014-4632: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-06: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Two Family District (2F) to PD (O1) on a portion 
of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 3, Block E, Bentley Bellview Addition, addressed as 2003 West 
Avenue H.  

 
9. 2014-4633: FIRST READING –PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-07:  Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Two-Family District (2-
F) on 17.95 +/- acres, being part of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, located on the west side of Old Waco Road and the east side of South Pea Ridge 
Road, east of Westwood Estates. 

 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 16, 2014 • Page 5 of 5 
 

10. 2014-4634: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-09 – Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Neighborhood 
Services (NS) on 0.982 +/- acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract 5, City of 
Temple, Bell County, Texas located at 6040 West Adams Avenue. 

 
11. 2014-4635: FIRST READING –PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-11:  Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Single- Family Two 
District (SF-2) on 115.33 +/- acres and from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District 
(GR) on 12.725 +/- acres, both being a portion of 128.05 acres of land, being part of the 
Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract 17, Bell County, Texas, located on the east side of SH 
317, north of the FM 2483 intersection, and extending to the west side of North Pea Ridge 
Road. 

 
12. 2014-4636: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-13  Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for a biodiesel manufacturing plant on Lot 1, 
Block 1, Temple Industrial Park Section Eight on 7.00 +/- acres, located at 3289 & 3111 
Eberhardt Road. 

 
13. 2014-4637: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-16: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Heavy Industrial (HI) District to PD (HI) District in 
the I-35 Corridor Overlay on 2.00 +/- being a tract of land out of and a part of the George 
Givens Survey, Abstract No. 345, addressed as 4206 South General Bruce Drive. 

 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
14. 2014-7209-R: O-FY-14-04:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Appeal of Standards 

in Sec. 6.7 of the Unified Development Code related to the I-35 Corridor Overlay Zoning 
District for landscaping, window, architectural and lighting to build a new 5,000 sf free-standing 
building that is consistent with the rest of the Bird Creek Crossing Shopping Center. 

 
15. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing support for the submittal of a tax credit project for 

family living projects by the following:  
 

(1) 2014-7210-R: Blazer Development; and  
(2) 2014-7211-R: Roundstone Development 

 
16. 2014-7212-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an approximately 

4.17 acre tract of land near the City of Temple’s landfill.   
    

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session 
whenever permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 

 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
5:15 PM, on January 10, 2014. 
 
______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/16/14 
Item #5(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) December 19, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
December 19, 2013 Special Called and Regular Meeting - To Be Provided 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/16/14 
Item #5(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Director of Administrative Services 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an asbestos abatement contract 
with ARC Abatement of Waco for the asbestos abatement of two commercial structures funded 
through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) in the amount of $44,545. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Included in the City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Action Plan 
is funding for asbestos abatement and demolition with the focus of eliminating spot blight.  

On January 7, 2014, competitive sealed bids were opened for the asbestos abatement of the 
following two commercial structures: 

 615 East Avenue D (First Church of God in Christ)
 416 West Avenue F (Tutor Apartments)

As shown on the attached bid tabulation, the low bidder for this project is ARC Abatement of Waco. 
Staff recommends award of these abatements to the lowest bidder. While, the City has not previously 
done business with ARC Abatement, reference checks were conducted and staff finds them to be a 
responsible vendor. 

As part of this project, the City will also enter into an agreement not to exceed $20,050 with Austin 
Environmental, Inc. of Bryan to provide asbestos air monitoring, and asbestos project management 
services for these abatements in compliance with the Texas Dept. of State Health Services Texas 
Asbestos Health Protection Rules (TAC 295.34), and EPA National Emissions Standards for Hazardous 
Air Pollutants (40 CFR Part 61, subpart M) asbestos requirements.   

Once abated, these structures are scheduled for demolition. The demolition portion of the project will 
be bid separately in the upcoming weeks.  

FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding from the Community Development Block Grant in the amount of 
$169,428.37 is available in account # 260-6100-571-2698. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation  
Resolution 



Tabulation of Bids Received
on January 7, 2014 at 11:00 a.m.

Asbestos Abatement of Two Commercial Properties  (CDBG)
Bid# 61-01-14

Bidders
AMX Environmental, LTD AF Environmental Solutions Five Star Environmental, Inc. EDRS, Inc.

Dallas, TX FT Worth, TX Mesquite, TX Carrollton, TX

Description

Base Bid $99,899.00 $46,011.00 $56,181.78 $51,785.50

Unit Price for 615 E. Ave D

Drywall Texture/Joint Compound $2.50/$2.00 $0.99 $1.15 $2.00

Floor Tile Mastic $2.50/$2.00 $0.99 $1.15 $1.75

Sheet Flooring $2.50/$2.00 $0.99 $1.15 $1.75

Additional Mobilization $1,500.00 $200.00 $750.00 $1,000.00

Unit Price for 416 W. Avenue F

Drywall Texture/Joint Compound $2.50/$2.00 $0.99 $1.15 $2.00

Floor Tile Mastic $2.50/$2.00 $0.99 $1.15 $1.75

Texture on Plaster $3.50/$3.00 $0.99 $2.75 $3.00

Floor Tile & Mastic $2.50/$2.00 $0.99 $1.15 $1.75

Additional Mobilization $1,500.00 $200.00 $750.00 $1,000.00

Bidders
Clean Air Remediation 

Environmental Svc
AAR, Inc. ARC Abatement 

Mesquite, TX Liberty Hill, TX Waco, TX

Description

Base Bid $59,397.00 $54,700.00 $44,545.00

Unit Price for 615 E. Ave D

Drywall Texture/Joint Compound $1.90 $2.00 $1.75

Floor Tile Mastic $1.00 $2.50 $1.75

Sheet Flooring $1.00 $3.00 $1.75

Additional Mobilization $500.00 $650.00 $550.00

Unit Price for 416 W. Avenue F

Drywall Texture/Joint Compound $1.90 $2.50 $1.75
Floor Tile Mastic $1.00 $2.00 $1.75
Texture on Plaster $1.00 $5.00 $2.50
Floor Tile & Mastic $1.00 $2.25 $1.75
Additional Mobilization $500.00 $650.00 $550.00

Recommended for Council Award



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN ASBESTOS ABATEMENT CONTRACT WITH 
ARC ABATEMENT OF WACO, TEXAS FOR THE ASBESTOS 
ABATEMENT OF TWO COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES FUNDED 
THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $44,545; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, included in the City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Action 

Plan, is funding for asbestos abatement and demolition for the focus of eliminating spot blight; 
 
Whereas, on January 7, 2014, competitive sealed bids were opened for asbestos 

abatement of two commercial structures located at: 
 

 615 East Avenue D (First Church of God in Christ) 
 416 West Avenue F (Tutor Apartments) 

 
Whereas, staff recommends awarding the abatements to ARC Abatement of Waco, Texas 

– the City has not previously done business with ARC Abatement however, references were 
checked and staff finds them to be a responsible vendor;  

 
Whereas, as part of this project, the City will also enter into an agreement with Austin 

Environmental, Inc., of Bryan, Texas in an amount of $20,500, to provide asbestos air 
monitoring and asbestos project management services for these abatements in compliance with 
the Texas Department of State Health Services Texas Asbestos Health Protection Rules (TAC 
295.34), and EPA National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (40 CFR Part 61, 
subpart M) asbestos requirements; 

 
Whereas, once abated, these structures will be scheduled for demolition;  
 
Whereas, funding from the Community Development Block Grant is available in 

Account No. 260-6100-571-2698; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
asbestos abatement contract with ARC Abatement of Waco, Texas, after approval as to form by 
the City Attorney, which will be funded through the Community Development Block Grant, in 
the amount of 44,545, for the asbestos abatement of two commercial structures located at: 

 
 615 East Avenue D (First Church of God in Christ) 
 416 West Avenue F (Tutor Apartments) 

 
 



2 
 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
      THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

 _____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

01/16/14 
Item #5(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Thomas Brown, Utility Services Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency contract with Bell 
Contractors of Belton for the emergency replacement of a 6” sewer line using the pipe bursting method 
in the area of 1000 Block of North 11th Street and King Avenue in the amount of $96,554. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Over the past several weeks the Public Works Utility Services Division has had 
numerous wastewater issues in the North 11th Street and King Avenue area. Problems escalated in 
early January and an in-depth investigation subsequently revealed that the existing clay tile line in this 
area has deteriorated past the point of rehabilitation. Given the severe condition of the broken pipe, 
collapsed main and loss of collection system all together in this location, staff has determined this 
issue to be a significant health, safety and environmental hazard. Accordingly, per Local Government 
Code 252.022, this project is exempt from the competitive bid process.   

Due to the urgent nature of the project, the Public Works Utility Services Division obtained a proposal 
from Bell Contractors to complete the work immediately, as Bell Contractors has the necessary 
material and equipment on hand to respond quickly. Staff authorized this work as an emergency and 
a Notice to Proceed was issued on Monday, January 6, 2014. The project is expected to be totally 
complete to include clean up by the end of April 2014.  

FISCAL IMPACT:   A budget adjustment is being presented to Council appropriating funds in the 
amount of $96,554 from Water & Sewer Retained Earnings, account 520-0000-373-0412, to Capital 
Building & Grounds/Sewer Line Replacement, account 520-5460-535-6361, project 101117 to fund 
the emergency contract with Bell Contractors. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution  



SL6

SL
6

SL12 SL12
WL 6

WL6

WL
2

WL
4

WL6

WL
16

WL
16

W KING AVE

N 
9T

H 
ST

N 
9T

H 
ST

N 
11

TH
 ST

11041103 1101

1020
1019

1017

1016

10141001

1019

1015

1005

1003

918919 911

µ

Legend
G!.FIRE_HYDRANT
èÅISOLATION_VALVE
WATER_LINE_SERVICE
WATER_MAIN
TempleSDE.GIS.ELEVATED_TANK
Easements
!!2MANHOLE
!!2MANHOLE GPS
$1CLEANOUT

[ÚLIFT STATION
SEWER_SERVICE_LINE
SEWER MAIN
FORCE_MAIN
ABANDONED_SEWER_MAIN

1 inch = 50 feet
50 0 50 10025

Feet

Aaron Gonzales
City of Temple

Assistant Utility Services Director
254-298-5477

City of Temple Public Works
PLOT DATE: 1-3-14

N11th St Emergency
Sewer Line Replacement

2010 background

Emergency Sewer
Project Area

install MH

Replace MH



FY 2014
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROJECT 
# DECREASE

520-5460-535-63-61 101117

520-0000-373-04-12 96,554$      

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………… 96,554$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

To appropriate funds for the emergency contract with Bell Contractors of Belton for the emergency replacement of a 6" sewer line 
in the area of 1000 Block of North 11th Street and King Avenue. 

1/16/2014

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

96,554$      

INCREASE

96,554$      

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Capital Bldg & Grnds/Sewer Line Rplc

W&S Unreserved Retained Earnings

DO NOT POST

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Revised form - 10/27/06



1 
 

 
 RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING AN EMERGENCY CONTRACT WITH BELL 
CONTRACTORS, INC., OF BELTON, TEXAS, FOR THE EMERGENCY 
REPLACEMENT OF A 6” SEWER LINE USING THE PIPE BURSTING 
METHOD, IN THE 1000 BLOCK OF NORTH 11TH STREET AND KING 
AVENUE, IN THE AMOUNT OF $96,554; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, over the past several weeks, the Public Works Utility Services Division has 

had numerous wastewater issues in the North 11th Street and King Avenue area – these problems 
escalated in early January and an in-depth investigation revealed that the existing clay tile line 
had deteriorated past the point of rehabilitation; 

 
Whereas, given the severe condition of the pipe, collapsed main and loss of collection 

system in this location, staff determined this issue to be a significant health, safety and 
environmental hazard – per Local Government Code 252.022, this project is exempt from the 
competitive bid process; 

 
Whereas, due to the urgent nature of the project, the Public Works Utility Services 

Division obtained a proposal from Bell Contractors, Inc. of Belton, Texas to complete the work 
immediately, in the amount of $96,554 – staff authorized this work as an emergency and a 
Notice to Proceed was issued January 6, 2014;  

 
Whereas, funding for this project is available in Account No. 520-5460-535-6361, 

Project No. 101117 but an amendment to the fiscal year 2013-14 budget needs to be approved to 
transfer the funds to the appropriate expenditure account; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to ratify an 
emergency contract with Bell Contractors, Inc., of Belton, Texas, after approval as to form by the 
City Attorney, for the emergency replacement of a 6” sewer line using the pipe bursting method 
in the 1000 Block of North 11th Street and King Avenue, in the amount of $96,554. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2013-14 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
      THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

 _____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/16/14 
Item #5(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Kenny Henderson, Director of Street and Drainage Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with R.T 
Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., of Belton, for construction services required for the 
reconstruction and widening of South Pea Ridge Road from Tarver Road to Hogan Road in the 
amount of $481,047.25.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The South Pea Ridge Road reconstruction and widening project is an integral 
component of the City’s Transportation Capital Improvement Plan (TCIP).  This roadway has already 
been improved from West Adams Ave to Tarver Road, but the stretch from Tarver Road to Hogan 
Road is an unimproved county type road with no curb and gutter which serves as a collector road to 
several large subdivisions in the area. This project will provide for increased capacity and connectivity 
within this region of the City. 

On January 6, 2014, two bids were received for the construction of the project. Per the attached bid 
tabulation, R.T Schneider Construction Company submitted the low bid in the amount of $481,047.25. 
The Engineer’s opinion of the probable cost was $451,569.56.  The engineering consultant is familiar 
with the low bidder, R.T Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., and recommends them for award.  

The construction timeline proposes substantial completion within 120 days.  

FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding in the amount of $1,161,651.78 is available in account 365-3400-531-
6860, project 100971, to fund the construction contract with R.T. Schneider Construction Company, 
Ltd.for $481,047.25. 

ATTACHMENTS:
Project Area Map 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation  
Resolution 







Comprehensive Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
319 S. First Street       Temple, TX  76504 

  (254) 742-2050     FAX (254) 742-2055     Firm No. F-1071 

January 8, 2014 

Ms. Nicole Torralva, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 
City of Temple 
3210 E. Avenue H 
Temple, Texas 76501 

Re: Bid Recommendation 
Widening of Pea Ridge Road from Hogan Road to Tarver Drive 
Temple, Bell County, Texas 

Dear Ms. Torralva: 

The City of Temple received bids on January 6, 2014 for the referenced project.  Please see the 
attached Bid Schedule for detailed pricing.  Two companies presented bids for this project.  The Total 
Base Bids ranged from $153,050.00 (Patin Construction, LLC) to $236,848.50 (R.T. Schneider 
Construction Co., Ltd.).  However, the Base Bid did not include sidewalks or street pavement sections. 

The sidewalks were included in Add Alternates 1A through 3A.  We recommend including all sidewalk 
work in this contract. 

Six pavement options were included in this project.  We recommend Option 3 from the Geotechnical 
Report, which is a 2” HMAC with 13” of crushed limestone base.  This option appears to be the most 
appropriate pavement option for this project.  The 2” HMAC is included in Add Alternate 4A while the 
13” crushed limestone base is included in Add Alternate 10A. 

After reviewing the Bid Summary, we recommend that the City of Temple award a contract to R.T. 
Schneider Construction Co., Ltd. in the amount of $481,047.25 for the Total Base Bid and Add 
Alternates 1A, 2A, 3A, 4A, and 10A.   

If you have any questions, please call me at 254-743-2050, ext. 101. 

Thank you, 

Kristine B. Andrews, P.E. 

Xc: Mr. Kenny Henderson, Director of Streets and Drainage Services, City of Temple 
Ms. Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing, City of Temple 
Ms. Tina Adams, Assistant Director of Purchasing, City of Temple 



BASE BID

ESTIMATED

QUANTITY

1 MOBILIZATION & BONDING 1 LS 8,000.00$   8,000.00$   44,226.00$   44,226.00$   

2 EROSION CONTROL INCLUDING SILT FENCE 1 LS 6,500.00$   6,500.00$   8,800.00$   8,800.00$   

3 SITE PREPARATION 1 LS 27,000.00$   27,000.00$   63,386.00$   63,386.00$   

4 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN 1 LS 1,500.00$   1,500.00$   3,080.00$   3,080.00$   

5 TESTING & DISINFECTION 1 LS 1,200.00$   1,200.00$   1,210.00$   1,210.00$   

6 TRENCH SAFETY 1 LS 1,200.00$   1,200.00$   2,420.00$   2,420.00$   

7 BROADCAST SEEDING 1 LS 1,000.00$   1,000.00$   19,653.00$   19,653.00$   

8 SAWCUT EXISTING ASPHALT 95 LF 5.00$   475.00$   5.00$   475.00$   

9 SAWCUT & REMOVE CURB & GUTTER 225 LF 2.00$   450.00$   6.00$   1,350.00$   

10 CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER 1 EA 3,000.00$   3,000.00$   2,220.00$   2,220.00$   

11 STANDARD CURB & GUTTER 3075 LF 10.00$   30,750.00$   9.10$   27,982.50$   

12 6" C-900 PVC PIPE 45 LF 155.00$   6,975.00$   94.00$   4,230.00$   

13 RELOCATE EXISTING FIRE HYDRANTS 2 EA 6,000.00$   12,000.00$   4,620.00$   9,240.00$   

14 6" MJ CAP 2 EA 500.00$   1,000.00$   1,760.00$   3,520.00$   

15 BOX CULVERT 1 EA 15,000.00$   15,000.00$   15,645.00$   15,645.00$   

16 REMOVE 24" CMP 1 LS 1,000.00$   1,000.00$   825.00$   825.00$   

17 24" RCP 80 LF 125.00$   10,000.00$   126.00$   10,080.00$   

18 CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACHES 115 SY 100.00$   11,500.00$   44.40$   5,106.00$   

19 PAVEMENT MARKINGS 1 LS 14,000.00$   14,000.00$   12,900.00$   12,900.00$   

20 REMOVE AND REPLACE STOP SIGN 1 EA 500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   500.00$   

SIDEWALK ADD ALTERNATES

ESTIMATED

QUANTITY

1A 6' WEST SIDEWALK 1038 SY 45.00$   46,710.00$   29.70$   30,828.60$   

2A 6' EAST SIDEWALK 1072 SY 45.00$   48,240.00$   29.70$   31,838.40$   

3A CONCRETE RAMPS 3 EA 850.00$   2,550.00$   1,000.00$   3,000.00$   

PAVEMENT SECTION ADD ALTERNATES

ESTIMATED

QUANTITY

4A 2" HMAC 8175 SY 13.43$   109,790.25$   10.81$   88,371.75$   

5A 2.5" HMAC 8175 SY 16.25$   132,843.75$   13.25$   108,318.75$   

6A 3"HMAC 8175 SY 19.25$   157,368.75$   15.40$   125,895.00$   

7A 4" HMAC 8175 SY 24.81$   202,821.75$   19.50$   159,412.50$   

8A 10" CRUSHED LIMESTONE BASE 9200 SY 19.60$   180,320.00$   7.90$   72,680.00$   

9A 12" CRUSHED LIMESTONE BASE 9200 SY 21.50$   197,800.00$   9.20$   84,640.00$   

10A 13" CRUSHED LIMESTONE BASE 9200 SY 22.65$   208,380.00$   9.80$   90,160.00$   

11A 8" SUB BASE 9200 SY 4.70$   43,240.00$   6.40$   58,880.00$   

12A 13" SUB BASE 9200 SY 6.50$   59,800.00$   9.22$   84,824.00$   

13A 9" CEMENT TREATED BASE 9200 SY 22.53$   207,276.00$   13.30$   122,360.00$   

14A GEOGRID 9200 SY 1.80$   16,560.00$   2.00$   18,400.00$   

RECOMMENDED BID AWARD

Both Sidewalks with 2" HMAC and 13" Crushed Limestone Base

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS UNIT

Taylor, Texas Belton, Texas

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT

Patin Construction, LLC
Taylor, Texas

R.T. Schneider Construction Co., Ltd.
Belton, Texas

UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT

Patin Construction, LLC R.T. Schneider Construction Co., Ltd.

Taylor, Texas Belton, Texas

236,848.50$   

Patin Construction, LLC R.T. Schneider Construction Co., Ltd.

Taylor, Texas Belton, Texas

UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT

TOTAL BASE BID + ADD ALT 1A, 2A, 3A, 4A, and 10A $568,720.25 $481,047.25

UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT

WIDENING OF PEA RIDGE ROAD FROM HOGAN ROAD TO TARVER DRIVE

TOTAL

Patin Construction, LLC R.T. Schneider Construction Co., Ltd.

153,050.00$   

1/8/14



 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH R.T. 
SCHNEIDER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, LTD, OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION AND WIDENING OF SOUTH PEA RIDGE 
ROAD FROM TARVER ROAD TO HOGAN ROAD, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$481,047.25; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the South Pea Ridge Road reconstruction and widening project is an 

integral component of the City’s Transportation Capital Improvement Plan (TCIP); 
 
Whereas, this roadway has already been improved from West Adams Avenue to 

Tarver Road, but the stretch from Tarver Road to Hogan Road is an unimproved county road 
with no curb or gutter and serves as a collector road to several large subdivisions in this area; 

 
Whereas, on January 6, 2014, two (2) bids were received for construction of this 

project - the engineering consultant as well as staff recommends awarding this contract to 
R.T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., of Belton, Texas in the amount of $481,047.25; 

   
Whereas, funding is available for this project in Account No. 365-3400-531-6860, 

Project No. 100971; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
contract with R. T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., of Belton, Texas, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, for the reconstruction and widening of South Pea Ridge 
Road from Tarver Road to Hogan Road, in the amount of $481,047.25. 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

01/16/14 
Item #5(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a contract with 
Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP (KPA) of Temple, to provide professional services during 
construction of Phase 2 of the Panda TBP Reclaimed Water Line in southeast Temple in an amount 
not to exceed $221,400. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The City has agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) with 
reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP). Delivery of this water 
will require a pump station and approximately 45,000 linear feet of pipeline. This project comprises 
three phases: Phase 1 – pump station at TBP, Phase 2 – pipeline from Little River Rd to Panda, 
Phase 3 – pipeline from TBP to Little River Rd (Map attached).  
 
On September 5, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with KPA for 
engineering services required to design and bid Phase 2 in an amount not to exceed $579,100. This 
Council agenda includes a separate item to award a construction contract for Phase 2. 
 
The attached Proposal includes fees for construction administration and inspection of approximately 
2.5 miles of 24” pipe and one quarter mile of 36” steel encasement in this phase: 
 

  Construction Surveys   $   23,300 

  Construction Administration  $   78,100 

  Onsite Representation   $ 120,000 

       
      Total  $ 221,400 
 
These services are proposed for an allotted construction time of 210 days.  

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
01/16/14 

Item #5(E) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  This project will be funded with City of Temple, Texas Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2014.   
 
As part of the ‘2013 Effluent and Water Purchase Agreement’ approved by Council on February 14, 
2013, the City of Temple will be responsible for designing, permitting, rights of way acquisition, 
metering, installation, construction and maintenance of the ‘Treated Effluent. 
  
Facilities’ (TEF) and will also ‘own’ the facilities.  The agreement includes provisions that define 
Panda’s obligation to reimburse the City for those expenditures related to financing the design and 
construction of the ‘TEF’.  Pursuant to the Agreement, reimbursement will begin in the month that the 
debt is incurred by the City and reimbursement is required even if the Agreement is later terminated.  
The City and Panda also agreed that any unused bond funds will be used to pay down the principal 
balance of the bonds.  Per the agreement, the bonds will be for a term of not less than 360 months 
and be taxable bonds. 
 
The cost of this contract amendment is $221,400 and will be charged to account 562-5200-535-6947, 
project 101097. The City will front the cost of the construction contract until the bonds mentioned 
above are issued to fund the total cost of the project.  The bonds are scheduled to be issued in March 
2014. 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K

a
s
b
e
r
g
,
 
P

a
t
r
i
c
k
 
&

 
A

s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
L
P

 
2
0
1
3

EXHIBIT ADECEMBER 2013

CITY OF TEMPLE

Firm Reg. No. F-510

P
:
\
P

a
n
d
a
 
E

n
e
r
g
y
\
2
0
1
3
\
2
0
1
3
-
1
0
6
\
C

A
D

\
w

o
r
k
i
n
g
\
o
l
d
\
D

E
C

 
2
7
 
2
0
1
3
 
O

P
T

-
3
-
1
0
0
S

C
A

L
E

.
d
w

g
 
 
-
 
 
8
.
5
X

1
1
-
o
p
t
-
2
 
(
2
)

RECLAIMED EFFLUENT FROM TBWWTP

TO PANDA TEMPLE POWER SITE

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

2000 4000

PHASE I

 TEMPLE / BELTON

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

EFFLUENT PUMP STATION

FM 93

G

E

O

R

G

E

T

O

W

N

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

3
1
s
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

5
t
h
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
R

i
v
e
r
 
R

d
.

Blackland Rd.

L

o

o

p

 

3

6

3

FM 3117

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
R

i
v
e
r
 
R

d
.
/
 
O

l
d
 
9
5

FM 93

Barnhardt Rd.

PANDA TEMPLE

POWER SITE

PHASE II

24" PIPELINE

PHASE II - PIPELINE

(LITTLE RIVER ROAD TO PANDA )

PHASE III

24" PIPELINE

N

T









1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO A CONTRACT WITH 
KASBERG, PATRICK AND ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, TO 
PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES DURING THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF PHASE II OF THE PANDA TEMPLE-BELTON RECLAIMED WATER 
LINE IN SOUTHEAST TEMPLE, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$221,400; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City has agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) 

with reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP) - 
delivery of this water will require a pump station and approximately 45,000 linear feet of 
pipeline; 

 
Whereas, this project is comprised of three phases: Phase I – pump station at 

TBP, Phase II –pipeline from Little River Road to Panda, Phase III – pipeline from TBP 
to Little River Road; 

 
Whereas, on September 5, 2013, City Council authorized a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA), for engineering services 
required to design and bid Phase II of the project; 

 
Whereas, the amendment will include fees for construction administration and 

inspection of approximately 2.5 miles of 24” pipe and one quarter mile of 36” steel 
encasement in Phase II; 

 
 Whereas, this project will be funded with Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2014 and will be charged to Account No. 562-5200-535-6947, Project No. 1010967; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
an amendment to a contract with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, 
after approval as to form by the City Attorney, to provide professional services during 
construction of Phase II of the Panda Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 
reclaimed water line, in the amount of $221,400. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

01/16/14 
Item #5(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Bruce 
Flanigan Construction, Inc. (Flanigan) of Belton, for activities required to construct Phase 2 of the 
Panda TBP Reclaimed Effluent Line in an amount not to exceed $2,111,111.20. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City has agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) with 
reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP). Delivery of this water 
will require a pump station and approximately 45,000 linear feet of pipeline. The attached Map depicts 
three phases: Phase 1 – pump station at TBP, Phase 2 – pipeline from Little River Rd to Panda, 
Phase 3 – pipeline from TBP to Little River Rd.  
 
On September 5, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP, (KPA) for engineering services required to design and bid Phase 2 in an amount 
not to exceed $579,100. This Council agenda includes a separate item to amend that contract with 
construction phase services. 
 
The services authorized under this contract will construct approximately 2.5 miles of 24” ductile iron 
pipe for conveying reclaimed water, necessary appurtenances, and roughly one quarter mile of 36” 
steel encasement pipe. Base bids ranged from $2,111,111.20 to $2,483,426.10 (see attached Bid 
Tabulation). 
 
The engineer’s OPC for this project was $3,400,000. KPA recommends awarding the contract to the 
low bidder, Flanigan, for $2,111,111.20 (Recommendation attached). 
 
Construction time allotted for this project is 210 days. 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  This project will be funded with City of Temple, Texas Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2014.  As part of the ‘2013 Effluent and Water Purchase Agreement’ approved by 
Council on February 14, 2013, the City of Temple will be responsible for designing, permitting, rights 
of way acquisition, metering, installation, construction and maintenance of the ‘Treated Effluent 
Facilities’ (TEF) and will also ‘own’ the facilities.  The agreement includes provisions that define 
Panda’s obligation to reimburse the City for those expenditures related to financing the design and 
construction of the ‘TEF’.  Pursuant to the Agreement, reimbursement will begin in the month that the 
debt is incurred by the City and reimbursement is required even if the Agreement is later terminated.  
The City and Panda also agreed that any unused bond funds will be used to pay down the principal 
balance of the bonds.  Per the agreement, the bonds will be for a term of not less than 360 months 
and be taxable bonds. 

 
The cost of this construction contract is $2,111,111.20 and will be charged to account 562-5200-535-
6947, project 101097.  The City will front the cost of the construction contract until the bonds 
mentioned above are issued to fund the total cost of the project.  The bonds are scheduled to be 
issued in March 2014.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  



C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K

a
s
b
e
r
g
,
 
P

a
t
r
i
c
k
 
&

 
A

s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
,
 
L
P

 
2
0
1
3

EXHIBIT ADECEMBER 2013

CITY OF TEMPLE

Firm Reg. No. F-510

P
:
\
P

a
n
d
a
 
E

n
e
r
g
y
\
2
0
1
3
\
2
0
1
3
-
1
0
6
\
C

A
D

\
w

o
r
k
i
n
g
\
o
l
d
\
D

E
C

 
2
7
 
2
0
1
3
 
O

P
T

-
3
-
1
0
0
S

C
A

L
E

.
d
w

g
 
 
-
 
 
8
.
5
X

1
1
-
o
p
t
-
2
 
(
2
)

RECLAIMED EFFLUENT FROM TBWWTP

TO PANDA TEMPLE POWER SITE

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

2000 4000

PHASE I

 TEMPLE / BELTON

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

EFFLUENT PUMP STATION

FM 93

G

E

O

R

G

E

T

O

W

N

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

3
1
s
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

5
t
h
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
R

i
v
e
r
 
R

d
.

Blackland Rd.

L

o

o

p

 

3

6

3

FM 3117

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
R

i
v
e
r
 
R

d
.
/
 
O

l
d
 
9
5

FM 93

Barnhardt Rd.

PANDA TEMPLE

POWER SITE

PHASE II

24" PIPELINE

PHASE II - PIPELINE

(LITTLE RIVER ROAD TO PANDA )

PHASE III

24" PIPELINE

N

T







1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH 
BRUCE FLANIGAN CONSTRUCTION, INC. OF BELTON, TEXAS, FOR 
ACTIVITIES REQUIRED TO CONSTRUCT PHASE II OF THE PANDA 
TEMPLE-BELTON RECLAIMED WATER LINE, IN AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $2,111,111.20; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City has agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) 

with reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP) - 
delivery of this water will require a pump station and approximately 45,000 linear feet of 
pipeline; 

 
Whereas, the services authorized under this contract will construct approximately 

2.5 miles of 24” ductile iron pipe for conveying reclaimed water, necessary 
appurtenances, and roughly one quarter mile of 36” steel encasement pipe; 

 
Whereas, on September 5, 2013, City Council authorized a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA), for engineering services 
required to design and bid Phase 2 of the project; 

 
Whereas, KPA and staff recommend awarding this contract to Bruce Flanigan 

Construction, Inc., of Belton, Texas in an amount not to exceed $2,111,111.20 for 
construction of Phase II of the Panda Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 
reclaimed water line; 

 
Whereas, the City will front the cost of the construction contract until the bonds 

are issued to fund the total cost of the project - per the agreement, the bonds are 
scheduled to be issued in early 2014 and will be for a term of not less than 360 months 
and be taxable bonds; 

 
 Whereas, this project will be funded with Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 
2014 and will be charged to Account No. 562-5200-535-6947, Project No. 1010967; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
a contract with Bruce Flanigan Construction, Inc., of Belton, Texas, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for the construction of Phase II of the Panda Temple-Belton 
Wastewater Treatment Plant reclaimed water line, in the amount of $2,111,111.20. 



2 
 

  
Part 2: The City will front the cost of the construction contract until the bonds are 

issued to fund the total cost of the project.   
 

 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/16/14 

Item #5(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the acceptance of assignment of 
eight (8) permanent utility easements, one (1) lease, and two (2) temporary work space easements 
from Panda Temple Power II, LLC and authorizing reimbursement to Panda Temple Power II, LLC for 
the cost of preliminary engineering, right-of-way services, surveying work, and project management in 
a total amount not to exceed $900,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  In November, 2012, the City Council authorized an Effluent and Water Purchase 
Agreement with Panda Temple Power II, LLC (“Panda”). The Agreement authorized the City to sell 
treated effluent to Panda for use in the operation of Panda’s natural gas power plant. The Agreement 
also requires the City to construct the infrastructure necessary to convey the treated effluent from the 
Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP) to the Panda site. This infrastructure includes 
approximately 45,000 linear feet of 24’ pipe for conveying the treated effluent and a pump station to 
be located at the TBP.  
 
The Effluent Agreement authorized Panda to perform the initial easement procurement work for the 
pipeline with the agreement of the City to reimburse Panda for any costs incurred. Panda has 
obtained eight (8) permanent easements, one (1) long-term property lease, and two (2) temporary 
work space easements from various property owners along the pipeline route, specifically the route 
that stretches from Little River Road to the Panda site.  
 
At this time Panda is seeking reimbursement for the cost of the easements and leases, as well as 
reimbursement for preliminary engineering, right-of-way services, surveying work, and project 
management. The City Attorney’s office has reviewed the costs and finds them to be reasonable. The 
City is in the process of independently obtaining appraisals of the easements. The total amount of 
reimbursement sought by Panda at this time is $900,000 which includes a small contingency to cover 
additional costs that may be occurred after the date of the resolution. Attached is a cost breakdown 
which shows the incurred costs to date at $899,072.   

 
                                                                             
 

 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  This project will be funded with City of Temple, Texas Utility System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2014.  As part of the ‘2013 Effluent and Water Purchase Agreement’ approved by 
Council on February 14, 2013, the City of Temple will be responsible for designing, permitting, right- 
of-way acquisitions, metering, installation, construction and maintenance of the ‘Treated Effluent 
Facilities’ (TEF) and will also ‘own’ the facilities.  The agreement includes provisions that define 
Panda’s obligation to reimburse the City for those expenditures related to financing the design and 
construction of the ‘TEF’.  Pursuant to the Agreement, reimbursement will begin in the month that the 
debt is incurred by the City and reimbursement is required even if the Agreement is later terminated.  
The City and Panda also agreed that any unused bond funds will be used to pay down the principal 
balance of the bonds.  Per the agreement, the bonds will be for a term of not less than 360 months 
and be taxable bonds. 
 
The total amount of reimbursement sought by Panda for the costs of preliminary engineering, right-of-
way services, surveying work, and project management is a total amount of $900,000 which includes 
a small contingency to cover additional costs that may occur after the date of the resolution.  As of 
today, actually incurred costs are $899,072.  The City will front these costs until the bonds mentioned 
above are issued to fund the total cost of the project.  The bonds are scheduled to be issued in March 
2014. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Cost breakdown 
Resolution 
  



Estimated

Copy of ROW Services Cost Projections CDB8 1-6-14 1/9/2014 1:52 PM1 of 2Copy of ROW Services Cost Projections CDB8 1-6-14 1/9/2014 1:52 PM1 of 2

Project Provide contract project SA based on hourly $26 327 $12 110 $8 767 $13 017 $10 547 $2 470 $73 238 $6 000 $79 238 Ongoing work CDB

TB Pipeline - Cost Projections  - ROW Scope

Actual

Organization Scope of Work Cost Basis Expende
(4/1-8/1/1

d
3)

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Exp
to

ended 
 Date

Jan Total Comments

KPA Technical suppo
ROW routing and
easement procur

rt to 
 
ement.

Task 1 approve
2/7/13 - $20,00
4/22/13 -  incre
$80,000

d proposal 
0
ased to 

$51,287 $9,602 $4,185 $3,513 $3,325 $4,500 $76,412 $0 $76,412

KPA Technical suppo
FM93 survey effo

rt to 
rt.

Task 2 approve
7/19/13 - $52,3

d proposal 
00

$0 $22,440 $8,705 $21,155 $0 $0 $52,300 $0 $52,300

Lone Star RO
Inc

W Obtain ROEs an
easements.   

d SA based on a
unit and hourly

 price per 
 rates.  

$125,400 $8,750 $4,750 $6,500 $13,000 $30,000 $188,400 $6,000 $194,400 Horizon Bank 
easement closure in 
Jan

All County 
Surveying

Full topo of FM9
TXDOT ROW.

3 Approved prop
$95,700 7/16/1

osal for 
3

$0 $57,338 $22,173 $12,665 $6,335 $0 $98,510 $0 $98,510

All County 
Surveying

Metes and bound
surveys of privat
parcels. (August 
proposal) 

s 
e 

Average cost o
parcel x 17 par
$22,100

f $1300 per 
cels = 

$3,500 $0 $11,322 $1,407 $13,037 $16,229 $0 $16,229 Hughling M&B incl in 
Dec invoice

Titan 
Engineering

ESA and Cultura
Archeological 
Evaluations

l / Proposal 3/6/1
$55,600.   Sho
due to TXDOT

3 for 
uld be less 
 route

$1,677 $4,463 $5,079 $2,847 $11,872 $25,938 $2,500 $28,438 Jenschke est 12/17

Project 
Management

Provide contract 
manager.

project SA based on hourly     rates rates. $26 327, $12 110, $8 767, $13 017, $10 547 $2, 470 $73, 238 $6 000 $79 238 Ongoing work - CDB, , ,   -  
estimate

TOTAL 
SERVICES

$208,191 $114,703 $53,659 $71,019 $46,486 $50,007 $531,027 $14,500 $545,527

Permanent 
Easements

Allegiance Title - 
Escrow Invoices

$188,300 $111,738 $300,038 $28,932 $328,970 Reconcilation with 
actual payments

Temporary 
Workspaces

Panda - Direct 
payments to owners

$24,575 $24,575 $24,575 Documents signed.  
Cut checks in Jan.

TOTAL ROW 
PROJECT

$855,640 $43,432 $899,072

Invoices paid or authorized for payment through December.

Invoices submitted for payment in January.

Estimated cost for invoices to be submitted in January



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF ASSIGNMENT OF EIGHT 
(8) PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENTS, ONE (1) LEASE, AND TWO (2) 
TEMPORARY WORK SPACE EASEMENTS FROM PANDA TEMPLE 
POWER, LLC; AND AUTHORIZING REIMBURSEMENT TO PANDA 
TEMPLE POWER II, LLC FOR THE COST OF THE EASEMENTS AND 
LEASE, AS WELL AS PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING, RIGHT-OF-WAY 
SERVICES, SURVEYING WORK, AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $900,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, in November, 2012, the City Council authorized an Effluent and Water 

Purchase Agreement (Effluent Agreement) with Panda Temple Power II, LLC (Panda) to sell 
treated effluent to Panda for use in the operation of Panda’s natural gas power plant; 

 
Whereas, the agreement also requires the City to construct the infrastructure 

necessary to convey the treated effluent from the Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(TBP) to the Panda site – this infrastructure includes approximately 45,000 linear feet of 24’ 
pipe for conveying the treated effluent as well as a pump station to be located at the TBP; 

 
Whereas, the Effluent Agreement authorized Panda to perform the initial easement 

procurement work for the pipeline with the agreement of the City to reimburse Panda for any 
costs incurred – Panda has acquired eight (8) permanent easements, one (1) long-term 
property lease, and two (2) temporary work space easements from various property owners 
along the pipeline route; 

 
Whereas, Panda is requesting reimbursement in an amount not to exceed $900,000 

for the cost of the easements and leases as well as the preliminary engineering, right-of-way 
services, surveying work, and project management – the City Attorney’s office has reviewed 
these costs and finds them to be reasonable; 

 
 Whereas, this project will be funded with City of Temple, Texas Utility System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014; 
 

Whereas, the Effluent Agreement obligates Panda to reimburse the City for all 
expenditures related to the design and construction of the pipeline and pursuant to the 
Agreement, reimbursement will begin in the month that the debt is incurred by the City and 
reimbursement is required even if the Agreement is later terminated; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



2 
 

 
 

 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the acceptance of assignment of eight (8) 
permanent utility easements, one (1) lease, and two (2) temporary work space easements 
from Panda Temple Power II, LLC and authorizes reimbursement to Panda Temple Power II, 
LLC for the cost of the easements and lease, as well as preliminary engineering, right-of-way 
services, surveying work, and project management, in a total amount not to exceed $900,000 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 

documents, after approval by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for the purchase of this 
parcel, including all closing documents. 

 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

01/16/14 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services 
Ashley Williams, Sustainability and Grant Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing submission of an application for 
funding through the US Environmental Protection Agency, Brownfield Assessment Grants program, 
for the final assessment needs and development of a clean-up plan for the Bend of the River property 
in the amount of $200,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The US Environmental Protection Agency has announced a grant program entitled 
“Brownfield Assessment Grants.”  The program is intended to provide funding for Brownfield 
revitalization activities, to include assessment and clean-up planning. 

Distribution of funding will be allocated to communities and groups who are responsible for 
assessment and clean-up initiatives. 

The final application is due January 22, 2014.   Applications will be evaluated by an established EPA 
application team. 

The project scope involves the following elements: 

 Finalized and detailed assessment of potential contaminants located on the site;
 Determination of the threat of potential contaminants; and
 Clean-up plan for the development of a Botanical Gardens on the 90+ acre site.

Staff has been and will continue to work in partnership with EPA Region 6 and the Texas Commission 
on Environmental Quality throughout the project.  

FISCAL IMPACT:   The Brownfield Assessment Grant program does not require a City match. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



 1

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
FUNDING THROUGH THE U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY, BROWNFIELD ASSESSMENT GRANTS PROGRAM, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $200,000, FOR THE FINAL ASSESSMENT NEEDS AND 
DEVELOPMENT OF A CLEAN-UP PLAN FOR THE BEND OF THE 
RIVER PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has announced a grant 
program entitled “Brownfield Assessment Grants” which is intended to provide funding for 
Brownfield revitalization activities, to include assessment and clean-up planning; 

 
 Whereas, distribution of funding will be allocated to communities and groups who 
are responsible for assessment and clean-up initiatives; 
 

Whereas, the project scope involves the finalization and detailed assessment of 
potential contaminants located at the site, determination of the threat of potential 
contaminants, and clean-up plan for the development of a Botanical Garden on the 
approximately 90 acre site; 
 
 Whereas, staff has been and will continue to work in partnership with the EPA 
Region 6 and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality throughout the project; 
 

Whereas, there is no City match requirement for this grant program - final 
application submission is due January 22, 2014; and  
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize and support this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes submission of an application for funding 
through the US Environmental Protection Agency, Brownfield Assessment Grants program, 
in the amount of $200,000, for the final assessment needs and development of a clean-up 
plan for the Bend of the River property, which includes: 
 

 the finalization and detailed assessment of potential contaminants located at the site; 
 determination of the threat of potential contaminants, and  
 clean-up plan for the development of a Botanical Garden on the approximate 90 acre 

site 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, which are necessary to submit 
the application and accept the grant, if awarded to the City.  



 2

  
 
 Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/16/14 

Item #5(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brynn Myers, Director of Administrative Services 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance amending the 
calculation method for the certification pay for the certification of Paramedic/EMT in the Fire 
Department. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description on second and final 
reading. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Chapter 143.44 of the Local Government Code requires that the Council establish 
certification pay by ordinance.  As part of the implementation of the updated Civil Service-Fire Pay 
Schedules based on a Compensation/Market Study conducted in 2013, staff recommends a change 
to the calculation method for the Fire-Paramedic certification pay. Currently, the Fire-Paramedic 
certification is calculated as 12% of the Firefighter Step 2 base salary. Staff proposes to change the 
calculation to a flat monthly amount. This calculation method is consistent with how most other 
certifications pay amounts within the department and the organization are calculated. The proposed 
certification amount for Fire-Paramedic is $397.46 per month which is equal to the current certification 
amount and will result in no change to the certification pay of qualified personnel. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The proposed certification amount for Fire-Paramedic is $397.46 per month which 
is equal to the current certification amount and will result in no change to the certification pay of 
qualified personnel. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Ordinance for Certification Pay 

 
  



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.      

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CALCULATION METHOD FOR THE 
CERTIFICATION PAY OF PARAMEDIC/EMT IN THE FIRE DEPARTMENT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE.  

              
 

 Whereas, Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the City Council 
establish certification pay by ordinance;  
 

Whereas, as part of the implementation of the updated Civil Service-Fire Pay Schedules 
based on a Compensation/Market Study conducted in 2013, staff recommends a change to the 
calculation method for the Fire-Paramedic certification pay; 
 
 Whereas, currently, the Fire-Paramedic certification is calculated as 12% of the 
Firefighter Step 2 base salary - staff proposes to change the calculation to a flat monthly amount 
which is consisted with how most other certification pay amounts within the department and the 
organization are calculated; 
 
 Whereas, the proposed certification amount for Fire-Paramedic is $397.35 per month 
which is equal to the current certification amount and will result in no change to the certification 
pay of qualified personnel; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize these actions. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes amending the calculation method for the certification 
pay for Paramedic-EMT in the Fire Department from 12% of the Firefighter Step 2 base salary to 
a flat monthly rate of $397.35. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
December, 2013. 



2 
 

 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 

 
  THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

   
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM       
  
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 
DEPT./ DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Phillip Melton, Planning Intern 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION SECOND READING – Z-FY-14-04: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a zoning change from TMED T4 District (T4) to Planned Development (T4) District on Lot 
3, Block 7, Eugenia Terrace, addressed as 1605 South 5th Street. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its November 18, 2013 meeting, 
the Planning and Zoning Commission failed to second a motion to approve the zone change from 
TMED T4 District (T4) to Planned Development (T4) District. The failed motion resulted in a 
recommendation of denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission for the requested zone change. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description on second and final 
reading. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the zoning change from T4 to PD(T4) for the following reasons: 
 
1. The request complies with the Thoroughfare, Plan;  
2. Public facilities are available to serve the property; and, 
3. The development allows the developer to complete development already on the block. 

 
 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a zoning change from TMED T4 District to Planned 
Development-T4 District for the purpose of constructing a triplex. The development will occur on a 
5,250 square foot site with one 2,733 square foot triplex. The developer has proposed the following 
development components more fully depicted in the attached development plan documents. 
 
There is no mechanism to provide the requested relief from the following TMED T4 zoning standards 
in UDC Section 6.3 and a PD would be required, all other TMED T4 standards would apply: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 Multiple-family dwellings are not permitted in T4; the developer is proposing constructing a 

triplex;  
 Maximum impervious lot coverage of 70%; the developer proposes 73% coverage; 
 Parking required to be located in the second or third layer of the principal frontage and 

accessible by rear alleys; the developer proposes parking in the first layer with no alley access; 
 Rear alley ROW dedication; no ROW dedication is proposed; 
 Minimum landscaped area of 30%; the developer proposes 27% landscaped area; 
 No on street parking allowed; the developer proposes 3 on street parking spaces; 
 Sidewalks required to extend the full length of the development; the developer has indicated 

on the site plan area for future sidewalk extension but no constructed sidewalk; 
 Porches required to be made of painted wood, concrete, or metal; the developer has proposed 

a porch made of brick and stone; 
 Building frontage required to face the street; the proposed building is facing south instead of 

towards 5th Street to the west. 
 
Landscaping 
TMED T4 zoning requires a total of 30% of the site to be landscaped. The proposed triplex and other 
impervious improvements cover 75% of the lot and only a total of 25% of the site will be landscaped. 
To offset these requirements the applicant has proposed providing additional landscaping on an 
adjoining lot by adding a parking lot island which would increase the total landscaped area to 27%. 
The applicant has proposed the following improvements:  
 

 A landscaped frontage with 2 Live Oak trees will be planted along 5th street per TMED 
landscaping standards in UDC Section 6.3.11; 

 Along the west side of the site, between the building and the future sidewalk, Dwarf Nandinas 
and Crepe Myrtles will be planted; 

 A landscaped parking island will be added to an existing parking lot, planted with Dwarf 
Nandinas, to provide additional landscaping; 

 The landscaped areas on the south and west sides of the site will be planted in ground cover 
according to TMED Standards in UDC Section 6.3.11; 

 Existing trees on the north and east sides of the site will remain in place. 
 

Building Materials and Architecture 
According to the development plans, the applicant has proposed the following: 
 

 Brick and stone as façade material, with cementious siding limited to less than 10% of each 
side; 

 Windows accented in stone or brick to meet the 4” trim requirement; 
 Windows facing the street will have shutters; 
 All units have different façade materials to have the distinct characteristics; 
 Corners will be accented with stone or brick vertically from the foundation to the eve. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Screening 
Shrubs from the approved TMED list will be used to screen the parking lot from the street. 
Additionally, shrubs will be planted adjacent to 5th Street on the south side of the parking lot, off site, 
to provide a screen for the lot. 
 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) No 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

No 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The Land Use and Character Map identifies this area as the Temple Medical Education District which 
is designed to develop an “urban village” feel. As the use and the building orientation does not meet 
the TMED zoning standards nor contribute to an “urban village” feel, the development is not 
compatible with the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
However, the block where this site is located currently has 20 duplexes owned by the same developer 
and this development would be a completion of the block. Staff would not be in support for any future 
requests that do not comply with the TMED standards outside of the block which this site is located. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The Thoroughfare Plan identifies 5th Street as a Collector. This thoroughfare provides sufficient 
capacity to accommodate the proposed use.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
An 8” water line runs along 5th Street at the frontage of the property, and a 6” sewer line runs along 
the rear of the property. These facilities are sufficient for the proposed use.  
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No trails currently exist or are planned on or near the site, however, 6’ sidewalk would be required per 
TMED standards in UDC Section 6.3.11. While the developer is proposing to set aside the area 
needed to build the sidewalk there are no plans to construct the sidewalk. As there are no plans to 
construct the sidewalk, the PD is not compatible with the Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk 
Ordinance. 

 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The proposed development will meet all TMED T4 District 
standards in UDC Section 6.3 unless expressly identified in the ordinance. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 13 notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-feet of 
case Z-FY-14-04 as required by state law and local ordinance.  As of December 5, 2013, no notices 
were returned in support and or in opposition of the requested zoning change.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Surrounding Properties and Uses 
Zoning and Location Map 
Site Plan 
Architecture Drawings 
Surrounding Property Owner Notification Map 
Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Subject Property: Undeveloped, T4 Zoning 

 

South: Residential Duplex; T4 Zoning 



 

East: Residential duplex, T5-E Zoning 

 

North: Single Family Residential, T4 Zoning 



 

West: Single Family Residential, T4 Zoning 



 

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(
(2

1

8
7

2

1

12

11

10

18

1
1

5

6

1

2

3

4

5

6 9

1

2

3
7

8
1

2

1
9

8

7

5

4

3

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

6

5

4

3

2

1

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2
9

6
5

11

10

10

11

12

12

11

10
12

11

10

10

12

11

12

11

196-A

210

302

16
01

16
06

17
02

16
10

16
02

16
09

16
13

17
01

18
01

18
05

17
04

17
08

17
14

16
01

16
03

16
05

16
06

16
10

16
14

16
18

16
22

16
26

17
04

17
12

17
18

16
01

16
05

17
05

17
09

17
13

17
17

17
21

17
08

17
06

17
04

17
02

16
18

16
14

16
06

16
02

15
19

15
16

15
18

15
10

T4
2F

T5-E

SD-V

T5-E

T5-E

T5-E
T5-E

W P AVE

S 1
ST

 ST

S 5
TH

 ST

S 7
TH

 ST

S 3
RD

 ST

W R AVE

S 3
RD

 ST

Z-FY-14-04 Rezone from T4 to PD(T4) 1605 S. 5th Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
0 100 200

Feet

Subject Property Parcel
Subdivisions
Zoning 11/15/2013

City of Temple GIS







1

1

1

1

2
7

8

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

2

1

6

5

4

3

2

1

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

9

3

6

5

46

12

11

10
12

11

10

12

11

1012

11

196-A

W P AVE

S 5
TH

 ST

S 3
RD

 ST

S 7
TH

 ST

S 1
ST

 ST

S 3
RD

 ST

309

15
10

16
06

16
02

16
09

16
13

17
01

16
01

16
03

16
05

16
06

16
10

16
14

16
18

16
22

16
26

17
04

17
12

16
01

16
05

17
05

16
06

16
02 15
20

15
17

15
19

15
16

15
18

Z-FY-14-04 Rezone T4 to PD (T4) 1605 S. 5th Street

Cases
Buffer

Subdivisions
Parcels

Historic Lot Lines
Outblock

Lots
Addresses12341234-A

1 0 100 20050
Feet

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

²
 10/30/2013

City of Temple GIS
pmelton



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-04) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM TMED T4 
DISTRICT (T4) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (T4) ON LOT 
3, BLOCK 7, EUGENIA TERRACE, ADDRESSED AS 1605 SOUTH 5TH 
STREET; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from TMED T4 District (T4) to 

Planned Development District (T4) on Lot 3, Block 7, Eugenia Terrace and addressed as 
1605 South 5th Street, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof for all purposes. The Planned Development District (T4) is subject to all TMED 
Standards except for: 

 
• Triplex construction is allowed 
• On street parking, parking in the first layer, and alley access 
• Building orientation 

 
The Planned Development District (T4) will incorporate the following standards: 
 

• Windows will be accented in stone or brick and windows facing the street 
will have shutters 

• Each unit will be constructed with different façade materials and corners 
will be accented 

• Landscaping and screening will meet the TMED standards more fully 
described in Exhibit B 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

 



2 
 

 
 
Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

December, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 
 
 

 
 

             
      

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brian Chandler, Planning Director 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – A-FY-12-08:  Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing an abandonment and conveyance of two existing alleys, each with a width of 20 feet and 
depth of 300 feet, located between the north right-of-way line of East Adams Avenue and the south 
right-of-way line of East Calhoun Avenue and reserving a public drainage and utility easement in the 
entire abandoned rights-of-way. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description on second and final 
reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  First United Methodist Church owns the property on both sides of the subject 
alleys.  The church requests the alley abandonments to facilitate safer management of vehicle and 
pedestrian traffic flows, and improve future maintenance and repair of the roadway.  If approved, the 
abandoned alleyways would be used to access church parking lots, buildings, and the entire church 
campus. 
 
The alleys are located between the north right-of-way line of East Adams Avenue and the south right-
of-way line of East Calhoun Avenue and are more fully described below: 
  
Tract 1: The alleyway situated in Block 7 of Original Town of Temple, Bell County, Texas, recorded in 
Volume 36, Page 640, of the real property records of Bell County, Texas; said alley being a strip of 
land generally 20 feet by 300 feet and running generally in a north-south direction, bounded on its 
south end by the north line of East Adams Avenue and on its north end by the south line of East 
Barton Avenue. THE EAST LINE OF said strip of land is located 110 feet west of and parallel to the 
west line of North 4th Street. 
 
Tract 2: The alleyway situated in Block 7 of Moore’s Addition, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, a 
plat of record filed in Volume 114, Page 416, of the real property records of Bell County, Texas; said 
alley being a strip of land generally 20 feet by 300 feet and running generally in a north-south 
direction, bounded on its south end by the north line of East Barton Avenue and on its north end by 
the south line of East Calhoun Avenue. THE EAST LINE OF said strip of land is located 110 feet west 
of and parallel to the west line of North 4th Street. Note that the North 237.47 feet of this alleyway is 
contained within Lot 2, Block 1, First United Methodist Church Addition, a plat of record filed in 
Cabinet D, Slide 245A, of the real property records of Bell County, Texas. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Planning staff contacted all utility providers, including the Public Works Department, regarding the 
proposed alley abandonment.  Since there are existing buried and aerial services in the alleys, the 
utility providers have requested the alleys be converted into unobstructed utility easements to allow 
full access to their service lines. There are no objections to the abandonment request as long as the 
requested easements are retained.  Staff requests a public drainage and utility easement in the entire 
abandoned rights-of-way to protect existing service lines.    
 
Staff is seeking authorization to convey the abandoned alley ways to First United Methodist Church. 
Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code § 253.013, the conveyance would be at no cost to the 
Church. The governing body of a City with a population greater than 65,000 and less than 90,000 that 
is located in a county in which part, but not all of a military installation is located, may donate surplus 
property owned by the City that is of negligible or negative value if the governing body finds the 
following facts to be true: 
 
 (1) The property is not improved, including by having a structure on it or by being paved; 
 
 (2) Ownership of the property does not provide any identifiable positive benefit to the City in 
relation to the City’s current needs;  
 
 (3) Ownership of the property is not likely to provide any identifiable positive benefit to the City 
in relation to the City’s future needs; and 
 
 (4) The cost of maintaining the property is of substantial burden to the City.  
 
All of the above are true with regards to the property in question. With respect to item (1) above, the 
Public Works Department has inspected the alleys in question, and it is in such poor condition, that 
we believe that the alley is not suitable for use as an alley in its present condition and should be 
found NOT to be improved or paved at this time. The ordinance makes this specific finding to allow 
the conveyance under Section 253.013. Therefore, the City may donate the abandoned alley ways to 
the adjacent property owner. In this case the adjacent property owner is First United Methodist 
Church.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Aerial 
Abandonment Exhibit 
Ordinance 
 

 

 

 



City of Temple 

 
Curbs

Streets Labels

Railroad

Historic Lot Lines

Ownership Parcels

Addresses

Outblock Numbers

Lot Numbers

Subdivisions

Water Bodies

City Limits - Large Scale Symbology

Temple ETJ - Large Scale Symbology

Mapbook Grid

2010 Aerial Photo

Red: Band_1

Green: Band_2

Page 1 of 2City of Temple

6/25/2012http://maps.ci.temple.tx.us:8080/aspnet_client/ESRI/WebADF/PrintTaskLayoutTemplates/...

tlyerly
Line

tlyerly
Line

tlyerly
Text Box
 Alley Abandonment

tlyerly
Line

tlyerly
Line





 
 1 

ORDINANCE NO.       
 

(A-FY-12-08) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, ABANDONING AND CONVEYING TWO EXISTING ALLEYS, 
EACH WITH A WIDTH OF 20 FEET AND A DEPTH OF 300 FEET, 
LOCATED BETWEEN THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 
ADAMS AVENUE AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 
CALHOUN AVENUE AND RESERVING A PUBLIC DRAINAGE AND 
UTILITY EASEMENT IN THE ENTIRE ABANDONED RIGHTS-OF-WAY; 
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the alleys in question are located between the north right-of-way line of East 
Adams Avenue and the south right-of-way line of East Calhoun Avenue, as outlined below: 

 
Tract 1: The alleyway situated in Block 7 of Original Town of Temple, Bell 
County, Texas, recorded in Volume 36, Page 640, of the real property records of 
Bell County, Texas; said alley being a strip of land generally 20 feet by 300 feet 
and running generally in a north-south direction, bounded on its south end by the 
north line of East Adams Avenue and on its north end by the south line of East 
Barton Avenue. THE EAST LINE OF said strip of land is located 110 feet west 
of and parallel to the west line of North 4th Street. 
 
Tract 2: The alleyway situated in Block 7 of Moore’s Addition, City of Temple, 
Bell County, Texas, a plat of record filed in Volume 114, Page 416, of the real 
property records of Bell County, Texas; said alley being a strip of land generally 
20 feet by 300 feet and running generally in a north-south direction, bounded on 
its south end by the north line of East Barton Avenue and on its north end by the 
south line of East Calhoun Avenue. THE EAST LINE OF said strip of land is 
located 110 feet west of and parallel to the west line of North 4th Street. Note that 
the North 237.47 feet of this alleyway is contained within Lot 2, Block 1, First 
United Methodist Church Addition, a plat of record filed in Cabinet D, Slide 
245A, of the real property records of Bell County, Texas; 
 
Whereas, staff has contacted all utility providers, including the Public Works 

Department, regarding the proposed alley abandonment and since there are existing buried and 
aerial services in the alleys, the utility providers have requested the alleys be converted into 
unobstructed utility easements to allow full access to their service lines; 

 
Whereas, staff requests a public drainage and utility easement in the entire abandoned 

rights-of-way to protect existing service lines and request authorization to convey the abandoned 
alley ways to First United Methodist Church;  

 
 
 



 
 2 

Whereas, First United Methodist Church owns the property on both sides of the subject 
alleys – the church requests the alley abandonments and conveyance of the abandoned alleys to 
the Church in order to facilitate safer management of vehicle and pedestrian traffic flows and 
improve future maintenance and repair of the roadway;   

 
Whereas, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code §253.013, the conveyance would 

be at no cost to the Church if the Council finds that the (1) property is not improved, including 
having a structure on it or by being paved, (2) ownership of the property does not provide any 
identifiable positive benefit to the City in relation to the City’s current needs, (3) ownership of 
the property is not likely to provide any identifiable positive benefit to the City in relation to the 
City’s future needs; and (4) the cost of maintaining the property is of substantial burden to the 
city;   

Whereas, with respect to item (1) above, the Public Works Department has inspected the 
alleys in question, and they are in such poor condition, that the alleys are not suitable for use and 
should not be found to be improved or paved at this time; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
approve this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council abandons and conveys two existing alleys, each with a width of 
20 feet and a depth of 300 feet, located between the north right-of-way line of East Adams 
Avenue and the south right-of-way line of East Calhoun Avenue, as outlined below: 

 
Tract 1: The alleyway situated in Block 7 of Original Town of Temple, Bell 
County, Texas, recorded in Volume 36, Page 640, of the real property records of 
Bell County, Texas; said alley being a strip of land generally 20 feet by 300 feet 
and running generally in a north-south direction, bounded on its south end by the 
north line of East Adams Avenue and on its north end by the south line of East 
Barton Avenue. THE EAST LINE OF said strip of land is located 110 feet west 
of and parallel to the west line of North 4th Street. 
 
Tract 2: The alleyway situated in Block 7 of Moore’s Addition, City of Temple, 
Bell County, Texas, a plat of record filed in Volume 114, Page 416, of the real 
property records of Bell County, Texas; said alley being a strip of land generally 
20 feet by 300 feet and running generally in a north-south direction, bounded on 
its south end by the north line of East Barton Avenue and on its north end by the 
south line of East Calhoun Avenue. THE EAST LINE OF said strip of land is 
located 110 feet west of and parallel to the west line of North 4th Street. Note that 
the North 237.47 feet of this alleyway is contained within Lot 2, Block 1, First 
United Methodist Church Addition, a plat of record filed in Cabinet D, Slide 
245A, of the real property records of Bell County, Texas. 



 
 3 

 
 
Part 2: The City Council reserves a public drainage and utility easement in the entire 

abandoned alley to protect existing water, wastewater and utility lines, and authorizes the Mayor 
of the City of Temple, Texas, to execute a Deed Without Warranty conveying the rights and 
interests of the City of Temple, Texas, to the abutting property owner, First United Methodist 
Church, which when done, shall be and become a binding act and deed of the City of Temple.  

 
Part 3:  Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code §253.013, the City Council finds that 

(1) the property is not improved, based on the poor condition of the pavement in the alleys, (2) 
ownership of the property does not provide any identifiable positive benefit to the City in 
relation to the City’s current needs, (3) ownership of the property is not likely to provide any 
identifiable positive benefit to the City in relation to the City’s future needs, and (4) the cost of 
maintaining the property is of substantial burden to the City, therefore the City Council approves 
the donation of the abandoned alleyways to the adjacent property owner, which is First United 
Methodist Church. 
 

Part 4: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
December, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 4 

 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ___________, 2013, by 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas. 
 
               
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



 
 
 

 
 

 

 
        

CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Planner  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  A-FY-14-2: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the release of an 
existing 15' public utility easement located between Lots 7 and 8, Block 1, Summerhill PUD 
subdivision, located at 5509 and 5515 Summerhill Lane to allow for the construction of a home. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description releasing an 
existing 15’ public utility easement being approximately 286.07’ length generally located between Lots 
7 & 8, Block 1, Summerhill PUD, addressed at 5509 and 5515 Summerhill Lane as further described 
below and depicted in the referenced attachments.  
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Grady Tyrock on behalf of the property owner Salado Wood LLC, 
has submitted a request for the release of an existing 15’ public utility easement being between Lots 
7 & 8, Summerhill PUD subdivision.  The easement is being released to accommodate the placement 
of a proposed residence on Lots 7 & 8.  
 
The Utility Division within the Public Works/Engineering Department concurred with abandonment 
and confirmed that the existing easement does not contain an active line within the boundaries of the 
requested abandonment.   
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff recommends this easement be released at no cost to the underlying property 
owner, per Section 272.001 of the Texas Local Government Code.     
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Map of 15’ easement location  
Resolution  



mbaker
Callout
Location of Easement

mbaker
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.       
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RELEASING AN EXISTING 15-FOOT PUBLIC UTILITY 
EASEMENT, LOCATED BETWEEN LOTS 7 AND 8, BLOCK 1, 
SUMMERHILL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT SUBDIVISION, 
LOCATED AT 5509 AND 5515 SUMMERHILL LANE; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the applicant, Grady Tyrock, on behalf of the property owner, Salado 
Wood, LLC, requests the City of Temple release an existing 15’ public utility easement 
being approximately 286.07 feet in length and located between lots 7 & 8, Summerhill 
Planned Unit Development subdivision; 
 
 Whereas, the easement is being released to accommodate the placement of a 
proposed residence on lots 7 & 8; 
 
 Whereas, the Utility Division within the Public Works/Engineering Department 
concurs with abandonment and confirmed the existing sewer easement does not contain an 
active line within the boundaries of the requested abandonment; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City of Temple, Texas, releases an existing 15’ public utility easement 
located between lots 7 & 8, block 1, Summerhill Planned Unit Development subdivision, 
located at 5509 and 5515 Summerhill Lane in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, which 
is described by metes and bounds in Exhibit A to this resolution. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ____________, 2014, 
by Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor of the City of Temple, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Texas 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/16/14 

Item #5(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager or the Director of 
Finance to act on behalf of the City to review pricing offers submitted for the supply of electricity, and 
if in the best interest of the City, enter into a contract with the lowest responsible bidder for a period of 
12 to 36 months beginning for electrical meter reads after May 2016. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
  
ITEM SUMMARY:  On November 17, 2011, Council adopted a resolution authorizing an agreement 
with Texas Energy Aggregation, LLC (TEA) of Waco, for consulting services related to the 
procurement of electricity and ongoing energy consulting services.  In addition, Council authorized the 
City Manager or Director of Finance to act on behalf of the City to review pricing obtained by TEA and 
to enter into a contract for the supplying of electricity for electrical meter reads after May 2012.   
 
As recommended by TEA, in December 2012, the City Manager executed a four year purchase 
agreement with Constellation for the supply of electricity for meter reads through May 2016 at a cost 
of $.048402, plus Oncor delivery charges.    
 
TEA has approached the City indicating that they believe that it may be a beneficial time to enter into 
a new electric procurement agreement beyond May 2016.  Current pricing indicates that the City 
could enter into a new 24 month contract beginning for meter reads after May 2016 at a cost savings 
of approximately $85,000 per year over what the City is currently paying.  TEA believes that there is 
pricing risk in the future based on regulatory and legislative discussion with regards to reserve 
margins and changes being debated by the Public Utility Commission that would change electricity 
pricing from an energy market process to a capacity market process, which most likely would lead to 
price increases.  Entering into a new contract now would also offer budget certainly in years beyond 
2016 with regards to electricity pricing.   

 
With guidance from TEA with respect to timing of the bidding, staff is requesting that Council 
authorize the bidding process to secure pricing for City procured electricity for meter reads beginning 
after May 31, 2016.  Bids will be requested for periods ranging from as low as 12 to 36 months.  
 
Based on the bidding results, staff is requesting that Council give the City Manager or the Director of 
Finance the flexibility to negotiate a price and term that is most advantageous to the City.  

 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #5(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

   
The rates for this commodity are typically only valid for a few hours after the bids close.  Accordingly, 
it is necessary to obtain pre-authorization from the City Council to enter into a contract with a vendor. 
Per the Local Government Code 252.022(a)(15), electricity is exempt from the competitive sealed 
bidding rules.  This is relevant based on the fact that TEA will only solicit pricing from REP’s that they 
deem to be reputable and competitive energy providers.   
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   There is no FY 2014 budget impact to this agenda item.  For informational 
purposes, the adopted FY 2014 operational budget includes the following for electric utilities: 
   

General Fund   $ 1,671,575 
  Hotel/Motel Tax Fund        127,400 
  Water & Wastewater Fund   _1,421,980 
        

  Total FY 2014 Budget  $ 3,220,955 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OR THE DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE TO ACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY TO REVIEW PRICING 
OFFERS SUBMITTED FOR THE SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY, AND IF IN 
THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE CITY, ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 
THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR A PERIOD OF 12 TO 36 
MONTHS BEGINNING FOR ELECTRICAL METER READS AFTER MAY 
2016; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, on November 17, 2011 City Council adopted a resolution authorizing an 

agreement with Texas Energy Aggregation, LLC (TEA) of Waco, Texas for consulting services 
related to the procurement of electricity and ongoing energy consulting services; 

 
Whereas, additionally, City Council authorized the City Manager or the Director of 

Finance to act on behalf of the City to review pricing offers obtained by TEA and to enter into a 
contract for the supplying of electricity for electrical meter reads after May 2012; 

 
Whereas, in December, 2012, TEA recommended the City Manager execute a four-year 

purchase agreement with Constellation for the supply of electricity for meter reads through May 
2016 at a cost of $.048402, plus Oncor delivery charges; 

 
Whereas, TEA has approached the City indicating that it may be a beneficial time to 

enter into a new electric procurement agreement beyond 2016 and that current pricing indicates 
the City could see a future cost savings of approximately $85,000 per year over what the City is 
currently paying; 

 
Whereas, with guidance from TEA with respect to timing of the bidding, staff is 

requesting that Council authorize the bidding process to secure pricing for City procured 
electricity for meter reads beginning after May 2016 – after bids are received, staff is requesting 
that Council authorize the City Manager or the Director of Finance the flexibility to negotiate a 
price and term that is most advantageous to the City; 

 
 Whereas, per Local Government Code 252.022(a)(15), electricity is exempt from the 
competitive sealed bidding rules; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager or the Director of Finance to act 
on behalf of the City of Temple in reviewing pricing offers submitted for the supply of 
electricity, and if in the best interests of the City, enter into a contract with the lowest responsible 
bidder for a period of 12-36 months beginning for electrical meter reads after May 2016. 
 

 



2 
 

 
 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
      THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

 _____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

       
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
01/16/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-08:  Consider adopting 
an ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Single-Family Three 
District (SF-3) on 54.097+/- acres and from Agricultural District (AG) to Office Two District (O-2) on 
2.315 ± acres, being part of the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Bell County, Texas, 
located along the north side of Prairie View Road, east of North Pea Ridge Road. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION At its meeting on December 3, 2013, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 6/0 to recommend approval of a zoning change from Agricultural District 
(AG) to Single-Family Three District (SF-3) on 54.097+/- acres and from Agricultural District (AG) to 
Office Two District (O-2) on 2.315 ± acres.  Chair Sears and Commissioner Magaña were absent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on second reading - public hearing and final adoption. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested zone change to SF-3 District for the following reasons: 

1.  Based on staff’s direction from City Council at its November 21, 2013, workshop regarding 
Single Family developments in areas, such as this, with Agricultural/Rural classifications, 
staff anticipates future changes to the Future Land Use and Character Map for Suburban 
Residential uses in this area that would bring the applicant’s request into compliance with 
anticipated development in this area; 

2.  The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan.  Although, Prairie View Road is not built 
to its designated minor arterial capacity and the projected Westfield Boulevard arterial is 
not yet built, both roads are in the design phase for improvements; 

3.  Public facilities are partially available to the subject property.  City utility maps do not show 
sewer lines near the subject property, but sewer service will be included with the future 
Westfield Boulevard extension. 

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested zone change to O-2 District for the following reasons: 
 

1.  Based on staff’s direction from City Council at its November 21, 2013 workshop 
regarding Single Family developments in areas, such as this, with Agricultural/Rural 
classifications, staff anticipates future changes to the Future Land Use and Character 
Map for Suburban Commercial uses in this area along arterials and at intersections 
with other arterials in the area that would bring the applicant’s request into compliance 
with anticipated development in this area; 



 
 
 

 
 

 
01/16/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
2.  The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan;  
3.  Public facilities are partially available to the subject property; and   
4. Infrastructure improvements are planned for this area. 

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Single-
Family Three District (SF-3) on 54.097+/- acres and from Agricultural District (AG) to Office Two 
District (O-2) on 2.315 ± acres.   
 
The subject property is located on the north side of Prairie View Road, east of North Pea Ridge Road.  
Prairie View Road is currently in the preliminary design phase for future improvements to upgrade it 
to its recommended minor arterial classification, per the City’s Thoroughfare Plan.  Those 
improvements are estimated for 2015/2016.  The location of the applicant’s proposed O-2 District 
coincides with the future extension of the minor arterial, Westfield Boulevard.  Construction is 
currently in progress across the street on the south side of Prairie View Road for a future Belton ISD 
middle school.   
 
The City of Temple Comprehensive Plan recommends a classification of Agricultural/Rural for the 
subject property.  It is intended for those areas within the City limits that do not yet have adequate 
public facilities and services and may, therefore have on-site utilities. This classification is meant to 
protect areas in active farm and /or ranch use.  According to Chapter 4, Growth Management & 
Capacity of the Comprehensive Plan, a much larger minimum lot size is recommended than the 
City’s current one-acre minimum to manage premature growth in such areas and maintain the rural 
character.  Residential development at very low intensities is permitted if it is clustered, with 
significant open space preservation.   
 
The SF-3 zoning district permits single-family detached residences and related accessory structures 
and provides single-family development at urban densities in locations well served by public utilities 
and roadways.  The district should have adequate thoroughfare access and be relatively well 
connected with community and neighborhood facilities such as schools, parks, and shopping areas 
and transit services.  
 
Due to densities associated with SF-3 developments, the applicant’s requested SF-3 District 
does not comply with the property’s Agricultural/Rural classification.  The Urban Estates 
District is most suitable for the property’s Agricultural/Rural classification.  The Urban Estates District 
is more ideal for low density residential developments without sewer and is compatible with the 
adjacent rural/residential properties.  The applicant’s requested SF-3 District and O-2 District do 
not comply with the property’s Agricultural/Rural land use classification, but anticipated 
changes will allow Suburban Residential uses and Suburban Commercial uses in the subject 
area. 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
01/16/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 
The following residential uses are permitted by right in the proposed Single Family Three (SF-3) 
zoning district:  
 

 Industrialized housing; 
 Single Family Detached Dwelling; 
 Place of worship; and 
 Fire Station 

 
Prohibited uses include Home for the aged, apartment, patio home, single-family attached dwelling, 
duplex, and townhouse, among others.   
 
Dimensional standards for Single Family Three (SF-3) are as follows: 
 

 Minimum lot size – 4,000 sq ft 
 Minimum Lot Width – 40’ 
 Minimum Lot Depth – 100’ 
 Front Yard Setback – 15’ 
 Side Yard Setback (interior) – 5’ 
 Side Yard Setback (corner yard) – 15 
 Rear Yard Setback – 10’ 

 
The O-2 zoning district permits a variety of low, mid and high rise office development.  Apartments 
are allowed. Buildings in the O-2 District may be built to any legal height.  Office buildings over 40 
feet in height must provide additional yard space. 
 
The O-2 zoning district is intended to allow for office uses in an area that is primarily business 
or high density residential.  This district provides for professional, financial, medical and other office 
services and may include corporate offices and major employment centers.  Uses in this district 
generally have low traffic generation characteristics and do not require high visibility to conduct 
business. 
 
A rezoning from the AG to the O-2 zoning district would allow many uses that would not have been 
allowed before.  Those uses include, but are not limited to, the following: 

Residential uses     Nonresidential uses 
Single Family Attached    Office 
Single Family Detached    Home for the aged 
Townhouse      Hospital 

 Duplex      Hotel or motel 
 Triplex      Restaurant 
 
Prohibited uses include building material sales, contractor storage or equipment yard, mini-storage 
warehouse, welding or machine shop, and alcohol beverage sales for off-premise consumption in 
beer and wine store or package store, among others. 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
01/16/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning  Current Land Use 
 
Site  Agricultural/Rural     AG   Agricultural /Undeveloped Land 
North            Agricultural/Rural        AG   Agricultural /Undeveloped Land 
South            Suburban Residential    AG   Agricultural/Rural Residential/BISD 
East           Agricultural/Rural       AG    Agricultural/Rural Residential  
West          Agricultural/Rural       AG   Agricultural/Undeveloped Land 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Site Conditions Compliance
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 

Character (FLUP) 
The subject property is classified as 
Agricultural/Rural.  The applicant’s requested 
SF-3 District is more characteristic of urban 
densities, and does not comply with the low-
density characteristics of Agricultural/Rural. 
 
The applicant’s requested O-2 District does not 
comply with the Agricultural/Rural classification.

No 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  

Prairie View Road is identified as a proposed 
Minor Arterial, but is not built to its capacity yet.  
Proposed improvements for Prairie View Road 
are in the preliminary design phase, with final 
design phase estimated in September, and 
improvements anticipated in 2015. 
 
Westfield Boulevard, a designated Minor Arterial, 
is projected to bisect the applicant’s property 
along the edge of the applicant’s requested O-2 
District. 
 
Necessary thoroughfare upgrades to support 
the applicant’s requested development 
densities are not currently in place.  

Partially 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

A 12-inch water line runs along the north right-of-
way of Prairie View Road. 
 
The City utility map does not show existing 
sewer lines in the vicinity. 

Partially 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Site Conditions Compliance

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map & 
sidewalks 

The Temple Trails Master Plan reflects a 
proposed Local Connector Trail along the north 
right-of-way of Prairie View Road.   
Per UDC section 8.2.3, sidewalks are required 
on both sides of arterials and one side of 
collector streets. Sidewalks are required to be 
installed at the time of development.  
A 6-foot wide sidewalk is required along both 
sides of arterials, such as Prairie View Road. 

No. 
Sidewalks 

do not exist 
at this time 
in this area. 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Nine notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of December 10, 2013, three notices were returned in favor of the request and no 
notices were returned in opposition.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on November 
20, 2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Surrounding Property Pictures 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map 
Notification Map 
Response Letters 
Ordinance 
  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

AG 

Agricultural / 
Undeveloped 
Land 
 

 

East AG  

Agricultural / 
Rural 
Residential 
 

 

West AG  
Agricultural / 
Undeveloped 
Land 

 

     Prairie View Rd. 

     Prairie View Rd. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South AG  

Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential/ 
BISD  

 

 

North 
LI and 
AG 

Agricultural 
Land/ 
Undeveloped 
Land  

 
 

     Prairie View Rd. 

     Prairie View Rd. 



510

204

7907

7415

75187512

7177

8119

8120

AG

LI

AG

SF-2

LI

2071-A

1082-A

1082-A

2063-A

2057-A

2068-A

2067-A

2067-A

2075-A 2075-A

2059-A

1099-A

2068-A

2059-B

2060-A

2050-A

2063B-A

Z-FY-14-08 AG to Single Family-3 (SF-3) & Office Two (O-2) Prairie View Road

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 200 400
Feet

11/26/2013
City of Temple GIS
tlyerly



Case

PRAIRIE VIEW RD

N 
PE

A R
ID

GE
 R

D

µ

Z-FY-14-08 AG to Single Family-Three (SF-3) & Office-Two (O-2) Prairie View Road

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 100 20050
Feet

11/12/2013
City of Temple GIS



SF-3

O-2









1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-08) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO SINGLE FAMILY THREE DISTRICT (SF-3), ON 
APPROXIMATELY 54.097 ACRES, AND FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO OFFICE TWO DISTRICT (O-2) ON APPROXIMATELY  
2.315 ACRES, BEING PART OF THE BALDWIN ROBERTSON SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO 17, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED ALONG THE 
NORTH SIDE OF PRAIRIE VIEW ROAD, EAST OF NORTH PEA RIDGE 
ROAD; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to 

Single Family Two District (SF-2) on approximately 54.097 acres, and from Agricultural 
District (AG) to Office Two District (O-2) on approximately 2.315 acres, being part of the 
Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Bell County, Texas, located along the north 
side of Prairie View Road, east of North Pea Ridge Road, more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes 
to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

December, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

    
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
01/16/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING -Z-FY-13-36:   Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing amendment to Ordinance 2010-4413, Temple Unified Development Code, 
Article 3 to amend notification requirements; Article 4 to amend dimensional standards; Article 5 to 
add industrial uses; Article 6 to amend TMED landscaping requirements; Article 6 to amend I-35 
Overlay window requirements; Article 6 to amend the 1st and 3rd Street Overlay District; and Article 7 
to amend off street parking requirements.   
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its December 3, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6/0 in accordance with staff recommendation to recommend 
approval of the proposed amendments to the UDC. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments for the following reasons: 

 To conform to state law; 
 To correct errors in the code; and, 
 For clarification of the Unified Development Code. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Staff has prepared the following text amendments to provide conformance to 
State Law, and for correction, clarification, and improvement to certain sections of the Unified 
Development Code.  
 
The purpose of this package of amendments to the text of the Unified Development Code (UDC) is to: 

 Amend mailed notice requirements for public hearing notification of Zoning District Map 
Amendment to conform to H.B. 674; 

 Correct the Nonresidential Dimensional Standards to reduce the maximum height of Office-1 
uses, from an erroneously permitted 45 stories when the UDC was adopted, to 3 stories; 

 Reorganize industrial uses and add industrial uses to the Use Table (TEDC approved); 
 Clarify and provide more options for TMED landscape  street yard planting strip requirements 

to include shrubs and add additional groundcover; 
 Amend I-35 Overlay window requirement to exclude the rear of the building; 
 Add missing section of the 1st and 3rd Overlay District;  
 Clarify off-street parking requirements within 150-feet of a new structure and removes the 

requirement from Article 11 and places it in Article 7;   



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
ARTICLE 3:  ZONING DISTRICT MAP AMENDMENT (ATTACHMENT 1): The proposed 
amendment addresses compliance with Texas H.B. 674. This amendment requires a mailed notice to 
be sent to each school district located in the property of the proposed zoning change that affects 
residential or multifamily zoning. 
 
ARTICLE 4:  ZONING DISTRICTS (ATTACHMENT 2): The proposed amendment addresses the 
maximum height of nonresidential buildings in Office-1 zoning. This amendment reduces the 
maximum height of buildings from 45 stories to 3 stories. 
 
ARTICLE 5: USE STANDARDS (ATTACHMENT 3): The proposed amendment adds Light 
Manufacturing and Distribution Center to the use table. Additionally, it removes specific uses and 
reclassifies them under Light Manufacturing. The amendment also reorganizes currently listed 
industrial uses and places them under the industrial heading. A definition for Light Manufacturing is 
added to Article 11.2 Defined Terms of the UDC. 
 
ARTICLE 6:  TMED, TEMPLE MEDICAL AND EDUCATIONAL (ATTACHMENT 4): The proposed 
amendment clarifies and adds options for landscape requirements for the street yard planting strip. 
The amendment would allow Dwarf Yaupon Holly, Red Yucca, and Mexican Feather Grass as 
allowed shrubs for public frontage types A, B, C, and D, and Purple Wintercreeper is added as an 
additional acceptable groundcover in the Approved Groundcover List. Amendment allows for River 
Rock to be used for landscaping and provides mulch requirements. 
 
ARTICLE 6:  INTERSTATE 35 CORRIDOR OVERLAY (ATTACHMENT 5): The proposed 
amendment removes the requirement for the rear side of a building to have window coverage of a 
minimum of 40 percent and a maximum of 80 percent. All other elevations would still be required to 
have a minimum of 40 percent and up to a maximum of 80 percent of windows. This amendment is 
only applicable to the Freeway Retail/Commercial Sub-District and City Entry Sub-District as the Civic 
Sub-District and Industrial Sub District did not have this requirement. 
 
ARTICLE 6:  1ST AND 3RD OVERLAY DISTRICT (ATTACHMENT 6):  The proposed amendment 
adds tracts that abut or adjoin 3rd street from the intersection of Houston Avenue to the intersection of 
Adams Avenue. Also extends and adopts the same standards of Public Frontage Type A from Adams 
Avenue to Houston Avenue to the added tracts. This section was left out of the 1st and 3rd Street 
Overlay intentionally to apply different standards to the section at a later date. However, after further 
reviewing the section staff found that Public Frontage Type A would be suitable for the section from 
Adams Avenue to Houston Avenue. The section from Avenue B to Adams Avenue has been left out 
of the overlay and will be assigned an additional Public Frontage Type at a later date. 
 
ARTICLE 7:  OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING (ATTACHMENT 7): The proposed 
amendment clarifies off-street parking requirements within 150 feet of a new building or structure. The 
amendment also moves this requirement from Article 11.2 Defined Terms back to Article 7 General 
Development Standards where it was erroneously deleted with the adoption of the UDC. 
 
All of the proposed amendments were reviewed by stakeholders. 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public 
hearing on November 20, 2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: NA 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Attachment 1:  Article 3 Zoning District Map Amendment (Rezoning) 
Attachment 2:  Article 4 Nonresidential Building Height 
Attachment 3:  Article 5 Use Standards 
Attachment 3:  Article 6 TMED 
Attachment 4:  Article 6 I-35 
Attachment 4:  Article 6 1st and 3rd Overlay 
Attachment 5:  Article 7 Off-Street Parking and Loading 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinances 
 



Zoning Change School Notification 
 

1.1.1 Public Notice and Public Hearing 

A. Planning and Zoning Commission 

1. Mailed Notice 

A proposed Zoning District Map Amendment requires notice of the 

public hearing of the Planning and Zoning Commission by mail to all 

owners of real property lying within 200 feet of the property on 

which the change is requested. Such notice must be mailed before 

the 10th day before the date of the public hearing.  

2. School District Notice 

A proposed Zoning District Map Amendment affecting residential or 

multifamily zoning requires notice of the public hearing of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission by mail to each school district in 

which the property for which the change in classification is 

proposed is located. The notice must be mailed before the 10th day 

before the date of the public hearing. 
2.3. Published Notice 

A proposed Zoning District Map Amendment requires notice of the 

public hearing of the Planning and Zoning Commission by 

publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the City. Such 

notice must state the time and place of such hearing and the nature 

of the subject to be considered. The notice must be published 

before the 10th day before the date of the public hearing.  

 

Formatted: Heading 5



Sec. 4.6. Nonresidential Dimensional Standards 

Unless otherwise specified in Sec. 4.4 nonresidential uses must be developed in accordance with the tables below.  

Type of Use A
G

 

U
E

 

S
F

-1
 

S
F

-2
 

S
F

-3
 

S
F

A
-1

 

S
F

A
-2

 

S
F

A
-3

 

T
H

 

2
F
 

M
F

-1
 

M
F

-2
 

M
F

-3
 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
A

 

C
 

L
I 

H
I 

Min. Lot Area 

(sq. ft.) 
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Min. Lot Width 

(ft.) 
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Min. Lot Depth 

(ft.) 
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Min. Front Yard 

Setback(ft.) 
50 50 25 25 15 25 15 15 15 25 25 25 25 25 25* 15 15 See 4.4.4F.I.d* 

Min. Side Yard 

Setback(ft.) 
20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 5 5* 10 10 0* 0* 0* 0* 

Min. Side 

(Corner)Yard 

Setback(ft.) 

15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 10* 10 10 0* 10 10 10 

Min. Rear Yard 

Setback(ft.) 
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 0* 0* 0* 0* 0* 0* 0* 0* 

Max. Building 

Coverage (%) 
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

NA 
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Max. Height 

(stories) 
3 3 2    2 ½   2 ½ 2 ½ 2 ½ 2 ½ 2 ½ 2 ½ 3 4 10 345 ALH 2 ½  3 ALH ALH ALH ALH 

ALH = Any Legal Height not prohibited by other laws     -- = Use not permitted     NA = Use permitted but standard does not apply     * = See Sec. 4.4, Measurements and Special Case 

 



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

Boarding or rooming house            P P  P  P P P P   

Convent or monastery C C               P P P P   

Family or Group Home  L L L L L L L L L L L L L C C C C C C C  5.3.1 

Fraternity or sorority C C         C C C P P  P P P P   

Home for the aged C C         C P P C P  P P P P   

Industrialized housing  P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P    

HUD-Code manufactured home land 

lease community  
C                     5.3.2 

HUD-Code manufactured home 

subdivision  
L                     5.3.2 

Multiple-family dwelling (apartment)           L L L  L    L   5.3.3 

Patio home       L  L L             5.3.4 

Recreational Vehicle Park C                C   C   

Single-family attached dwelling      P P L P P P P  P P P P P P   5.3.5 

Single-family detached dwelling P P P P P P P P P P P P  P P P P P P    

Townhouse         L L  L L  L L L L L L   5.3.6 

Triplex          C P P   P    P    

Two-family dwelling (duplex)           P P P  P P  P P P    

Zero lot line dwelling      P L P P P P P          5.3.7 

NONRESIDENTIAL USES 

AGRICULTURAL USES                       

Animal shelter (public or private) C                 C  P P  

Farm, ranch, orchard or garden P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Greenhouse or nursery (wholesale) P                 P P P P  

Hatchery, fish or shrimp or fish farm C                 C  C C  

Hatchery, poultry C                 P  P P  

Kennel without veterinary hospital  C                C P  P P  

Livestock auction C                 C  C P  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

COMMERCIAL USES                         

Bakery or confectionary (wholesale)                  P P P P  

Bottling works                  P P P P  

Building material sales                  P P P P  

Cabinet shop                  P P P P  

Cleaning, dyeing or laundry plant                  P P P P  

Clothing or similar light manufacturing                   P P P P  

Contractor storage or equipment yard                  P P P P  

Flea market (indoors)                 P P P P P  

Flea Market (outdoors)                   P P P  

Heavy machinery sales, storage and 

repair 
                 P  P P  

Laboratory manufacturing                  P P P P  

Lithographic or print shop                 P P P P P  

Maintenance and repair service for 

building 
                 P P P P  

Milk depot, dairy or ice cream plant                  P  P P  

Mini-storage warehouse                  L  L L 5.3.8 

Open storage of furniture, appliances or 

machinery 
                 P  P P  

Paint shop                  P P P P  

Plumbing shop                 P P P P P  

Storage warehouse                  P P P P  

Upholstery shop                  P P P P P  

Welding or machine shop                  P P P P  

Wholesale storage and sales                  P P P P  

EDUCATION AND INSTITUTIONAL USES                       

Art gallery or museum              P P P P P P P P  

Cemetery, crematorium or mausoleum C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Child care: family home  L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L   5.3.9 

Child care: group day care home  C C C C C C C C C C C C C L L L L L L L L 5.3.9 

Child care: day care center  C C             L L L L L L L 5.3.10 

College, university or seminary  C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C  P P P P   

Community center C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C  

Correctional facility                      C C  

Emergency Shelter                 C C  C   

Fairgrounds or exhibition area C C         C C C P P  P P P P   

Fraternal organization lodge or union hall C C          C C P P  P P P P P  

Halfway house           C C C C C C C C C C   

Hospital  C              P  P P P P   

Military reserve, national guard center                  P  P P  

Place of Worship   P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Pre-school  C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P P P P L L 5.3.11 

School, business              P P P P P P P P  

School, commercial trade                  P P P P  

School, elementary or secondary (public 

or private)  
P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P   

Social Service Shelter C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C  

Substance  Abuse Treatment Facility              C C  C C C C   

Transitional shelter                 C C  C  5.3.12 

INDUSTRIAL USES                        

Animal feedlot C                    C  

Asphalt or concrete batching plant 

(permanent) 
                   C P  

Asphalt or concrete batching plant 

(temporary) 
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P  

Brick kiln or tile plant                     C  

Cement or hydrated lime plant                     C  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Compost operations                    C C 5.3.13 

Distribution Center                    P P  

Laboratory Manufacturing                  P  P P  

Laboratory Medical, dental, scientific or 

research 
C             C P C P P P P P  

Landfill                     C C  

Light Manufacturing                    P P  

Industrial uses other than listed                      C  

Recycling collection location C                L L  L L 5.3.14 

Recycling operation inside a building                    C L 5.3.14 

Recycling operation outside a building                     L 5.3.14 

Slaughterhouse or meat packing plant                    C C  

Smelter, refinery or chemical plant                     C  

Storage Warehouse                  P  P P  

Wholesale Storage and Sales                  P  P P  

Wrecking or Salvage yard                    C C 5.3.24 

NATURAL RESOURCE STORAGE AND 

EXTRACTION USES 
                      

Caliche pit and caliche storage C                 C  C P  

Mining and storage of mining waste C                   C C  

Petroleum or gas well C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C  

Petroleum storage and collection facilities C                 C  C P  

Sand or gravel extraction or storage C                 C  C P  

Top soil, earth, clay or stone extraction or 

storage 
C                 C  C P  

OFFICE USES                       

Office                P P P P P P P P  

Warehouse office                 C P P P P  

OVERNIGHT ACCOMMODATIONS                       



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Hotel or motel            P P  P  P P P P   

Recreational vehicle park C                C   C   

RECREATIONAL & ENTERTAINMENT USES                       

Alcoholic beverage sales for on-premise 

consumption:  
                      

   a) beer and wine only less than 75%   

revenue from alcohol 
               C P P P P P 5.3.15 

   b) all alcoholic beverages 75% or more 

revenue from alcohol 
              C  C C C C C 5.3.15 

   c) all alcoholic beverages >50% & <75% 

revenue from alcohol  
              C C C C C C C 5.3.15 

   d) all alcoholic beverages 50% or less 

revenue from alcohol 
              C C C C P  C C 5.3.15 

Amusement, commercial (indoor)                 P P P P P  

Amusement, commercial (outdoor) C                 P P P P  

Carnival or circus (temporary) P                P P P P P  

Country club  C              P  P P P P P  

Dance hall                 C P P P P  

Day camp for children P P            C C  C C  C   

Drag strip or commercial racing C                 C  C P  

Golf course  C                 P  P P  

Park or playground  P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Playfield or stadium P  C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P P P  

Rodeo grounds C                 P  P P  

Roller or Ice Rink C                P P P P P  

Sexually oriented business 
                    P 

Ordinance 

No. 99-2633 

Shooting range (outdoor) C                   C C 5.3.16 

Swimming pool, commercial C                C P P P P  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Theater or playhouse (indoor)               P P P P P P P  

Theater or playhouse (open or drive-in)                  P  P P  

Zoo  P                C C C P P  

RESTAURANT USES                       

Restaurant (not drive-in)                P P P P P P P  

Restaurant (drive-in)                P  P P P P P  

RETAIL SALES AND SERVICE USES                       

Alcohol beverage sales, off-premise 

consumption, beer and wine store  
               C P P P P P  

Alcohol beverage sales, off-premise 

consumption, package store  
                C C C C C 5.3.17 

Antique shop               P P P P P P P  

Art supply store               P P P P P P P  

Bakery or confectionary shop (retail)               P P P P P P P  

Bank or savings and loan               P P P P P P P P  

Barber shop or beauty shop               P P P P P P P  

Cleaning, pressing and pick up shop               L L L L L L L 5.3.18 

Cleaning plant (commercial)                  P P    

Discount or department store                 P P P P P  

Drug store or pharmacy               P P P P P P P  

Exercise gym   C          C C C  P C P P P P P  

Fabric store                 P P P P P P  

Florist or garden shop               P P P P P P P  

Food or beverage sales store without fuel 

sales  
               P P P P P P  

Furniture and appliance sales and service                 P P P P P  

Greenhouse or nursery (retail)                P P P P P P  

Handcraft and art objects shop               P P P P P P P  

Hardware store or hobby shop                 P P P P P  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Key shop               P P P P P P P  

Kiosk              L L L L L L L L Sec. 5.3.25 

Laboratory medical, dental, scientific or 

research  
C             C P C P P P P P  

Laundry and cleaning (self-service)               P P P P P P P  

Medical appliances, fitting, sales or rental               P P P P P P P  

Mixed media store or newsstand                 P P P P P P P  

Mortuary or funeral home               P  P P P P P  

Office supply store                P P P P P P P  

Pawn shop                 P P P P P  

Pet shop                 P P P P P  

Retail shop, gift, apparel, accessory and 

similar items 
              P P P P P P P  

Retail Sales and Service uses other than 

listed 
               P P P P P P  

Studio: decorator, artist, photographer, 

music, dance or drama   
             P P P P P P P P  

Tool rental (indoors)                 P P P P P  

Tool rental (outside equipment storage)                  P  P P  

Travel agency                P P P P P P P P  

Upholstery shop                  P P P P P  

Veterinary office (no animal hospital)              P P P P P P P P  

Veterinary hospital (no kennels)                  P P P P P  

Veterinary hospital (kennels) C                 C  P P  

TRANSPORTATION AND RELATED USES                       

Airport or landing field C C                C  P P  

Bus station or terminal                  P P P P  

Emergency vehicle service               C P  P P P P P  

Hauling or storage company                  P P P P  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Heliport C C             C   C C P P  

Helistop C C            C C C C  C P P  

Motor freight terminal                  P P P P  

Railroad freight terminal                  P P P P  

Railroad passenger station                  P P P P  

Railroad track right-of-way or team track P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Railroad yard or roundhouse                  P P P P  

Parking lot, trucks, trailers and moving 

vans or trucks   
                 P P P P  

Parking lot or structure (commercial 

autos) 
             C P  C P P P P  

UTILITY AND SERVICE USES                       

Electrical energy generating plant  C                 C C P P  

Electrical substation (high voltage bulk 

power)  
P C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P P P  

Electrical transmission line (high voltage)  P P C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P P P  

Fire station P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Gas line and regulating station P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Personal wireless facility See Sec. 5.4 Personal Wireless Service Facilities  

Radio or television tower or transmitting 

station 
C C            P P P P P P P P  

Shop yard of local, state or federal 

government   
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P P P  

Sewage pumping station P P C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P  

Sewage treatment plant C                   C P  

Utility and Service uses other than listed  C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P  

Telephone exchange-switching-relay or 

transmitting equipment 
P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Utility shop, storage yard or building                  P P P P  



P= Permitted by Right     L = Permitted by Right Subject to Limitations      

[blank cell] = Prohibited     C= Conditional Use Permit 

Specific Use A
G

 

U
E
 

S
F
-1

 

S
F
-2

 

S
F
-3

 

S
F
A

-1
 

S
F
A

-2
 

S
F
A

-3
 

TH
 

2
F
 

M
F
-1

 

M
F
-2

 

M
F
-3

 

O
-1

 

O
-2

 

N
S
 

G
R

 

C
 

C
A

 

LI
 

H
I 

Standards 

Utilities other than listed C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P  

Water stand pipe or elevated storage  P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Water reservoir well or pumping station P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P  

Water treatment plant C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P P P P P  

VEHICLE SALES AND SERVICE USES                       

Auto leasing, rental                 P P P P P  

Auto parts  sales (outdoors)                  C  P P  

Auto storage or auto auction                  C  P P  

Auto sales, new or used outdoor lot                 L L L L L 5.3.19 

Auto sales facility, new or used                  L L L L 5.3.20 

Car wash                 P P P P P  

Boat sales and service                  P P P P  

Fuel sales                 C L L L L L 5.3.21 

Motorcycle or scooter sales and service                 P P P P P  

Trailer, recreational vehicle, portable 

building or manufactured home sales or 

rental   

                 P  P P  

Truck sales                  P P P P  

Truck stop                  P  P P  

Vehicle repair, major                  L L L L 5.3.22 

Vehicle servicing, minor                 L L L L L 5.3.23 

Wrecking or salvage yard                    C C 5.3.24 

[Ord. 2012-4505]; [Ord. 2012-4516] 

 

Sec. 1.1. Defined Terms 

Light Manufacturing. The use of a site for manufacture, predominantly from previously prepared materials, of finished 

products or parts, including processing, fabrication, assembly, treatment, and packaging of the products, and 



incidental storage, sales, and distribution of the products.  This use excludes the basic processing and 

manufacturing of materials or products predominately from extracted or raw materials, storage or manufacturing 

processes that involve flammable or explosive materials, or storage or manufacturing processes that involve 

hazardous or commonly recognized offensive conditions. 
 



TMED Landscaping Requirements 

 

6.3.11 Public Frontage Standards 

D. Public Frontage Landscape Standards 

2. Planting Area 

a. Type A, B, C and D Public Frontage 

The street yard planting strip must be planted in evergreen 

groundcover as shown in the table in subsection 6.3.12C at a 

rate of one one-gallon container per 4 square feet of street 

yard planting area.The street yard planting strip must be 

entirely filled, at the specified spacing, with approved types of 

vegetation, selecting from the variations described as follows:  

i. A single species of evergreen groundcover from the 

approved groundcover list in subsection 6.3.12C for 

TMED, of 4” pot size, spaced every 15” on center. The 

groundcover must be cultivated so that 70% of the 

planting area is covered within 2 years from the time of 

planting. A complete covering of the planting strip with 

mulch a minimum of 3” deep, consisting of fine-ground 

shredded hardwood bark (double ground) is required; or 

ii. A single species of evergreen groundcover from the 

approved groundcover list in subsection 6.3.12C for 

TMED, of 4” pot size, spaced every 15” on center, plus a 

minimum of 2 shrub species, which may be only Dwarf 

Yaupon Holly, Red Yucca, or Mexican Feather Grass, of 3-

gallon container size, spaced every 30” on center. The 

shrubs must be cultivated so that they reach a height of 24 

inches within 2 years from time of planting; or 

iii. A minimum of 2 shrub species, which may be only Dwarf 

Yaupon Holly, Red Yucca, or Mexican Feather Grass, of 3-

gallon container size, spaced every 30” on center. The 

shrubs must be cultivated so that they reach a height of 24 

inches within 2 years from time of planting. 

In addition, for variations outlined in Sections (ii) and (iii), a 

complete covering of mulch a minimum of 3” deep, consisting 



of fine-ground shredded hardwood bark (double ground), 

decomposed granite, or a combination of those materials are 

required. Café River Rock, 1-3” or 3-5” in size, may also be 

used for mulch, but may not cover more than 40% of the 

planting area and must be used in combination with either 

fine-ground shredded hardwood bark or decomposed granite, 

but not both.   

b. Type E Public Frontage 

The street yard planting strip must be planted in living 

evergreen groundcover as shown on the approved groundcover 

list (Subsection 6.3.12C) at a rate of one one-gallon container 

per five square feet of street yard planting area4” container 

spaced every 15” on center or approved sod material as listed 

in General Planting Criteria. If evergreen groundcover is used, a 

complete covering of the planting strip with mulch a minimum 

of 3” deep, consisting of fine-ground shredded hardwood bark 

(double ground) is required.  

 

6.3.12 General Planting Criteria  

A. Approved Groundcover List 

The table below lists the groundcover species that are eligible to fulfill 

the groundcover planting requirements in TMED.   

 Groundcover  

Common Name Scientific Name  Type 

Asian Jasmine Trachelospermum asiaticum Evergreen 

English Ivy  Hedera helix Evergreen 

Liriope  Liriope muscari Evergreen 

Monkey Grass (Mondo Grass)  Ophiopogon japonicus Evergreen 

Purple Wintercreeper Euonymus fortunei Evergreen 

 

 



I-35 Window Requirements 

 

6.7.9 Freeway Retail / Commercial Sub-District 

A. Architectural Design 

2. Exterior Appearance of Buildings and Structures 

f. Windows must be a minimum of 40 percent up to a maximum 

of 80 percent of each building elevation.Buildings must contain 

a minimum of 40 percent and up to a maximum of 80 percent 

of windows on each building elevation, excluding the rear 

elevation. 

 

6.7.10 Freeway Retail / Commercial Sub-District 

D. Architectural Design 

2. Exterior Appearance of Buildings and Structures 

g. Windows must be a minimum of 40 percent up to a maximum 

of 80 percent of each building elevation.Buildings must contain 

a minimum of 40 percent and up to a maximum of 80 percent 

of windows on each building elevation, excluding the rear 

elevation. 

 

 



1st and 3rd Overlay 

 

Sec. 1.1. 1st and 3rd Overlay District 

1.1.1 Boundary 

The 1st and 3rd Overlay District is defined as tracts of land that abut or 

adjoin South 1st Street from the north intersection of West Avenue M to the 

south intersection of West Avenue E and from the north intersection of West 

Avenue E and South 3rd Street to the north intersection of South 3rd Street 

and West Avenue D, generally following the curve where South 1st and South 

3rd join and tracts of land that abut or adjoin North 3rd Street from the north 

intersection of Houston  Adams Avenue to the south intersection with of West 

Bellaire North and North 3rd Street. 

Any property that is consolidated into property that meets the above criteria 

or is shown on the following map must also conform to the Overlay 

Standards. 

The 1st and 3rd Overlay District is more specifically shown in the map below, 

which is adopted by reference and declared a part of this UDC. 



 



1.1.1 Public Frontage Standards 

A. Applicability 

The 1st and 3rd Overlay District public frontage standards in this Section 

apply to all zoning districts and uses. 

B. Public Frontage 

1. Public frontage is generally the space between the existing or 

proposed back-of-curb and the property line.  

2. Total public frontage depth is measured from back-of-curb. If 

existing right-of-way does not accommodate all requirements, 

private property must be used to account for the additional required 

depth. 

3. Raised curb and gutter installation is required. 

4. The table below establishes public frontage type and assigns 

standards to each public frontage type. 

 

 

Public 

Frontage 

Type Location 

On-Street 

Parking 

Permitted 

Typical Public 

Frontage 

Depth (ft.) 

Sidewalk 

Width (ft.)  

Planting Strip and 

Buffer Zone 

(ft.) Behind Sidewalk 

A 

South 1st Street 

from Avenue M to 

Avenue E and South 

3rd Street from 

Avenue E to 

Avenue D and from 

Adams Avenue to 

Houston Avenue 

No 12’ 
8’ Sidewalk 

Back of Curb 
4’  

B 

North 3rd Street 

Houston to South 

Intersection with 

Munroe Avenue 

No 15’ 

5’ Sidewalk 

8’ From back of 

Curb 

2’ or greater  

C 

North 3rd Street 

North Intersection 

with Munroe to 

West Bellaire 

North 

No 14’ 
8’ Sidewalk 

Back of Curb 
4’ or greater 

 



150’ Parking Rule 

 

7.5.3 Parking Plan Required 

Off-street parking must be provided on the lot, an immediately adjacent lot, 

or on a lot within 150 feet of the building or structure, in accordance to the 

Required Parking Ratios and design standards. Parking must be located 

within a zoning district that allows the use for which the parking is intended. 

Shared parking must provide parking in an amount equal to the total of the 

Required Parking Ratios for all uses. A parking plan must be submitted with 

the Building Permit application demonstrating compliance with the standards 

of this Section. 

 

 

Sec. 11.2.    Defined Terms 

Off-Street Parking Incidental to Principal Use. Off-street parking spaces provided in 

accordance with the requirements specified by this ordinance and located on the 

lot or tract occupied by the main use or within 150 feet of such lot or tract and 

located within the same zoning district as the main use or in an adjacent 

parking district. 

 

 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 6: Z-FY-13-36 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on an 

amendment to Ordinance 2010-4413, Temple Unified Development Code, Article 3 to 
amend notification requirements; Article 4 to amend dimensional standards; Article 5 
to add industrial uses; Article 6 to amend TMED Landscaping requirements; Article 6 
to amend I-35 Overlay window requirements; Article 6 to amend the 1st and 3rd 
Overlay District; and Article 7 to amend off street parking requirements. 

Ms. Foutz stated the amendments being presented have been taken through various 
stakeholders including Temple Area Builders Association (TABA) and Temple Economic 
Development Corporation (TEDC). These amendments are being brought forward in order to 
conform to state law, add in a requirement for notification to surrounding school districts for 
zone changes (H.B. 674), and to provide corrections, clarifications, and limited improvements 
to the Code. These corrections, clarifications and improvements include an error on maximum 
building height for O1 zoning, reorganize industrial uses and add industrial uses to the land 
use table, clarify and add options for TMED landscaping requirements, eliminate window 
requirement for the rear of buildings in the I-35 Overlay, add in a missing section on 1st and 
3rd Street Overlay, and to clarify off-street parking requirements to require parking within 150 
feet.. 

The first amendment relates to Article 3 which requires school district notification of residential 
rezonings and multi-family rezonings. There are possibly four school districts that would be 
notified. 

In Article 4 there was an error in the Dimensional Standards for O1 where the current 
maximum height allowed for 45 stories and should reflect the maximum height to only three 
stories. 

Ms. Foutz did point out that O2 still allows any legal height. 

The Industrial Uses in Article 5 needs to have uses added to the table for Light Manufacturing 
and Distribution Center. Staff would propose to remove milk depot, dairy or ice cream plant, 
bottling plant, and clothing or similar light manufacturing and add them collectively under Light 
Manufacturing category.  

Staff would like to move all of the industrial uses to the Industrial Use heading table. 

Staff has received complaints about required materials under Article 6, TMED, which involves 
required landscaping materials. Staff would like to add alternative options for plantings and 
allowing river rock to be used which would expand the options. 



In Article 6, the current I-35 Overlay standards require a minimum of 40 percent of the rear 
side of a building to be windows. The proposed amendment would eliminate the requirement 
for rear windows in the I35 Overlay as most uses cannot facilitate rear windows. 

In Article 6 for the 1st and 3rd Street Overlay, the proposed amendment would add the section 
of 3rd street between Adams Avenue and Houston Avenue to be included in the 1st and 3rd 
Overlay District. The added section is classified as Frontage Type A. The added section was 
left out intentionally to create a separate frontage type; however, further review found that 
Type A frontage type was suitable for the section and Staff would like to fill the gap. 

Off-Street parking in Article 7 proposal would move the requirement from Article 11 to Article 7 
of the UDC. Currently all of the off street off-site parking requirements are located in the 
Definitions Section which has created confusion. The proposed amendment clarifies current 
off-street parking requirements within 150 feet. 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to the UDC for the following 
reasons: 

To conform to state law; 
To correct errors in the code; and, 
For clarification of the code. 

Vice-Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Pitts made a motion to approve Item 6, Z-FY-13-36, and Commissioner 
Johnson made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0) 
Chair Sears and Commissioner Magaña absent, one vacancy 
 



  1

 ORDINANCE NO.  ___________ 
 

[Z-FY-13-36] 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO ORDINANCE NO. 2010-
4413, THE “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC),” ARTICLE 3 TO 
AMEND NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS, ARTICLE 4 TO AMEND 
DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS, ARTICLE 5 TO ADD INDUSTRIAL 
USES, ARTICLE 6 TO AMEND TMED LANDSCAPING 
REQUIREMENTS, I-35 OVERLAY WINDOW REQUIREMENTS AND 
THE 1ST AND 3RD STREET OVERLAY DISTRICT, AND ARTICLE 7 TO 
AMEND OFF STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

 Whereas, on December 16, 2010, the City of Temple adopted Ordinance No. 2010-
4413, the “Unified Development Code,” which is a consolidated set of land development 
regulations related to zoning, platting and site design; 
 
 Whereas, at its December 3, 2013 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
voted to amend Articles 3, 4, 5, 6 and Article 7 and to recommend approval of certain 
amendments to the Unified Development Code - the recommended changes are as follows: 
 

 ARTICLE 3:  ZONING DISTRICT MAP AMENDMENT: The proposed amendment 
addresses compliance with Texas H.B. 674. This amendment requires a mailed notice 
to be sent to each school district located in the property of the proposed zoning 
change that affects residential or multifamily zoning. 

 
 ARTICLE 4:  ZONING DISTRICTS: The proposed amendment addresses the 

maximum height of nonresidential buildings in Office-1 zoning. This amendment 
reduces the maximum height of buildings from 45 stories to 3 stories. 
 

 ARTICLE 5:  USE STANDARDS: The proposed amendment adds Light 
Manufacturing and Distribution Center to the use table. Additionally, it removes 
specific uses and reclassifies them under Light Manufacturing. The amendment also 
reorganizes currently listed industrial uses and places them under the industrial 
heading. A definition for Light Manufacturing is added to Article 11.2 Defined Terms 
of the UDC. 
 

 ARTICLE 6:  TMED, TEMPLE MEDICAL AND EDUCATIONAL:  The proposed 
amendment clarifies and adds options for landscape requirements for the street yard 
planting strip. The amendment would allow Dwarf Yaupon Holly, Red Yucca, and 
Mexican Feather Grass as allowed shrubs for public frontage types A, B, C, and D, 
and Purple Wintercreeper is added as an additional acceptable groundcover in the 



  2

Approved Groundcover List. Amendment allows for River Rock to be used for 
landscaping and provides mulch requirements. 
 

 ARTICLE 6:  INTERSTATE 35 CORRIDOR OVERLAY:  The proposed 
amendment removes the requirement for the rear side of a building to have window 
coverage of a minimum of 40 percent and a maximum of 80 percent. All other 
elevations would still be required to have a minimum of 40 percent and up to a 
maximum of 80 percent of windows. This amendment is only applicable to the 
Freeway Retail/Commercial Sub-District and City Entry Sub-District as the Civic 
Sub-District and Industrial Sub District did not have this requirement. 

 
 ARTICLE 6: 1ST AND 3RD OVERLAY DISTRICT:  The proposed amendment adds 

tracts that abut or adjoin 3rd street from the intersection of Houston Avenue to the 
intersection of Adams Avenue. Also extends and adopts the same standards of Public 
Frontage Type A from Adams Avenue to Houston Avenue to the added tracts. This 
section was left out of the 1st and 3rd Street Overlay intentionally to apply different 
standards to the section at a later date. However, after further reviewing the section 
staff found that Public Frontage Type A would be suitable for the section from Adams 
Avenue to Houston Avenue. The section from Avenue B to Adams Avenue has been 
left out of the overlay and will be assigned an additional Public Frontage Type at a 
later date. 
 

 ARTICLE 7: OFFSTREET PARKING AND LOADING:  The proposed amendment 
clarifies off-street parking requirements within 150 feet of a new building or 
structure. The amendment also moves this requirement from Article 11.2 Defined 
Terms back to Article 7 General Development Standards where it was erroneously 
deleted with the adoption of the UDC. 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to approve this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council approves an amendment to Ordinance No. 2010-4413, the 
“Unified Development Code,” by amending Articles 3, 4, 5, 6 and Article 7, to recommend 
approval of certain amendments to the Unified Development Code - the recommended 
changes are as follows: 
 

 ARTICLE 3:  ZONING DISTRICT MAP AMENDMENT: The proposed amendment 
addresses compliance with Texas H.B. 674. This amendment requires a mailed notice 
to be sent to each school district located in the property of the proposed zoning 
change that affects residential or multifamily zoning. 

 
 ARTICLE 4:  ZONING DISTRICTS: The proposed amendment addresses the 

maximum height of nonresidential buildings in Office-1 zoning. This amendment 
reduces the maximum height of buildings from 45 stories to 3 stories. 
 



  3

 ARTICLE 5:  USE STANDARDS: The proposed amendment adds Light 
Manufacturing and Distribution Center to the use table. Additionally, it removes 
specific uses and reclassifies them under Light Manufacturing. The amendment also 
reorganizes currently listed industrial uses and places them under the industrial 
heading. A definition for Light Manufacturing is added to Article 11.2 Defined Terms 
of the UDC. 
 

 ARTICLE 6:  TMED, TEMPLE MEDICAL AND EDUCATIONAL:  The proposed 
amendment clarifies and adds options for landscape requirements for the street yard 
planting strip. The amendment would allow Dwarf Yaupon Holly, Red Yucca, and 
Mexican Feather Grass as allowed shrubs for public frontage types A, B, C, and D, 
and Purple Wintercreeper is added as an additional acceptable groundcover in the 
Approved Groundcover List. Amendment allows for River Rock to be used for 
landscaping and provides mulch requirements. 
 

 ARTICLE 6:  INTERSTATE 35 CORRIDOR OVERLAY:  The proposed 
amendment removes the requirement for the rear side of a building to have window 
coverage of a minimum of 40 percent and a maximum of 80 percent. All other 
elevations would still be required to have a minimum of 40 percent and up to a 
maximum of 80 percent of windows. This amendment is only applicable to the 
Freeway Retail/Commercial Sub-District and City Entry Sub-District as the Civic 
Sub-District and Industrial Sub District did not have this requirement. 

 
 ARTICLE 6: 1ST AND 3RD OVERLAY DISTRICT:  The proposed amendment adds 

tracts that abut or adjoin 3rd street from the intersection of Houston Avenue to the 
intersection of Adams Avenue. Also extends and adopts the same standards of Public 
Frontage Type A from Adams Avenue to Houston Avenue to the added tracts. This 
section was left out of the 1st and 3rd Street Overlay intentionally to apply different 
standards to the section at a later date. However, after further reviewing the section 
staff found that Public Frontage Type A would be suitable for the section from Adams 
Avenue to Houston Avenue. The section from Avenue B to Adams Avenue has been 
left out of the overlay and will be assigned an additional Public Frontage Type at a 
later date. 
 

 ARTICLE 7: OFFSTREET PARKING AND LOADING:  The proposed amendment 
clarifies off-street parking requirements within 150 feet of a new building or 
structure. The amendment also moves this requirement from Article 11.2 Defined 
Terms back to Article 7 General Development Standards where it was erroneously 
deleted with the adoption of the UDC. 

 
said amendments being more fully described in Exhibits A, B, C, D, E, F and Exhibit G, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 



  4

clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day of 
January, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

   

            
CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM       

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-06: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Two Family District (2F) to PD (O1) on a portion of Lot 1 
and a portion of Lot 3, Block E, Bentley Bellview Addition, addressed as 2003 West Avenue H.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its December 3, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6/0 in accordance with staff recommendation to recommend 
approval of the proposed zoning change from Two Family District to PD(O1). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the zoning change from 2F to PD(O1) for the following reasons: 
 

1. The request is compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 
2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare, Plan;  
3. Public facilities are available to serve the property; and, 
4. The request complies with the Temple Trails Master Plan. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a zone change from Two Family to Planned 
Development (Office One) for the purpose of expanding the parking area and operating a General 
Medical Clinic. The Development will occur on a 0.496 acre lot with an approximately 1,400 square 
foot clinic. Existing structures will be renovated and remain on the site with no additions. A 1,008 
square foot paved parking area will be constructed to meet the Off Street Parking requirements in 
UDC Section 7.5. No other structures will be built. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES:The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP      Zoning  Current Land Use 
 
Site  Neighborhood Conservation  2F/O1   Single Family Residential 
North            Auto Urban Commercial   GR   Office  
South            Neighborhood Conservation  2F                Single Family Residential  
East           Neighborhood Conservation  2F    Church    
West          Neighborhood Conservation  2F   Single Family Residential  



 
 
 

 
 

 
01/16/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan Yes

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The Land Use and Character Map identifies this area as Neighborhood Conservation which is 
designed to maintain the neighborhood character. Nonresidential uses are allowed if such a use is 
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.  
 
As the applicant is not constructing additional structures nor adding on to existing structures, the 
proposed Planned Development would maintain the neighborhood character. Directly north of the 
site, across Avenue H, the area is identified as Auto Urban Commercial and zoned General Retail. 
Both blocks adjacent to the site to the east and west currently have nonresidential uses. As the 
surrounding area and corridor currently has nonresidential uses and the proposed use of a General 
Medical Clinic is a low intensity use, staff is of the opinion that the nonresidential use is compatible 
with the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The Thoroughfare Plan identifies Avenue H as a Major Arterial and 39th Street as a Local Street. Both 
thoroughfares provided sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed use. Nonresidential uses 
are a more appropriate use on an arterial thoroughfare than a residential use and the Planned 
Development is compatible with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
A 6” water line runs along Avenue H at the frontage of the property and an additional 2” water line 
runs adjacent to the property along 39th Street. A 6” sewer line runs along the rear of the property and 
an 8” sewer line runs along Avenue H at the frontage of the property. These facilities are sufficient for 
the proposed use.  
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
Avenue H currently has 4’ sidewalks at the frontage of the site and no trails are currently planned on 
or near the site. A 6’ sidewalk is required along Avenue H as it is a Major Arterial, however the 
applicant would only be required to widen the sidewalk to 6’ if renovations are over 50% of the 
appraised value of the site per UDC Section 7.2. 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 20 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing was sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of case Z-FY-14-06 as required by state law and local ordinance.  
As of November 26, 2013, 2 notices were returned in support and 1 notice was returned in opposition 
of the requested zone change. 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Surrounding Properties and Uses 
Zoning and Location Map 
Site Plan 
Surrounding Property Owner Notification Map 
Notification Responses 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 
 

 

  



 

Subject Property view from Ave. H; Vacant, 2F Zoning 

 

Subject Property view from 39th Street 



 

South: Single Family Use; 2F Zoning 

 

East: Church, 2F Zoning 



 

North: Office & Pregnancy Center, GR Zoning 

 

West: Single Family Residential, 2F Zoning 



(

(

(

(

(

E

F

1

3

4

1

2

6

3

4

1

2

5

6

3

4

1

2

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

7

8

9

10
11

12

13
14

15

2F

HI

NS

GR

MF-2

O-1

GRO-1
GR

NS

GR

80
8

70
3

80
8

81
4

81
8

82
0

90
2

90
6

90
8

91
2

91
6

81
7

81
9

90
1

90
5

90
9

91
3

81
0

90
0

90
2

90
6

80
1

80
5

80
9

81
3

81
7

81
9

90
1

90
7

90
9

91
3

80
2

80
6

81
8

80
7

81
1

90
5

80
3

81
3

81
7

70
1

1911

2109

2201

2005
2003 1806

1808
1810

1904
1908

1910
1912

1918

2010
2012

2018
2020

2102

2116

2118
2120

O-1
PD 80

2F

HI

2F

NS

GR

MF-2

O-1

GRO-1
GR

NS

O-1

GR

O-1

2F
CP 12

O-1
CP 59

W H AVE
S 4

1S
T S

T

S 3
9T

H 
ST

S 4
3R

D 
ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

W H AVE

S 4
1S

T S
T

Z-FY-14-06 Zoning Map 2003 W. Ave. H

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1
0 100 20050

Feet
1Case

Zoning
Subdivisions
Parcel

Outblocks
Addresses

( Blocks
Lots 11/26/2013

City of Temple GIS



New

Asphalt
Existing Asphalt

New

Concrete

Existing

All structures are existing except the area of Red Rectangle. Measures 56 feet by 18 feet.



80
8

81
4

81
8

82
0

90
2

90
6

90
8

91
2

81
0

90
0

90
2

80
1

80
5

80
9

81
3

81
7

81
9

90
1

90
7

90
9

91
3

80
2

80
6

81
8

80
7

81
1

90
5

81
3

81
7

1911

2109

2005
2003

1908
1910

1912

1918

2010

2012

¬«E

¬«F

6

3

4

1

2

5

6

3

4

1

2

7

5

3

2

1

W H AVE

S 4
1S

T S
T

S 3
9T

H 
ST

S 3
7T

H 
ST

W H AVE

S 4
1S

T S
T

Z-FY-14-06 Rezone 2F to PD (O1) 2003 W. Avenue H

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1
Case
200' Buffer
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number0 200 400

Feet
11/12/2013
City of Temple GIS
pmelton











EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 2: Z-FY-14-06 – Hold a public meeting to consider and recommend action on a zone 

change from Two Family District (2F) to Planned Development (Office One) on a 
portion of Lot 1 and a portion of Lot 3, Bentley Bellview Addition, addressed as 2003 
West Avenue H. 

Ms. Kim Foutz, Acting Director of Planning, stated there are two sections to the subject 
property. The first portion (with a flag lot) is part of a larger tract already zoned Office One 
(O1). The applicant is proposing a general medical clinic, 1,400 square feet on almost one-half 
acre. The other portion is zoned Two Family (2F). There are two existing single family homes 
which will be renovated and converted into the medical office and no other structures will be 
added. There is an existing parking lot that will be expanded by seven spaces. The front of the 
structure faces Avenue H and the side faces 39th Street. 

Surrounding properties include single family residence with 2F zoning to the south, a church 
with 2F zoning to the east, across Avenue H is office use, and to the west is a single family use 
with 2F zoning. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the area as Neighborhood Conservation 
which should retain the existing neighborhood character. Compatible nonresidential uses are 
allowed. Staff believed the character would be maintained as there are no new buildings being 
constructed and limited additional parking is required. There are nonresidential uses (mostly 
office) up and down Avenue H.  

The Thoroughfare Plan designates Avenue H as a major arterial. Major arterials usually have 
nonresidential more than residential and 39th Street is designated as a local street. There are 
adequate utilities serving the site with two six inch water lines and an eight-inch sanitary sewer 
line. 

There are four foot sidewalks in place along Avenue H. Six foot sidewalks are required; 
however, no changes or renovations over 50 percent are being made which would normally 
trigger that portion of the Ordinance.  

Thirteen notices were mailed out with two returned in favor and one in disapproval. 

Staff recommends approval of this request because it is compatible with the Future Land Use 
and Character Map, the Thoroughfare Plan, and the Trails Master Plan. 

Vice-Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

Dr. Jerry Baskerville (retired), 4500 Franklin Road, Troy, Texas, stated he was the father of the 
applicant, Michael Baskerville. Mr. Baskerville thanked the Staff and Commissioner for their 
attention and to answer any questions. 



There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Jones made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-14-06, as presented and 
Commissioner Pitts made a second. 

Motion passed: (6:0) 
Chair Sears and Commissioner Magaña absent, one vacancy 

 

 



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-06) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM TWO FAMILY 
DISTRICT (2F) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OFFICE ONE (PD-O1) 
ON A PORTION OF LOT 1 AND A PORTION OF LOT 3, BLOCK E, 
BENTLEY BELLVIEW ADDITION, LOCATED AT 2003 WEST AVENUE 
H; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Two Family District (2F) to 

Planned Development-Office One (PD-O1) on a portion of lot 1 and a portion of lot 3, 
block E, Bentley Bellview Addition, and located at 2003 West Avenue H, more fully 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the 
City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day 

of January, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
     

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

01/16/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING –PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-07:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Two-Family District (2-F) on 
17.95 +/- acres, being part of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located 
on the west side of Old Waco Road and the east side of South Pea Ridge Road, east of Westwood 
Estates. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION At its meeting on December 3, 2013, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission did not vote to recommend approval of the applicant’s requested zoning change 
to Two-Family District (2-F) due to lack of a second motion.  Chair Sears and Commissioner Magaña 
were absent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested zone change to 2-F District for the following reasons: 

1.  The request does not comply with the Future Land Use and Character Map;  
2.  Although the request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan, Old Waco Road is not built to 

major arterial capacity; and 
3.  Public facilities are available to the subject property. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests a zone change from Agricultural District (AG) to Two 
Family District (2-F).  During the December 3, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the 
applicant explained that he thought he had also applied for a zone change from Agricultural District 
(AG) to Office Two District (O-2) on along the property’s street frontage along Old Waco Road.  Upon 
review of the application during the meeting, staff informed the Commission the application was only 
for a zone change to Two-Family District (2-F) as presented by staff.  The applicant agreed to 
proceed with the Commission’s decision on the case as presented by staff.  Commissioner Staats 
motioned to approve the applicant’s requested zone change from Agricultural District (AG) to Two 
Family District (2-F), but the motion failed for lack of a second. 
 
According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, the property’s Suburban Residential land 
use classification on the west half of the applicant’s property is characterized by mid-size single 
family lots, allowing for greater separation between dwellings and more emphasis on green space 
versus streets and driveways.  The applicant’s requested 2F District does not comply with the 
property’s Suburban Residential land use classification. 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
The property’s Suburban Commercial land use classification on the east half of the applicant’s 
property is appropriate for office, retail and services uses adjacent to and abutting residential 
neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value is to be 
promoted, such as at “gateways” and high-profile corridor locations.  Therefore, it limits the floor area 
ratio and requires a higher landscape surface ratio than in the Auto Urban Commercial district.  To 
maintain the suburban character and achieve higher quality development, design standards should 
be integrated into the zoning ordinance.  The applicant’s requested 2F District does not comply 
with the Suburban Commercial land use classification. 
 
The 2F zoning district permits single-family to duplex housing, with approximately seven units per 
acre possible, and is designed to accommodate single-family and duplex dwellings as an 
intermediate classification allowing an orderly transition from singe family neighborhoods to higher 
densities of residential use. 
 
A rezoning from the AG to the 2F zoning district would allow several uses by right that would not have 
been allowed before.  Those uses include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single Family Detached   Place of worship 
Single-Family Attached   Child care 
Duplex     Community center 

 Triplex  
     
Prohibited uses include townhouse, HUD-Code manufactured home land lease community or 
subdivision, Patio home, apartment, recreational vehicle park, and retail and commercial uses, 
among others. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning  Current Land Use 
 
Site  Suburban Residential     AG  Undeveloped Land 
  Suburban Commercial 
North            Suburban Residential     SF-3  Undeveloped Land 
  Suburban Commercial O-2 
South            Agricultural/Rural & 

Suburban Commercial      AG & GR        Agricultural/Rural Residential  
East           Suburban Commercial AG    Agricultural/Rural Residential  
West          Suburban Residential      AG  Agricultural/Rural Residential 

 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Site Conditions Compliance
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 

Character (FLUP) 
The east half of the subject property is identified 
as Suburban Commercial.  Although the 
applicant’s property along Old Waco Road is not 
included in this zoning request, the applicant’s 
requested 2F District adjacent to the buffer area 
does not comply with this recommendation.   
 

The west half of the property is identified as 
Suburban Residential. The applicant’s 
requested 2F District is too dense and does 
not comply with this recommendation. 

No 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  

Old Waco Road, to the east of the subject, is 
identified as a proposed major arterial.   
 

The applicant proposes to leave a strip of land 
zoned AG as a buffer between the proposed 2F 
site and Old Waco Road.  This complies with 
UDC Section 8.2.6 Design Standards/Lots: Lots 
for residential use must not front on or be 
contiguous at a side lot line to major 
thoroughfares or expressways. 
 

The southwest corner of the applicant’s property 
fronts South Pea Ridge Road, which is classified 
as a collector.  Collectors are appropriate for 
connecting to local streets within residential 
subdivisions.

No, Old 
Waco Road 
is not built to 

Major 
Arterial 

capacity. 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

An 18-inch water line runs along the west side of 
the property.  A 14-inch water line runs along 
the north property line.  A 24-inch water line 
runs along the west right-of-way of Old Waco 
Road. 
An 8-inch and 12-inch sewer line exists along 
the east right-of-way of Old Waco Road.  

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map & 
sidewalks 

The Temple Trails Master Plan reflects a 
proposed 10’ Citywide Spine Trail along the east 
right-of-way of Old Waco Road.   
Per UDC section 8.2.3, sidewalks are required 
on both sides of arterials and one side of 
collector streets. Sidewalks are required to be 
installed at the time of development. The 
combined sidewalk and trail will be constructed 
as part of the overall Old Waco Road 
improvement project. 
 

A 4-foot wide sidewalk is required along 
collectors, such as South Pea Ridge Road. 
 

No, the 
sidewalks do 
not exist at 
this time. 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Dimensional standards for development in the 2-F District are as 
follows: 
 

 Minimum lot size – 4,000 Sq. Ft. 
 Minimum Lot Width – 60 feet 
 Minimum Lot Depth – 100 feet 
 Front Yard Setback – 25 feet 
 Side Yard Setback  –  5 feet 
 Side Yard Setback (corner)  – 15 feet  
 Rear Yard Setback –  10 feet  

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:Seven notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of January 6, 2014, one notice was returned in favor of the request and three notices 
were returned in opposition.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on November 
20, 2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Surrounding Property Pictures 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map 
Notification Map 
Response letters 
Ordinance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

AG 
Undeveloped 
Land 
 

 

 

East AG  
Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

 

     S Pea Ridge Rd. 

     Old Waco Rd. 

     Old Waco Rd. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

West 
AG and 
SF-3 

Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

 

South AG  
Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential  

 

 
     S Pea Ridge Rd. 

     Old Waco Rd. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

North 
SF3 
and  
O-2 

Undeveloped 
Land  

 
 



1627

1719

1733

1807

1810

7619
7627

19
09

20
15

18
67

20
44

19
30

17
20

19
55AG

SF-3SF-3 O-2

SF-1
¬«1

3

4

5

6

7

8

7

8

7

6

3

4

5

10
11

131415

2813-I

2522-A

5410-A

2543-A

2543-B

2542-A

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

Z-FY-14-07 AG to 2F Old Waco Road

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 200 400

Feet
11/25/2013
City of Temple GIS
tlyerly



AG

SF-3SF-3 O-2

SF-1

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

µ

Z-FY-14-07 AG to 2F Old Waco Road

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural
Parcel
Zoning

0 100 20050
Feet

11/25/2013
City of Temple GIS



7 Notices Mailed

1 Agree         A

3 Disagree    D

D

D

A

D











1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-07) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO TWO FAMILY DISTRICT (2F) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 17.95 ACRES, BEING A PART OF THE NANCY 
CHANCE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF OLD WACO ROAD AND THE EAST 
SIDE OF SOUTH PEA RIDGE ROAD, EAST OF WESTWOOD ESTATES; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to 

Two Family District (2F) on approximately 17.95 acres, being a part of the Nancy 
Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located on the west side of Old 
Waco Road and the east side of South Pea Ridge Road, east of Westwood Estates, more 
fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the 
City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day 

of January, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
     

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

01/16/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 6 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Planner    
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-09: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Neighborhood Services (NS) 
on 0.982 +/- acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract 5, City of Temple, Bell County, 
Texas located at 6040 West Adams Avenue. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its December 3, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 5 to 1, in accordance with the applicant’s request, to 
recommend approval of the request from AG to NS. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 

Based on the following discussion, despite the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation 
of approval, staff still recommends disapproval of a Zoning Change from AG to NS for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The proposed zoning does not comply with the Future Land Use Map which identifies 
this area as Auto-Urban Residential and due in part to the compatibility of some NS 
uses with the proximity of the neighborhood and existing NS in the immediate area have 
developed with O-1 uses; and 

2. Per UDC Section 4.3.16., the NS should be located convenient to residential areas in 
locations such as the corner of a local road or a collector that serves the neighborhood.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan 
(FLUP), the subject property is within the designated Auto Urban Residential District. “The Auto 
Urban Residential District is for smaller single-family lots similar to the range of lot sizes available in 
the City’s current SF and SFA zoning districts. The current 7,500 square foot minimum in SF-1 could 
serve as a baseline for conventional single-family detached dwellings in this district.”  Buffering is 
needed from other less intensive uses within the district to ensure their compatibility. The subject 
property is vacant and undeveloped however the surrounding area is developed with single-family  

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
01/16/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 6 

 

detached homes to the north and toward the southwest both of which are within the Auto-Urban 
Residential District. Due to restrictions per UDC Section 7.2.4, a residential use is prohibited to take 
direct access from an arterial and could be problematic if the property is developed with residential 
uses.  Residential access would be addressed during platting.  While it is not known for certain how 
the property will ultimately be developed, it is anticipated that the property will be developed with non-
residential uses. There are several properties to the west and to the southwest which do contain non-
residential uses that are within the Auto-Urban Residential District. These properties are currently 
within the Neighborhood Services (NS) and General Retail (GR) zoning districts.  Additionally, the 
property immediately to the west, also owned by the Fettigs, is zoned NS and the property to the east 
is zoned Office-One District (O-1). These properties are currently undeveloped and have been 
incorporated into a final plat which is currently in review by staff. 
 
This undeveloped land directly abuts the south edge of Kasberg III subdivision.  It is commonly 
referred to as Outblock 1092-A, located east of some existing office and neighborhood service 
businesses adjacent to Beaver Loop. An asphalt paved trail/sidewalk exists through the W. Adams 
right-of-way, along the property street frontage.  Agricultural land and single family homes on acreage 
are further south, across W. Adams Ave. 
The property is in between the NS to the west, and the O-1 to the east. The applicant proposes to 
extend the NS to this property for anticipated non-residential development.    
 
Although by a different applicant, the request from AG to NS (Z-2001-34) was initially presented to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission on August 20, 2001. Due to strong neighborhood opposition 
and health of the applicant, the initial case was table to a later date.  The application was resubmitted 
as Z-2002-29 and heard by the Planning and Zoning Commission on September 16th and October 21, 
2002.   At that time, the Planning & Zoning Commission, at the recommendation of staff, made a 
recommendation to the City Council for Planned Development-O-1. The Zone Change was scheduled 
for a Council 1st Reading on November 7, 2002 but the application was withdrawn by the applicant on 
November 1, 2002. 
 
Concerns from property owners during Zone Change case Z-2001-34 included a need for an 
enhanced buffer zone due the close proximity of the adjacent homes to the north; increased traffic 
and its effect on pedestrian safety on the trail; property devaluation; intrusive nature of night-time 
business; and the potential sale of alcoholic beverages. 
 
In 2002, staff had recommended the Planned Development-O-1 district alternatively to the NS district, 
since the O-1 it filters out some of the more intrusive uses allowed in the NS district.  This would 
include such possible development of food and beverage sales including alcohol sales but without 
fuel sales, drug store or pharmacy, cleaning/pressing shop, laundry and cleaning. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 6 

 
It is anticipated that the property will be developed with non-residential uses, however NS does allows 
a variety of residential and non-residential uses.  These uses are permitted by right and include but 
not limited to: 
 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single-family Attached/Detached  Child Care (Day Care Center) 
Industrialized Housing    Restaurant (no drive-in) 
Townhouse     Drug Store or pharmacy 

       Food or beverage sales (no fuel sales) 
       Retail sales and service 
 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, all 
commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an approved conditional 
use permit. The uses include but are not limited to: temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a 
sewage pumping station or a cemetery, crematory or mausoleum, alcohol sales with on-premise 
consumption. 
 
The zoning request does not comply with the FLUP and staff recommends disapproval of the 
proposed NS district.  This is based on the discussion above as the NS zoning designation is not 
compatible with the FLUP and may not be compatible at that location.  This is due in part to the 
proximity to the neighbors and based with the adjacent land use within existing NS zoning have 
developed with less than NS uses. In addition, per UDC Section 4.3.16, the NS zoning should be 
located convenient to residential areas in locations such as the corner of a local road or a collector 
that serves the neighborhood which is the case on both the west and east corners of W. Adams and 
Beaver Loop and are therefore are consistent.  In the case of the western corner of this intersection, 
the NS has been developed with O-1 uses as described elsewhere in this report. If approved, the 
FLUP will need to be updated. 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning   Current Land Use 
 
Site  Auto-Urban Residential   AG   Undeveloped 
North            Auto-Urban Residential   SF-1   Existing SF Uses (Kasberg Subd.)  
South            Auto-Urban Residential   UE & AG                Scattered S.F. Uses on acreage  
  & Suburban Residential 
East           Auto-Urban Residential   O-1 & AG   Undeveloped  
West          Auto-Urban Residential   NS    Undeveloped & Scattered office uses 
      
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 6 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: 
 
The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan 
and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) No 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 
(Required at 

Platting) 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
Auto-urban Residential is identified for the subject property as well as identified for the immediate and 
surrounding area. The NS zoning is not a compatible zoning district and not all the allowed uses may 
be compatible with proximity to the neighbors to the north or the overall size of the proposed parcels. 
There is however existing NS zoning in place adjacent to the property to the west.  This property has 
been developed with O-1 uses. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property will take access from W. Adams Ave which is an arterial street.  Access to the 
property can also be taken from Beaver Loop.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water is available to the subject property through a 4” and a 6” water line in W. Adams Ave. Sewer is 
available through an 18” sewer line on the south side of W. Adams Ave. 
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
A proposed spine trail is identified in the Master Trail Plan Map along the property’s frontage along W. 
Adams Ave. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 6 

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Single-Family detached & attached residential setbacks in the NS 
district are:  
 
Minimum lot size   -  6,000 S.F. detached - (2,300 S.F. attached) 
Minimum Lot Width   -  50’ detached - (20’ attached) 
Minimum Lot Depth  -   100’  
Front Yard Setback   - 15’  (25’ attached) 
Side Yard Setback          -  10% of Lot Width (Min 5’) detached - (attached 5’/0’) 
Corner Side Setback   -   15’ 
Rear Yard Setback  - 10’ 
 
Non-Residential setbacks in the NS district are:  
 
Minimum lot size   -  N/A 
Minimum Lot Width   -  N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth  -   N/A 
Front Yard Setback   - 15’  
Side Yard Setback          -  10’ 
Corner Side Setback   -   10’ 
Rear Yard Setback  - 0’ 
 
Additional Development Regulations include but not limited to: 
 
* A minimum 10’ rear setback is required where a non-residential use abuts a residential zoning 

district or use (UDC Section 4.4.4.F3) and, 
 
* A residential access drive is prohibited onto arterial streets (UDC Section 7.2.4A). 
 
While general provisions for buffering and screening are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted 
provisions include but not limited to: 
 
* Evergreen hedges with a minimum planted height of six feet, placed on 36-inch centers or, 

fences and walls constructed of wood , masonry, stone or pre-cast concrete from 6 to 8 feet in 
height above the  adjacent grade (UDC Section 7.7.4), 

 
* Refuse containers are to be located in the side or rear of the property and screened from view 

per UDC Section 7.7.6, and  
 
* Outdoor storage is permitted in the NS zoning district, where the storage area is situated 

behind the principal building in the rear half of the property and where a solid wood or masonry 
fence screens the outdoor storage from public view.  Such wood or masonry fence must be at 
least one foot higher than the stored material (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 
 
 



01/16/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 6 

In conclusion, any additional or enhanced screening and buffering beyond what is provided for in the 
UDC may be considered though a Planned Development. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Fifteen notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-
feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Friday December 20, 
2013 at 12:00 PM, staff had received, 1 notice in agreement, 9 notices in disagreement, 1 notice with 
no recommendation stated and 1 notice returned as undeliverable. 

Staff has calculated the area under protest within the buffer notification area, as prescribed by UDC 
Section 3.3.4.  It has been found that 23.06% of the land area is under protest for the requested NS 
zoning designation.  Therefore, per UDC Section 3.3.4.A, a three-fourths vote by City Council is 
required in order to approve the request. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on November 20, 2013, in accordance with state 
law and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Buffer Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  Undeveloped - Looking North (NS) 

West:  Undeveloped and Developed office uses (NS) 



 

 
 

East:  Undeveloped (O-1 & AG) 
 

 

 
 

North: Developed SF Uses (Kasberg Subdivision - SF-1) 

 
 



 
 

South:  Scattered Single-Family uses on acreage (UE & AG) 



(

(
(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(1

1

1

1

2

2

3

2

33

2

1
2

9

8
7654

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

89

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

9
8

7

6

5

8
76543

9
2

1

4

3

2

1

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

5

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

22

21

20

17

16

15
14

13

12

11
10

12

11

10 15

14

13
19

18

17

16

13 12
11

10

16
15 14

1093-T

1093-U

1108-A

1107-A

1089-B

1091-B

1091-G

1092-A

1091-F

1091-E

1091-A

1091-D

5
9

6

5

7

9

9

14
10

14
12

13
11

15

13
11

14
12

10

10
1

10
5

10
2

10
4

10
8

112 111

10
9

10
5

10
1

321

316312

11
8

11
4

11
0

10
6

10
2

10
5

10
9

20
1

20
5

20
0

10
8

10
4

10
0

11
0

10
8

10
6

10
4

111
10

9
10

7
10

5
10

3

10
9

11
0

10
8

10
6

111
10

9
10

7
10

510
4

6270

5902

6204

6102

6005
6001 600

2

6006
6010

6014
6018

6022
6026

6102
6106

6110
6114

6118

6085

63
08

6304

6015

C

SF-1

C

AG

AG

SF-2

NS

UE

LI

O-1

AG

GR
W ADAMS AVE

BE
AV

ER
 LO

OP

PA
LO

MI
NO

 D
R

Z-FY-14-09 Zoning and Location Map 6040 W. Adams Ave

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

0 200 400100
Feet

1
Case
Zoning

Subdivisions
Parcel

Outblocks
Addresses

( Blocks
Lots 11/19/2013

City of Temple GIS



W ADAMS AVE

PA
LO

MI
NO

 D
R

BE
AV

ER
 LO

OP WILDCAT DR

TIG
ER

 C
IR

SU
ND

AN
CE

 D
R

µ

Z-FY-14-09 Future Land Use Map
AG to NS 6040 West Adams Ave

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 100 20050
Feet

11/19/2013
City of Temple GIS



5
9

6

9

14
10

15

13
11

10
1

10
2

10
4

10
8

112 111

10
9

10
5

10
1

10
2

10
9

10
5

5902

6102

6011
6005

6001

600
2

6006
6010

6014

6018

6022

6085

6173

6015

C

AG

SF-1

AG

C

UE

NS

O-1

SF-2

GR

¬«2

¬«3¬«3¬«3

3

1

2

3

4

5

9

8

7

6

5

8

4

3

2

14

3

2

1

12

11

10
15

14

13

19

18

17

16

1107-A

1089-B

1091-B

1091-G

1092-A

1091-F

1091-D

W ADAMS AVE

WILDCAT DR
BE

AV
ER

 LO
OP

PA
LO

MI
NO

 D
R

SU
ND

AN
CE

 D
R

TIG
ER

 C
IR

Z-FY-14-09 AG to NS 6040 W. Adams Ave

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 100 200
Feet

11/8/2013
City of Temple GIS
mbaker

















































EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 5: Z-FY-14-09 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on zone change 

from Agricultural District (AG) to Neighborhood Services (NS) on 0.982 +/- acres, 
situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract 5, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, 
located at 6040 W. Adams Ave. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Planner, stated this item would go forward to City Council for first reading on 
January 16, 2014 and for second reading on February 6, 2014. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the property as Auto Urban Residential. 

A four-inch and six-inch water lines are available in West Adams Avenue and an 18-inch sewer 
line is available on the south side of West Adams Avenue. 

The property was subject to a prior zone change request from AG to NS in both 2001 and 
2002. At that time there was strong neighborhood opposition to NS zoning due to the need for 
enhanced buffer, increased traffic concerns, the effect on pedestrian safety on the trail along 
West Adams, property devaluation, Intrusive nature of night-time businesses developed in NS 
and, potential sale of alcoholic beverages (allowed with a CUP). 

Staff and the P&Z Commission recommendation was for a Planned Development O-1 (PD-O1) 
with O1 filtering out some of the more intrusive uses allowed in the NS district and that the PD 
would provide additional buffering currently in place under the Unified Development Code 
(UDC).  The request was ultimately withdrawn by the applicant before going to City Council for 
first reading. 

Surrounding properties include developed single family uses (Kasberg Subdivision) to the 
north with SF-1 zoning, scattered single family uses to the south with UE and AG zoning, 
existing service and office uses to the west with NS zoning, and undeveloped land to the east 
with O1 and AG zoning. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the property as Auto Urban Residential 
which is primarily for smaller single family lot sizes in SF or Single Family Attached (SFA) 
districts. The request for NS zoning does not completely comply with the Future Land Use and 
Character Map. 

Ms. Baker cites the allowed and prohibited uses for NS. 

Development Regulation comparisons are given and the following current requirements would 
apply to the subject property: 

A minimum 10’ rear setback is required where a non-residential use abuts a residential 
zoning district (UDC Section  4.4.4.F3); 

A residential  access drive is prohibited onto arterial  streets (UDC Section 7.2.4A); 



General Buffering and Screening (UDC Section 7.7); 

Evergreen hedges (6’ height & spaced on 36” centers) or, 
6’ to 8’ height (masonry, wood, pre-cast concrete). 
Refuse containers located in the rear or side of the property and screened from 
view. 

Outdoor Storage is permitted in NS & O-1 behind principal building and screened from 
view (UDC Section 7.7.8B1) 

Fifteen notices were mailed out with one returned in favor and eight in opposition. 

In cases where the proposed zoning does not agree with the Future Land Use and Character 
Map, Staff considers the following issues: 

Is the proposed land consistent with the Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Map?    
In this case, no it is not. 

Do surrounding uses seem compatible and similar to the proposed zoning?  For the NS 
no. 

Do surrounding zoning designations seem compatible or similar to the proposed 
rezoning?  In the case of NS it would be a combination of yes and no. The compatibility 
at this location and with the input from the neighbors, even though NS has been 
established along this area, this remaining strip may not be compatible with NS. 

Staff recommends disapproval of the zone request. 

Commissioner Staats asked Mr. Baker if he knew what the general feeling was from the 
neighborhood of an acceptable rezoning. Mr. Baker responded based on previous input and 
action taken by P&Z in 2002, the recommendation came forward as an O1 under a PD. Staff 
was making a combined recommendation of the O1 but since the public hearing was 
advertised as NS, the Planning Commission would not be able to take action as an O1. It 
would have to come back as an O1. 

Commissioner Staats asked about the NS zoning to the west of the subject property and if 
there had been any complaints of those businesses. Mr. Baker responded there were none he 
knew of. 

Mr. Baker had a copy of the proposed subdivision plat showing two access points. 

Commissioner Pitts asked about the cautionary uses under NS. Mr. Baker stated a lot of NS 
would include GR uses, conditional uses that would not otherwise be allowed in O1, NS and 
O2 allow the sale of alcohol with on-premise consumption, O2 gets into more restrictive retail 
and department store uses, but NS is where a lot of those uses are permitted by right. 

Vice-Chair Rhoads asked the public to keep their comments to a three minute minimum since 
there were so many citizens present and then opened the public hearing. 

Ms. Sherry Eller, 6002 Wildcat Drive, Temple, Texas apologized for her husband’s absence 
and read a statement to the Commission. Mr. and Mrs. Eller would like to request a denial on 
this item for the following reasons (not a complete list) and to suggest an alternative: 



 Traffic – NS would bring increased traffic. Beaver Loop is the only road in and out of the 
neighborhood. Significant traffic congestion currently exists at Beaver loop and West Adams 
during peak hours. More traffic would clearly create a hazardous situation. 

 Many of the businesses allowed by right or CUP are not appropriate for location next to 
SF1 designated neighborhoods. NS allows retail and convenience stores, alcoholic beverages 
(CUP), small drug stores, etc. which are not appropriate next to a residential area. 

 Alternate districts such as O1 do not allow these types of businesses and are more 
appropriate next to an SF1 neighborhood.  Because of the close proximity to homes in the 
area and the lack of buffer zones between the homes and these types of businesses, a 
significant devaluation of property values will be realized. 

 These types of establishments invite heavy traffic and in some cases, 24 hour 
operations which are totally undesirable this close to a neighborhood. 

 Structures on NS properties typically do not complement the surrounding neighborhood 
such as an O1 would require. O1 would be more appropriate because traffic is not as high and 
the character of O1 structure would fit better with an adjoining neighborhood. O1 is the more 
appropriate zoning according to 4.3.14.B of the Unified Development Code which states: 

B.  The Office 1 zoning district should be located convenient to residential areas 
and should be complimentary to the character of the residential neighborhood 
served. This district is designed to be a transitional zone allowing low intensity 
administrative and professional offices. Permitted uses are not intended to be 
major traffic generators. 

NS generate much more traffic which can be a problem in this area because of the bridge. The 
adjoining neighborhood is SF1, the highest and most restrictive. O1 would be more 
complementary. 

Mr. Jeff Lawyer, 6001 Wildcat Drive, Temple, Texas thanked the Staff and Mr. and Mrs. Eller 
for getting the logistics. Mr. Lawyer asked the Commission to look at the neighbors that make 
up the neighborhood and they are asking the Commission not to allow NS there. Mr. Lawyer 
commented that the person who wants to develop the property will not state what they want to 
put in there.  

Mr. Lawyer told the Commission the neighborhood was not trying to stop progress but only 
wanted to control the progress so the neighborhood will remain the same. The neighbors are 
asking for no NS but would prefer O1. 

Mr. Van Rutherford, 5 Beaver Loop, Temple, Texas stated he agrees with Mr. Lawyer and FM 
2305 has turned into a busy interstate. The neighborhood is concerned about any type of 
detrimental business for the area. The traffic and the safety of the neighborhood and children 
needs to be considered since it is a strategic piece of property.  

Commissioner Jones asked if anyone had called the applicant to find out what she is planning 
to do. Mr. Rutherford was told a proposed Little Ceasar’s would be going in. 

Mr. Lawyer returned to the podium and stated City Staff was contacted to find out and no one 
could answer them. It was assumed the P&Z and Staff would know.  



Mr. Raymond Rendon, 109 Palomino Drive, Temple, Texas stated he agreed with the previous 
speakers. Mr. Rendon also added it was a busy street with no side shoulder on either side of 
FM 2305.  

Commissioner Staats asked if there was a cross access easement/agreement across the lots 
and Mr. Baker stated it was a proposed cross access but did not have a copy of it. 

Ms. Juanita Michelle Fettig, 3506 Antelope Trail, Temple, Texas stated as a property owner 
she had her own concerns. The property to the west is zoned NS and GR is across the street. 
Ms. Fettig is not asking for GR, only NS. The Future Land Use and Character Map is a 
guideline for the Staff to follow in their recommendations. Ms. Fettig contends the map does 
not adequately identify the nonresidential uses being developed along Adams Avenue frontage 
property and adjacent to her property. 

Ms. Fettig commented on Item 4 that Staff states: 

NS is best suited for locations such as the corner of a local road or a collector that 
serves a neighborhood. 

Ms. Fettig stated her property fronts Adams Avenue which is defined as a major arterial, one 
level below expressway. Adams Avenue carries 23,000 vehicles per day according to TxDOT 
2010 Traffic Count Map. NS is much softer than GR or Commercial. 

As to the concern for the entrance and access points to the property, Ms. Fettig explained 
TxDOT has approved two access points directly off of Adams at the property line of the 
property which will become the primary access points.  

Ms. Fettig stated she understood the concern for zoning and her intention is to enhance the 
area, not diminish it. 

Ms. Sherry Eller returned for rebuttal. Ms. Eller stated previously TxDOT talked about the two 
access points from West Adams and not wanting to use those because of how close they were 
to the bridge but was not sure. Ms. Eller stated this was the fourth time a zoning change has 
been addressed for this property. The request was either denied or withdrawn and the issues 
have remained unchanged.  

Ms. Eller reiterated they would like to be able to control the progress and make it compatible 
with the neighborhood and does not create more traffic problems.  

Vice-Chair Rhoads asked if there was any information as to what the NS would be or with a 
PD since this was a concern. 

Brief discussion regarding access points, Beaver Loop, and traffic. 

Ms. Fettig returned and stated the buyer is looking at the property as an investment. Ms. Fettig 
did not own the property in 2001. 

Mr. Eric Jackson, 321 Beaver Loop, Temple, Texas stated he did not know the corner lots 
were NS but they got lucky with the businesses there. O1 is preferred. 



Ms. Ann Rutherford, 5 Beaver Loop, Temple, Texas stated she has seen Adams grow from 
two lane to five lanes and speeds up to 80 mph. The current NS businesses look beautiful and 
fits right in which is what the neighborhood would like. 

Ms. Baker gave some allowed and prohibited uses for NS and O1 (not inclusive) 

There being no further speakers, Vice-Chair Rhoads closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Jones commented that the traffic on 2305 would continue to grow but not 
drastically as compared to other subdivisions. All of 2305 will continue to develop just as 31st 
Street. Commissioner Jones had difficulty with restricting the owner at this point since NS is all 
up and down the area. 

Commissioner Pitts agreed with Commissioner Jones since NS is already there and did not 
feel it would contribute that much more traffic.  Alcohol concerns is not guaranteed under NS. 

Commissioner Johnson agreed with the comments and stated NS is already there and not 
going away. Commissioner Johnson believes O1 is too minimal for 2305 and would like to see 
more buffering between the lots and neighborhood which can be done with a PD. 
Commissioner Johnson suggested NS with a PD. 

Mr. Baker stated the Commission could suggest a PD if the applicant were interested and 
willing to go with a PD, she would need to carve out more restrictive uses. There is a 
requirement for a site plan which may limit the use of the property to a point the applicant may 
not be interested. 

Commissioner Staats made a motion to approve Item 5, Z-FY-14-09, as requested by 
applicant and Commissioner Pitts made a second. 

Motion passed: (5:1) 
Commissioner Johnson voted Nay; Chair Sears and Commissioner Magaña absent, one 
vacancy 
 



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-09) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES (NS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.982 ACRES SITUATED IN THE NANCY CHANCE 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, CITY OF TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, AND LOCATED AT 6040 WEST ADAMS AVENUE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to 

Neighborhood Services (NS) on approximately 0.982 acres, situated in the Nancy 
Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and located at 6040 
West Adams Avenue, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a 
part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the 
City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day 

of January, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 
 
 

 
 

        

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
01/16/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 6 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING –PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-11:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to Single- Family Two District 
(SF-2) on 115.33 +/- acres and from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 
12.725 +/- acres, both being a portion of 128.05 acres of land, being part of the Baldwin Robertson 
Survey, Abstract 17, Bell County, Texas, located on the east side of SH 317, north of the FM 2483 
intersection, and extending to the west side of North Pea Ridge Road. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION At its meeting on December 16, 2013, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 5/1 to recommend approval of the requested zoning change from 
Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR).  Commissioner Johnson voted in opposition, 
and Chair Sears was absent.  There are two vacancies on the Commission. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested zoning change to SF-2 District for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. Based on staff’s direction from City Council at its November 21, 2013, workshop 
regarding Single Family developments in areas, such as this, with Agricultural/Rural 
classifications, staff anticipates future changes to the Future Land Use and Character 
Map for Suburban Residential uses in this area that would bring the applicant’s request 
into compliance with anticipated development in this area; 

2. Although the requested SF-2 District complies with the Thoroughfare Plan, North Pea 
Ridge Road is not built to its collector classification.  

3. Water facilities are available to the subject property. Although sewer facilities are 
currently not available to the site, the applicant has indicated he plans to extend services 
from the south to his property. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 6 

 
Staff recommends approval of the requested zoning change to General Retail District for the 
following reasons: 
 

1. Based on staff’s direction from City Council at its November 21, 2013 workshop 
regarding non-residential developments in areas, such as this, with Agricultural/Rural 
classifications, staff anticipates future changes to the Future Land Use and Character 
Map for Suburban Commercial uses in this area along arterials and at intersections with 
other arterials in the area that would bring the applicant’s request into compliance with 
anticipated development in this area; 

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
3. Water facilities are available to the subject property. Although sewer facilities are 

currently not available to the site, the applicant has indicated he plans to extend services 
from the south to his property.   

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests zoning changes from Agricultural District (AG) to 
Single-Family Two District (SF-2) on 115.33 acres of land fronting North Pea Ridge Road and 
from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 12.725 acres of land fronting SH 
317.  Although there are no sewer facilities available at the site, the applicant plans to extend sewer 
to the subject property.  The applicant’s proposed development with a sewer extension would require 
the platting process. 
 
The applicant’s requested SF-2 zoning district permits single-family detached residences and 
related accessory structures and provides for smaller single-family lots.  This district may also be 
used as a transition from the SF-1 District to less restrictive or denser residential zoning districts. 
 
A rezoning from AG to the SF-2 zoning district would allow the following, but is not limited to: a family 
or group home, industrialized housing, single-family detached dwelling, place of worship, and farm, 
ranch, orchard or garden. 
 
Prohibited uses include patio home, single-family attached dwelling, townhouse, duplex, zero lot line 
dwelling, halfway house, HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, retail and 
commercial Uses, among others. 
 
The applicant’s requested GR zoning district is intended to serve larger service areas than 
neighborhoods. This district should be located at the intersection of major arterials and should provide 
total on-site traffic maneuvering such that traffic entering and exiting the facility should have room to 
turn, stack and park within the confines of the retail facility.  Adjoining zoning districts should be 
carefully selected to reduce environmental conflicts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 6 

 
A rezoning from AG to the GR zoning district would allow many uses by right that would not have 
been allowed before.  Those uses include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single Family Detached   Office 
Duplex      Restaurant 
Home for the Aged    Hotel or Motel 

 Townhouse     Food or Beverage sales store without fuel sales 
 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, boat sales or 
storage, welding or machine shop, storage warehouse, and building material sales, among others. 
 
The City of Temple Comprehensive Plan recommends a classification of Agricultural/Rural for the 
subject property.  It is intended for those areas within the City limits that do not yet have adequate 
public facilities and services and may, therefore have on-site utilities. This classification is meant to 
protect areas in active farm and /or ranch use.  According to Chapter 4, Growth Management & 
Capacity of the Comprehensive Plan, a much larger minimum lot size is recommended than the 
City’s current one-acre minimum to manage premature growth in such areas and maintain the rural 
character.  Residential development at very low intensities is permitted if it is clustered, with 
significant open space preservation.  Public services would be required at a certain density. 
 
Due to densities associated with SF-2 developments, the applicant’s requested SF-2 District 
does not comply with the property’s Agricultural/Rural classification.  The Urban Estates 
District is more suitable for the property’s Agricultural/Rural classification.  The Urban Estates District 
is more ideal for low density residential developments without sewer and is compatible with the 
adjacent rural/residential properties. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP    Zoning   Current Land Use 
 
Site  Agricultural/Rural        AG   Agricultural/Undeveloped Land 
North            Agricultural/Rural        AG   Agricultural/Rural Residential 
South            Agricultural/Rural & 

Suburban Commercial      AG & GR                 Agricultural/Rural Residential and Retail 
East           Agricultural/Rural        AG    Agricultural/Rural Residential  
West          Agricultural/Rural        AG   Agricultural/Rural Residential 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 6 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: 
The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan 
and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
Docum
ent Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

Site Conditions Compliance

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 
Character (FLUP) 

The property is identified as 
Agricultural/Rural.  The applicant’s 
requested Single-Family Two District does 
not comply with this recommendation.  If 
approved, a zone change to the SF-2 District 
would require an amendment to the Future 
Land Use and Character Plan. 
The requested GR District does not 
comply with this classification. 

No 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  

The east side of the property fronts North Pea 
Ridge Road, which is identified as a 
Collector.  Although the requested SF-2 
District is appropriate along Collectors, North 
Pea Ridge Road is not built to its Collector 
classification. The applicant will be required 
to dedicate right-of-way along North Pea 
Ridge Road through the platting process, 
per UDC Section 8.2.1 Streets. 
 

The west side of the property fronts SH 317, 
a Major Arterial.  Major Arterials are 
appropriate for GR uses.  

Partial 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

The nearest water line along the west edge of 
the subject property is a 2-inch water line 
located on the adjacent property to the south, 
along the east right-of-way of SH 317.  There 
is a 16-inch water line across the street along 
the west right-of-way of SH 317.   
 

Sewer facilities are not available on or 
adjacent to the subject property.  The nearest 
sewer line is located across SH 317 in its 
west right-of-way, south of FM 2483. 

Partial 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map & 
sidewalks 

The Temple Trails Master Plan reflects a 
proposed 6 to 8 foot wide’ Community-Wide 
Connector Trail along the west edge of the 
subject property along SH 317.   
Per UDC section 8.2.3, sidewalks are 
required on both sides of arterials and one 
side of collector streets. Sidewalks are 
required to be installed at the time of 
development and will be noted on the plat.  
A 4-foot wide sidewalk would be required 
along property’s frontage along North Pea 
Ridge Road.

This will be 
addressed 
during the 
platting and 
development 
process 
(see below) 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 6 

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Dimensional standards for development in the SF-2 District are 
as follows: 

 Minimum lot size – 5,000 sq. feet 
 Minimum Lot Width – 50 feet 
 Minimum Lot Depth – 100 feet 
 Front Yard Setback – 25 feet 
 Side Yard Setback  – 5 feet (interior) 
 Side Yard Setback  – 15 feet (corner) 
 Rear Yard Setback –  10 feet  

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Dimensional standards for nonresidential development in the 
GR District are as follows: 

 Minimum lot size – N/A 
 Minimum Lot Width – N/A 
 Minimum Lot Depth – N/A 
 Front Yard Setback – 15 feet 
 Side Yard Setback  – 10 feet 
 Rear Yard Setback –  0 feet (10 feet adjacent to residential zoning) 

 
Dimensional standards for residential development in the GR District are as follows: 

 Minimum lot size – 5,000 Sq. Ft. 
 Minimum Lot Width – 50 feet 
 Minimum Lot Depth – 100 feet 
 Front Yard Setback – 15 feet 
 Side Yard Setback – 10% of lot width with 5-feet min.  
 Side Yard Setback (corner)  – 15 feet 
 Rear Yard Setback – 10 feet  

 
Standard development regulations require a 6-foot wide sidewalk along Major Arterials, such as SH 
317, per UDC Section 8.2.3-Sidewalks.  Since a 6 to 8-foot wide connector trail is required along the 
property’s frontage at SH 317, the required 6-foot wide sidewalk may need to be upsized to an 8-foot 
width.  A 4-foot wide sidewalk is required along collectors, such as North Pea Ridge Road. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Thirteen notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of January 7, 2014, no notices were returned in favor of the request and no notices 
were returned in opposition.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on December 
2, 2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Subject and Surrounding Property Photos 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map 
Buffer Notification Map 
Ordinance     
 
 

  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

AG 

Agricultural/ 
Undeveloped 
Land 
 

 

 

East AG  
Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

 

 

     SH 317 

     N Pea Ridge Rd. 

     N Pea Ridge Rd. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

West AG 
Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

 

South 
AG & 
GR 

Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 
and Retail 

 

 

     SH 317 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

North AG 
Undeveloped 
Land / Rural 
Residential 

 
 



2049-A

2023-A

2041-A

2040-A

2039-A

2037-A

2038-A
2014-A

2019-A

2031-B

2021-A

2020-A

2031-A

2027-A

2024-A

2047-A

2048-B

2028-A

2110-A

2047-B

2050-A

2029-A

2031-C

2031-C

2015-A

22
35

92
51

93
15

23
75

91
51

24
91

19
00

19
30

25
85

25
55

24
25

26
69

18
15

18
74

90
01

93
01

AG

GR N
 P

EA
 R

ID
G

E 
R

D

ST
AT

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 3
17

FM 2483

Z-FY-14-01 AG to SF-2 East side SH 317 & N Pea Ridge Rd.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
1234

1234-A

1
0 10020050

Feet

1Case

Zoning

Subdivisions

Parcel

Outblocks

Addresses

( Blocks

Lots 10/31/2013
City of Temple GIS



Case

N
 P

EA
 R

ID
G

E 
R

D

ST
AT

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 3
17

FM 2483

D
EW

B
ER

RY
 L

N

μ

Z-FY-14-01 AG to SF-2 East side SH 317 & N Pea Ridge Rd.

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation

Estate Residential

Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial

Suburban Commercial

Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District

Industrial

Business Park

Public Institutional

Parks & Open Space

Agricultural/Rural

0 10020050
Feet

10/10/2013
City of Temple GIS



GR

SF‐2



1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-11) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO SINGLE FAMILY TWO DISTRICT (SF-2) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 115.33 ACRES, AND A ZONING CHANGE FROM 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT (AG) TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT 
(GR) ON APPROXIMATELY 12.725 ACRES, BOTH BEING A PORTION 
OF APPROXIMATELY 128.05 ACRES OF LAND, BEING PART OF THE 
BALDWIN ROBERTSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 17, CITY OF 
TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE 
OF SH 317, NORTH OF THE FM 2483 INTERSECTION, AND 
EXTENDING TO THE WEST SIDE OF NORTH PEA RIDGE ROAD; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to 

Single Family Two District (SF-2) on approximately 115.33 acres and a rezoning from 
Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on approximately 12.725 
acres, both being a portion of approximately 128.05 acres of land, being part of the 
Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract 17, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and 
located on the east side of SH 317, north of the FM 2483 intersection, and extending to 
the west side of North Pea Ridge Road, more fully described in Exhibit A & B, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the 
City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 



2 
 

 
 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day 

of January, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 



 
 
 

 
 

         

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

01/16/14 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
  
Mark Baker, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-13:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for a biodiesel manufacturing plant on Lot 1, Block 1, 
Temple Industrial Park Section Eight on 7.00 +/- acres, located at 3289 & 3111 Eberhardt Road. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its December 3, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6/0 in accordance with staff recommendation to recommend 
approval of the conditional use permit for a biodiesel manufacturing plant. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 
Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a Conditional Use Permit for a biodiesel 
manufacturing plant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the Future Land Use Map which identifies 
this area as Industrial; 

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 
3. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding uses; and,    
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The property is located on the east side of Eberhardt Road adjacent and is 
currently addressed as 3289 & 3111 Eberhardt Dr. A re-plat for the site is currently under review and 
the address is subject to change if the plat is approved. The site is zoned Light Industrial and the 
applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a recycling operation inside a building. A 
CUP is required for a biodiesel manufacturing plant (which is a recycling use) in the Light Industrial 
zoning district according the Section 5.1 of the UDC. According to the City of Temple Comprehensive 
Plan / Future Land Use Plan, the subject property is designated Industrial.  
 
The applicant has been working with the Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) to 
determine a location for their business and the TEDC has granted the 7 acre site to the applicant to 
establish a biodiesel business. 
 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS: All uses in industrial zoning must conform to the performance 
standards in Section 7.1 of the UDC. The following performance standards would apply to this 
Conditional Use Permit. 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Noise: The applicant has indicated that the equipment that generates the most noise is located at 
distances far enough from the property line so that the decibel level will be considerably lower than 75 
dB.   
 

Odorous Matter: Vents will run to a thermal oxidizer as an odor mitigation measure. The applicant is 
also working with an odor control firm and will install recommended additional odor suppression 
systems if they are determined necessary.  
 

Fire: Storage and use of all flammable liquids will conform to the standards and regulations of 
Chapter 12, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances. 
 

Vibration: The applicant has indicated that the concrete will be designed to absorb any vibrations 
generated by the equipment and will not exceed the frequency ranges at the property line as 
specified in the UDC. 
 

LANDSCAPING: The applicant has indicated the following landscaping standards in UDC Section 
7.5 will be met: 
 

 A minimum of 5% of the lot area will be landscaped; 
 A minimum of one 2” diameter or 65 gallon tree at time of planting will be planted for each 40 

feet of linear street frontage; and, 
 All landscaping will be irrigated. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
Docu
ment Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

 Complian
ce 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 
Character (FLUP) 

Industrial is identified for the subject property as 
well as identified in all four directions from the 
subject property.

Y 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  
The subject property is located on the east side 
of, and has primary frontage on, Eberhardt Road 
which is identified as a Minor Arterial.  

Y 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Sufficient utilities are in place to accommodate 
the proposed use of the property.  The property 
is served by an 18” water line along Eberhardt 
Rd. and a 6” waterline along the south side of 
the property. An 8” sewer line is available to the 
property on the north side of the property and a 
6” sewer line is available on the south side of 
the property.  

Y 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map & 
sidewalks 

No existing or proposed trails were identified in 
the Trails Master Plan Map along the subject 
property’s frontage on Eberhardt Rd. and 
sidewalks are not required along this road per 
UDC Section 8.2.

Y 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The only established dimensional standards in Heavy Industrial 
are corner side yard setbacks which must be a minimum of 10’. As per UDC 4.6, the maximum 
building height may be any legal limit that other laws and ordinances do not prohibit.  
 
Unless expressly identified in writing in the ordnance the site must meet all other UDC standards. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Eight notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance. As of December 13, 2013, no notices had been returned in favor or denial of the proposed 
zone change and Conditional Use Permit. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on December 
2, 2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Site Plan 
Site Photos  
Zoning Map 
Buffer Notification Map 
Ordinance  



T
E
M

P
L
E
,
 
T
E
X
A
S

FIRE PROTECTION WATER LINE

10' CURB INLET

STORM SEWER LINE

DOMESTIC WATER LINE

FIRE HYDRANT

WASTEWATER LINE

GRATE INLET

PAVEMENT NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE NEW STRIPING AT ALL CROSSWALKS, PARKING AREAS, AREAS

AND ANY AREAS WHERE TEMPORARY STRIPING IS REQUIRED.

2. AT CONNECTION OF NEW REINFORCED CONCRETE DRIVES TO EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER,

SAW CUT EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER AND INSTALL DOWELED EXPANSION JOINT.

3. ALONG THE FACE OF DRIVEWAY CURB, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PAINT

THE CURB RED OR PAINT A RED STRIPE WHERE THERE IS NO CURB AND STENCIL THE

WORDS "FIRE ZONE / TOW AWAY ZONE" IN WHITE LETTERS AT LEAST 4" HIGH AT 30'

INTERVALS.

4. ALL PAVEMENT REPAIR WORK FOR THE INSTALLATION OF UTILITIES IN THE PUBLIC

RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF TEMPLE STANDARDS &

SPECIFICATIONS.

5. ALL EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION JOINTS WITHIN PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE

PAVEMENT AND JOINTS BETWEEN PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE AND ASPHALT PAVEMENT

SHALL BE SEALED.

6. INSTALL ALL UTILITIES, INCLUDING UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL AND COMMUNICATION

LINES PRIOR TO PAVING.

REINFORCED CONCRETE

PARKING

REINFORCED CONCRETE DRIVES

AND LOADING AREAS

SPECIFICATIONS

1. REINFORCED CONCRETE PAVEMENT-RCP IN ACCORDANCE WITH TXDOT ITEM 360,

CONCRETE PAVEMENT. THE CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS P IN ACCORDANCE WITH TXDOT

ITEM 421, PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE.

2. CRUSHED LIMESTONE BASE MATERIAL -2004 TXDOT ITEM 247, TYPE A, GRADE 2 OR BETTER.

THE MATERIAL SHOULD BE COMPACTED IN LIFTS NOT TO EXCEED 6 INCHES COMPACTED

THICKNESS AT A MINIMUM OF 100% OF TEX-113-E MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY, NEAR OPTIMUM

MOISTURE CONTENT (+/- 4%)

3. NATURAL SUBGRADE-THE NATURAL SUBGRADE THAT IS DISTURBED SHOULD BE COMPACTED

TO AT LEAST  95% OF TEX-113-E MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY AT A MOISTURE CONTENT RANGE

OF -1.0% TO +3.0% OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.

PAVEMENT BASE

COMPACTED

SUBGRADE

6"

6"

6" 6"

7" 6"

LOCATION

STORM WATER MANHOLE

DOMESTIC WATER METER

BACKFLOW PREVENTER (BFP)

WASTEWATER MANHOLE

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING LOT 1

STREET ADDRESS:  3289 EBERHARDT RD., TEMPLE, TX

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  TEMPLE INDUSTRIAL PARK SECTION EIGHT, BLOCK 001,

LOT PT 1, ACRES 3.179

EXISTING LOT 2

STREET ADDRESS:  3111 EBERHARDT RD., TEMPLE, TX

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  TEMPLE INDUSTRIAL PARK SECTION EIGHT, BLOCK 001,

LOT PT 1, (S PT OF 1), ACRES 9.743

PROPOSED LOT

APPROXIMATE SITE AREA: 7 ACRES

NOTES:

1. 6 FEET IN HEIGHT CHAIN LINK SECURITY FENCE SHALL BE INSTALLED ALONG THE INSIDE

OF PROPERTY LINES.

2. THE DETENTION POND WILL BE DESIGNED WHEN THE ON THE GROUND TOPOGRAPHIC

SURVEY IS PROVIDED BY THE OWNER INDICATING EXISTING SITE CONTOURS AND FLOW

LINE ELEVATIONS FOR THE POTENTIAL DISCHARGE ROUTES FOR THE POND OUTLET AND

STORM WATER CONVEYANCE FROM THE PROPERTY.

3. FINAL DETENTION POND DESIGN MAY NOT REQUIRE BOTH PONDS AS SHOWN.

4. SITE LIGHTING WILL COMPLY WITH UDC 7.1.8, UDC 8.2.10

5. INLETS COULD BE REPLACED WITH FLUMES TO PONDS, WHERE FEASIBLE.

3
1
1
1
 
A
N

D
 
3
2
8
9
 
E
B
E
R
H

A
R
D

T
 
R
O

A
D

CHAIN LINK SECURITY FENCE

LANDSCAPING NOTES (PER UDC 7.4):

1. REQUIRED LANDSCAPE AREA (FIVE PERCENT OF THE LOT AREA) MUST BE PROVIDED

BETWEEN THE PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS AND THE STREETS.

2. A MINIMUM OF ONE TREE IS REQUIRED TO BE PLANTED FOR EACH 40 FEET OF LINEAR

STREET FRONTAGE.

3. ALL REQUIRED CANOPY TREES MUST BE A MINIMUM OF TWO INCHES IN DIAMETER (SINGLE

TRUNK) AT BREAST HEIGHT OR 65 GALLON CONTAINER SIZE AT PLANTING.

4. ALL REQUIRED LANDSCAPING MUST BE IRRIGATED BY AN AUTOMATIC SPRINKLING SYSTEM

OR HAVE ACCESS TO A HOSE CONNECTION WITHIN 100 FEET OF ALL LANDSCAPING.

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONINGL I

TREE

OFFICE BUILDING

MECHANICAL & MAINTENANCE

BUILDINGS

AREA (GFA)

7,100 S.F.

2,400 S.F.

INDUSTRIAL USES

MCC ROOM

480 S.F.

1 SPACE REQUIRED

PER 500 S.F. GFA

(PER UDC 7.5.4)

TOTAL

9,980 S.F.

20 SPACE

SPACES REQUIRED

  

CHAPTER 7 UDC CONSIDERATIONS:

1. NOISE  -  THE EQUIPMENT THAT GENERATES THE MOST NOISE IS LOCATED AT DISTANCES

FAR ENOUGH FROM THE PROPERTY LINE SUCH THAT THE DECIBEL LEVEL WILL BE

CONSIDERABLY LOWER THAN 75.

2. ODOR -  THE VENTS RUN TO A THERMAL OXIDIZER AS AN ODOR MITIGATION MEASURE.  IN

ADDITION WE ARE WORKING WITH A NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED ODOR CONTROL FIRM WHO

WILL RECOMMEND TO US ADDITIONAL ODOR SUPPRESSION SYSTEMS (IF DETERMINED

NECESSARY).

3. DUST/PARTICULATE MATTER -  THE PROCESS IN THIS FACILITY GENERATES MINIMAL DUST.

4. VIBRATION -  THE CONCRETE WILL BE DESIGNED TO ABSORB ANY VIBRATIONS GENERATED

BY THE EQUIPMENT.

REDUCED PRESSURE PRINCIPLE BFP IN HOT BOX

FOR IRRIGATION

IRRIGATION METER



Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

LI Vacant  

 

 
 

North LI Industrial 

 
    



Direction Zoning 
Current 

Land Use Photo 

South  LI 

Directly 
adjacent of 
the subject 
property: 
Vacant. 

 
Beyond the 

vacant 
parcel: 

industrial 
use 

(Pictured) 

 
    

East  HI 
Rail Road/ 
Industrial 

use 
No Photo Available 

    

West 
(Across 

Eberhardt 
Rd.) 

LI Industrial 

 
 



LI

32
89

31
00

34
01

32
01

31
20

31
10

31
15

30
10

2400

29
17

31
11

34
01

33
10

33
01

34
10

HI
PD 05

LI
CP 105

LI

HI

LI

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

LU
CIU

S M
CC

EL
VE

Y D
R

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

Z-FY-14-13 Biodiesel Manufacturing Plant CUP 3289 Eberhardt Rd.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
0 100 200

Feet

Parcel
Subdivisions
Zoning

Expressway
Major Arterial
Proposed Major Arterial

Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial
Proposed Minor Arterial

Collector
Conceptual Collector
Case 12/13/2013

City of Temple GIS



(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(

(

(1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

1

1

3

2

1

1

797-J
797-E

797-A

797-F797-G

32
89

31
00

32
01

31
20

31
10

31
15

30
10

29
17

31
11

34
01

33
10

33
01

EB
ER

HA
RD

T R
D

LU
CIU

S M
CC

EL
VE

Y D
R

INDUSTRIAL BLVD

Z-FY-14-13 Biodiesel CUP 3289 & 3111 Eberhardt Rd.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1
0 100 20050

Feet
1Case

Zoning
Subdivisions
Parcel

Outblocks
Addresses

( Blocks
Lots 11/25/2013

City of Temple GIS



 
 

 
 

1 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

[Z-FY-14-13] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A BIODIESEL 
MANUFACTURING PLANT ON LOT 1, BLOCK 1, TEMPLE INDUSTRIAL 
PARK, SECTION EIGHT, APPROXIMATELY 7 ACRES LOCATED AT 3289  
EBERHARDT ROAD; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides for 

the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City Council to 
impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations indicate to be 
important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of adjacent 
property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, glare, 
offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which a 
permit is authorized;  
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the location and zoning classification of the establishment, has recommended that 
the City Council approve this application; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required by 
law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted concerning the 
biodiesel manufacturing plant located at 3289 Eberhardt Road, and has heard the comments and 
evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this matter at said public hearing, and 
after examining the location and the zoning classification of the establishment finds that the 
proposed use of the premises substantially complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan 
adopted by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit for a biodiesel manufacturing 
plant on lot 1, block 1, Temple Industrial Park, Section Eight, on approximately 7 acres and located 
at 3289 Eberhardt Road, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof 
for all purposes. 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

2 

 
 
Part 2: The owners/applicants, their employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 

hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 

 
(a) Noise: the decibel level shall be lower than 75dB; 
 
(b) Odorous Matter: vents will run to a thermal oxidizer as an odor mitigation measure and 

an additional odor suppression system will be installed if deemed necessary; 
 
(c) Fire: storage and use of flammable liquids will conform to standards and regulations of 

Chapter 12, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances; 
 
(d) Vibration: the application has indicated that the concrete will be designed to absorb any 

vibrations generated by the equipment and will not exceed the frequency ranges at the 
property line as specified in the Unified Development Plan; 

 
(e) Landscaping: a minimum of 5% of the lot area will be landscaped, a minimum of one 2” 

diameter 65 gallon tree will be planted for each 40 feet of linear street frontage and all 
landscaping will be irrigated; 

 
(f) A conditional use permit issued under this section runs with the property and is not 

affected by a change in the owner or lessee of a permitted establishment. 
 
(g) All conditional use permits issued under this section will be further conditioned that the 

same may be canceled, suspended or revoked in accordance with the revocation clause 
set forth in Section 7-609. 

 
Part 3: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions 
hereof. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 
 



 
 

 
 

3 

 
 
 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day of 
January, 2014. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

           
 

CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM       
 
 

01/16/14 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 
 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-16: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Heavy Industrial (HI) District to PD (HI) District in the I-35 
Corridor Overlay on 2.00 +/- being a tract of land out of and a part of the George Givens Survey, 
Abstract No. 345, addressed as 4206 South General Bruce Drive. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its January 6, 2013 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6/0 in accordance with staff recommendation to recommend 
approval of the zoning change from HI to PD (HI). 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for February 6, 2014. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the zoning change from Heavy Industrial (HI) to PD (HI) for the 
following reasons: 
 
1. The request complies with the Thoroughfare, Plan;  
2. Public facilities are available to serve the property; and, 
3. The development is compatible with the surrounding area. 

 
 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a zone change from Heavy Industrial (HI) District to 
Planned Development (HI) District for the purpose of constructing a warehouse. The development will 
occur on a 2 acre site with one 10,051 square foot warehouse. The warehouse is an extension of the 
adjacent Tem-Tex industrial site to the south and as such is considered an industrial use. While an 
industrial use is allowed in HI zoning, it is not allowed in the Freeway Retail / Commercial Sub-District 
of the I-35 Overlay and therefore, a Planned Development would be needed to expand buildings 
associated with the non-conforming use. 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
Landscaping and Screening 
 
The I-35 Overlay requires a total of 15% of the site to be landscaped and the applicant is proposing 
19% of the site to be landscaped. The applicant is meeting the I-35 Overlay landscaping standards 
with the proposed landscaping improvements:  
 

 A landscaped frontage with 12 Mountain Laurel evergreen trees and 8 Crepe Myrtle trees will 
be planted along General Bruce Drive per the I-35 Overlay landscaping standards in UDC 
Section 6.7; 

 Along the northeast side of the site, between the building and the property line, Dwarf Holly 
Shrubs will be planted; 

 Directly in front of the building alternating Crepe Myrtles and Dwarf Holly Shrubs are proposed; 
 The remaining open areas will be sodded. 

 
 

Building Materials and Architecture 
According to the development plans, the applicant has proposed the following: 
 

 Split face block for the bottom 50% of the façade; 
 EFIS for the remaining 50% of the façade on the front and sides with metal on the rear; 
 Two loading docks will be located at the rear of the building; 
 Three entries, including a 12’ x 10 roll up door, will be located on the south side of the 

building. 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: 
The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan 
and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) No
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan Yes

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance No
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The Land Use and Character Map identifies this area as an Auto Urban Commercial District which is 
identified for commercial use. This district is designated for high intensity commercial uses, such as 
services that would need to be screened and buffered from other lower intensity uses, but is not as 
high of intensity as allowed in the Industrial District. Because the warehouse is an extension of an 
existing industrial use, and would be considered an industrial use, the Planned Development is not 
compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Plan. However, the use is compatible with the 
surrounding area and the current underlying zoning. 
 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The Thoroughfare Plan identifies Interstate 35 as a Major Arterial. This thoroughfare provides 
sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed use.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
An 18” and 16” water line runs along General Bruce Drive at the frontage of the property, and an 8” 
sewer line runs near the northwest corner of the property. These facilities are sufficient for the 
proposed use.  
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No trails currently exist or are planned on or near the site. A 6’ sidewalk would be required per UDC 
Section 8.2., however no sidewalks exist at the complex or surrounding industrial properties, nor is 
the area conducive for pedestrian accessibility. Therefore, the applicant is requesting a waiver. 
 
WAIVERS: 
The following waivers would be granted if the Planned Development is approved: 

 A waiver from the requirement of an articulated entrance and the minimum of three 
architectural elements as defined in UDC Section 6.7.9.D.2c; 

 A waiver from the requirement of a minimum of 40% of windows on each façade excluding the 
rear, no windows are proposed (UDC 6.7.9.D.2f); 

 A waiver from the requirement of 70% of each façade to be masonry, the applicant is 
proposing 50% of the façade to be masonry (UDC 6.7.9.D.3g); 

 A waiver to include Split Block as an approved primary material and EFIS as an approved 
accent material (UDC 6.7.9.D.3g), and; 

 A waiver from the required 6’ sidewalk. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 
4 notices of the public hearing was sent out to property owners within 200-feet of the property as 
required by state law and local ordinance.  As of January 7, 2014, one notice was returned in support 
of the zone change and none were received in opposition of the requested zone change.  

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Surrounding Properties and Uses 
Zoning and Location Map 
Site Plan 
Architecture Drawings 
Surrounding Property Owner Notification Map 
Notification Response Letters 
Ordinance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

HI Industrial Use 

 

 
 

North HI Undeveloped 

 
    



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South  HI Industrial Use 

 
    

East  GR 
Commercial 

Use 

 
    

West LI Undeveloped 
No Photo Avaliable. 

Railroad directly adjacent to the rear of the property. 

 













4208

4001

4011

4103

4105

4201

4025

4211

4116

4138

4184

3916

4040

4216

4310

4406

4408

4206

4212

4218

4404

4410

HI

C
LI

GR

C

C
C

AG

C

GR GR

¬«1

¬«1

¬«1
¬«1

¬«1

¬«1

1
2

3

2

1

1

1

1A
1A

450-B

454-B

454-D
454-E

467-C

467-E

467-A

455-B

467-B

455-X

450-B

527-B

527-C

703A-A

123865

383969

48349

72917

17437

34772

188730

132658

447524

10945

91207114957

237974

17436

93121

383971

383970

13311

126747

74345

386874

150124

123859
386873

91101

167963 115014237825
74346

115015
39398 1567618422

S INTERSTATE 35 S GENERAL BRUCE DR

BR
OO

KL
AW

N 
DR

S INTERSTATE 35

Z-FY-14-16 Zoning Change HI to PD(HI) 4206 General Bruce Dr.

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 200 400
Feet

12/18/2013
City of Temple GIS
pmelton





1 
 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.     

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-16) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM HEAVY 
INDUSTRIAL (HI) TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD) IN THE I-35 
CORRIDOR OVERLAY ON APPROXIMATELY 2.00 ACRES, BEING A 
PART OF THE GEORGE GIVENS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 345, AND 
LOCATED AT 4206 SOUTH GENERAL BRUCE DRIVE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Heavy Industrial (HI) to 

Planned Development (PD) on approximately 2.00 acres, being a part of the George 
Givens Survey, Abstract No. 345, City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, and located at 
4206 General Bruce Drive, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made 
a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the 
City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day 

of January, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of February, 2014. 
 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

_____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
         

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

01/16/14 
Item #14 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: O-FY-14-04: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Appeal of 
Standards in Sec. 6.7 of the Unified Development Code related to the I-35 Corridor Overlay Zoning 
District for landscaping, window, architectural and lighting to build a new 5,000 sf free-standing 
building that is consistent with the rest of the Bird Creek Crossing Shopping Center.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
Staff recommends approval as submitted, since the proposed design would be consistent with the 
existing shopping center, which was approved through a Planned Development prior to adoption of 
the I-35 Corridor Overlay District standards. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its January 6, 2014 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 6/0 for approval in accordance with the staff 
recommendation. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The project is located in the I-35 Corridor Overlay District in the City Entry Sub-
District.  The applicant is a new 5,000 sf building for a new Mattress Firm commercial tenant on a 
0.789 acre retail pad site (Lot 1 Block 2) within the Bird Creek Crossing Shopping Center.   
 
In accordance with Article 6 of the Unified Development Code relating to Interstate 35 Corridor 
Overlay, all new construction is required to conform to the standards of the I-35 Overlay District.    
 
The following list summarizes the categories of standards that are applicable to this project. 
 

 Parking 
 Screening and Wall Standards 
 Architectural design  
 Landscape 
 Lighting 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #14 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The applicant has worked with City Staff to develop a plan that meets the intent of the I-35 Overlay 
District, while also promoting consistency with the existing Bird Creek Shopping Center development 
built prior to adoption of the Overlay standards.  The applicant has requested relief from compliance 
some Overlay standards in the form of this appeal as outlined in the following attached table.  Those 
highlighted in gray represent proposed noncompliance with the existing UDC provisions and, 
therefore, are part of the appeal. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Overlay District Standard Table 
Appeal Items 
Site Plan 
Floor Plan 
Landscape Plan 
Elevations 
Ordinance 
 

  



 

I-35 Requirements 
 

Proposed 
Standard 

Met? 
Mitigation/ 

Rationale for Exception 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
Applicant has submitted site plans for 
review on this project.  

Compliant YES N/A 

TREE PRESERVATION 
Tree preservation  N/A N/A N/A 

PARKING (GENERAL) 
All other Retail sales and Service (1 per 
250 sq ft) 5,000 = 20 spaces required 

Compliant: 38 
proposed 

YES N/A 

Curb and gutter, 6” in height,  required 
around perimeter and all parking islands 

Compliant YES N/A 

Parking aisles must be designed to be 
perpendicular to entry 

Compliant YES N/A 

Parking areas must be planned so that 
vehicles are not required to back out of 
parking spaces directly into a public or 
private street 

Compliant 
 

YES N/A 

Parking lots must be designed to 
preserve the maximum amount of existing 
trees on site as possible 

N/A N/A N/A 

Parking spaces that face and are 
adjacent to a building must utilize wheel 
stops 
 

N/A N/A N/A 

Wheel stops are required adjacent to all 
landscaped areas and to all sidewalks, 
except for raised sidewalks at least 6 feet 
in width (8 feet if parking spaces front 
both sides)  

Non-compliant NO 
Would be inconsistent with rest of the Bird Creek 
Crossing Retail Center, since wheel stops are not 
provided  

No parking is allowed in the landscape 
buffer 

Compliant YES N/A 

SCREENING AND WALL STANDARDS (GENERAL) 
No storage in connexes, shipping 
containers or portable buildings 
 

N/A N/A N/A 



I-35 Requirements 
 

Proposed 
Standard 

Met? 
Mitigation/ 

Rationale for Exception 

Loading zones and mechanical 
equipment must not be clearly visible at 
eye level from any public street 

Compliant: 
Mechanical 
equipment roof 
mounted and 
screened with parapet 

YES  N/A 

All ground mounted service equipment 
must be located at the rear of buildings 
(unless rear faces I-35), integrated into 
the building envelope, or enclosed 
service area 

Compliant:  
Electrical box will be 
attached to the rear 
wall and painted to 
match the rest of the 
facade 

YES N/A 

Roof mounted equipment must be 
screened from a vantage point of 6’ 
above finished grade 

Compliant: 
Mechanical 
equipment roof 
mounted and 
screened with parapet 

YES  N/A 

Garage and service bays must be located 
to rear of building or on side not visible to 
traffic flow on abutting side of I-35 

N/A N/A N/A 

Refuse storage/compacters/vehicle 
loading and unloading must not be clearly 
visible at eye level from any public street 
or located within 100’ of any public street 

Compliant: Dumpster 
screened 

YES 
 

N/A 

LANDSCAPING GENERAL 
Areas not covered by building or 
pavement must be landscaped 

Compliant YES N/A 

Foundation Plantings required along 70% 
of the length of any visible façade in a 
bed a minimum 6’ deep  

Non-compliant NO 

Plantings proposed along North and South walls, 
and along East retaining wall; West wall is 
entrance and it is preferred to not obscure display 
windows; East wall is at rear of building and 
additional planting at this location would require 
lengthening retaining walls  

Landscape Buffer Area 
25’ front  
10’ on sides 

 
Non-compliant 
• 5’-6” on front and 

NO 
This is a very small lot connected to an existing 
retail center and meeting the required landscape 
buffers would result in the usable area for the 



I-35 Requirements 
 

Proposed 
Standard 

Met? 
Mitigation/ 

Rationale for Exception 

side 
• 10’ rear 
 

parking lot and building being insufficient to allow 
for our desired 5,000 sf retail building for future 
tenant, Mattress Firm 

20% Required landscape buffer must 
have native grass beds or wildflowers 

Compliant YES N/A 

Parking screen of hedge row 2.5 to 4’ 
high for all parking areas visible from 
public view 

Compliant YES N/A 

Interior parking islands 1 per every 10 
spaces minimum 170 sq ft (1 3” tree 
required in each) = +/- 143 required 

Compliant YES N/A 

Terminal parking islands at the end of 
each row minimum 360 sq ft (2 3” tree 
required in each)  

Compliant YES N/A 

Median islands minimum 10’ in width 
must be located after every third parking 
bay ( 3” tree required every 30’) 

N/A N/A N/A 

60% Required Trees must be evergreen Compliant YES N/A 
Minimum 2’ tall berm must be installed for 
minimum 50% of the buffer area 

Non-compliant NO 
Due to reduced width of landscape buffers, shrubs 
and trees are proposed  in lieu of berms 

All proposed landscape areas will be 
irrigated 

Compliant YES N/A 

Minimum of 5 gal. shrubs every 30” on 
center to soften appearance of walls 

Non-compliant NO 

Plantings proposed along North and South walls, 
and along East retaining wall; West wall is 
entrance and it is preferred to not obscure display 
windows; East wall is at rear of building and 
additional planting at this location would require 
lengthening retaining walls 

Sidewalks  
 

N/A N/A N/A 

LIGHTING STANDARDS
Full Cutoff required Compliant YES N/A 

Max of 80,000 lumens/acre 
 

Non-compliant NO Applicant’s lighting specialist indicated that they 
will exceed this standard; however, their 



I-35 Requirements 
 

Proposed 
Standard 

Met? 
Mitigation/ 

Rationale for Exception 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

illumination would still be less than the shopping 
center lighting standards recommended by IES 
(Illuminating Engineering Society) 

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN – GENERAL STANDARDS 
 
All buildings must be architecturally 
finished on all sides with same materials, 
detailing and features- higher level of 
finish on primary facades 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Compliant 

YES N/A 

All buildings must incorporate no less 
than 3 architectural elements.  > 50,000  
SF   must incorporate 5 elements;  > 
100,000 SF 7 elements  (UDC 6.7.D2c) 

 
 
Compliant 

YES N/A 

All retail and commercial buildings with 
facades greater than 200’ in length, 
visible from a public street right of way 
must incorporate wall plane projects or 
recesses that are at least 6’ deep 
  

 
 
N/A 

N/A N/A 

Windows must be a minimum of 40% up 
to a maximum of 80% or each building 
elevation 

 
Non-compliant 

NO 

Proposed building has storefront windows for 60% 
of length of West elevation; 20% for North and 
South elevations; 0% on East elevation, since it is 
at the rear (City Council will review code 
amendments on 1/16/14 that include removal of 
this requirement for rear elevations) 

Must select from list of approved building 
materials (max 90%; min 70%) 

 
 

NO 
Proposed West elevation is 61% stucco and 39% 
stone; North and South elevations are 89% stucco 



I-35 Requirements 
 

Proposed 
Standard 

Met? 
Mitigation/ 

Rationale for Exception 

Stone, Architectural metal, brick, stucco, 
granite, marble, painted tilt wall 
and accent materials (max 30% and min 
10%) (UDC 6.7.9 D. 3.g) 
cast stone, wood, glass block, tile, 
granite, marble, textured or patterned 
concrete 

 
 
Non-compliant 

and 11% stone (complies); East elevation is 100% 
stucco 

Refuse storage/compacters/vehicle 
loading and unloading must not be clearly 
visible at eye level from any public street 
or located within 100’ of any public street 

Compliant 
YES 
Dumpster 
screened 

N/A 

SIGN STANDARDS 

Setback of 10’ from public ROW for signs 
Non-compliant: 1’ 
proposed 

NO 
Narrow landscape buffer would prevent 
compliance with this provision 

All other signage standards will be met 
CITY ENTRY SUB-DISTRICT SPECIFIC STANDARDS 

Driveways into site must utilize enhanced 
paving of stone, brick, or patterned 
concrete 

Non-compliant NO 
Would be inconsistent with rest of the Bird Creek 
Crossing Shopping Center 

Entrance offset by a minimum of 4’ Non-compliant NO 
Entrance is articulated and defined to present a 
strong entry presence without the offset 

Landscape Area 15% (193,435 sq ft 
required)  

Compliant YES N/A 

Landscape Buffer Plantings- One min. 3” 
caliper canopy tree must be planted for 
every 25’ of frontage along public ROW 
 
If power lines are present four ornamental 
trees may be substituted for one canopy 
tree 

 
Compliant 
West side of property 
facing public ROW; 
due to location of 
power lines, 
ornamental trees have 
been substituted 

YES N/A 

Decorative lighting where appropriate Non-compliant 
NO 

Lighting to match the rest of the Bird Creek 
Shopping Center 



I-35 Requirements 
 

Proposed 
Standard 

Met? 
Mitigation/ 

Rationale for Exception 

All buildings must be designed and 
constructed in tri-partite architecture to 
express base, mid-section and top 

 
Non-compliant NO 

Proposed building has storefront awnings, sign 
band above and metal coping at top of parapet 
wall similar to other buildings in retail center 

Color of structures must be earth-tone in 
hue. (Planning Dir. may approve 10% 
variation) 

Compliant YES N/A 

No more than three materials for facades 
of buildings 

Compliant 
YES N/A 

 
 



 
 
Bird Creek Crossing Pad “A” Appeal Descriptions 
 
 

1.   Requirement: Is a public street ROW buffer provided in accordance with sub-district area 
regulations? 
 
Response: The minimum landscape buffers of 25’ front and 10’ sides are not met.  
This is a very small lot connected to an existing retail center and meeting the 
required landscape buffers would result in the usable area for the parking lot and 
building being insufficient to allow for our desired 5,000 s.f. retail building for 
future tenant Mattress Firm.  The proposed front and side landscape buffers are 
5’-6”, and the proposed back landscape buffer is 10’-0”.  See attached Landscape 
Plan.   
 
 

2.   Requirement: Landscape buffer berms not less than 24 inches covering 50% of 
landscape buffer area 
 
Response: Due to the reduced width of the landscape buffers, shrubs and trees 
are proposed in lieu of landscape buffer berms.  See attached Landscape Plan.     
 

 
3.   Requirement: Vegetation must be used to soften the appearance of walls – min 5 

gal.shrubs planted every 30“ on center. 
 

Response: The proposed design has vegetation along the North wall, South wall, 
and East retaining wall, but not along the West wall or East wall of building.  The 
West wall is the building entrance with display windows and it is preferred to not 
have vegetation in front of the windows.  The East wall is the back of the building 
and the back sidewalk is elevated 4.5’ above grade.  Incorporating additional 
space for vegetation will increase the length of retaining walls and increase cost.  
The proposed design has vegetation along the retaining walls but not along the 
East wall of the building.  See attached Landscape Plan. 
 

 
4.   Requirement: Foundation plantings, within a planting area min 6’ in width, required along 

70% of the length of any visible façade. 
 
Response: The proposed design has foundation plantings along the North wall, 
South wall, and East retaining wall, but not along the West wall or East wall of 
building.  The West wall is the building entrance with display windows and it is 
preferred to not have vegetation in front of the windows.  The East wall is the back 
of the building and the back sidewalk is elevated 4.5’ above grade.  Incorporating 
additional space for vegetation will increase the length of retaining walls and 
increase cost.  The proposed design has vegetation along the retaining walls but 
not along the East wall of the building.  See attached Landscape Plan. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
5.   Requirement: Do driveways into site utilize enhanced paving of stone, brick, or patterned 

concrete 
 
Response: The proposed driveways into the site are not off the public ROW, but 
rather connect to the existing retail center.  The driveways are proposed to be 
concrete, but not with enhanced paving or patterned concrete.  See attached Site 
Plan. 
 

6. Requirement: Parking spaces that face/adjacent to a building must utilize wheel stops; 
Wheel stops are required adjacent to all landscaped areas;  Wheel stops are required 
adjacent to all sidewalks, except for raised sidewalks at least 6 feet in width (8 feet if 
parking spaces front both sides) 

Response: The proposed design has no wheel stops, as they can be a trip hazard.  
Landscaping adjacent to parking spaces is proposed to be set back 18” from 
curb. Proposed sidewalk on West side of building is over 10’ wide and sidewalk 
on South side of building is 6’ wide.  See attached Site Plan and Landscape Plan. 
 

  
7.   Requirement: All ground mounted service equipment must be located at the rear of 

buildings (unless rear faces I-35), integrated into the building envelope, or enclosed 
service area. If visible, must have 100% opaque screening one foot higher than 
equipment being screened. 
 
Response: The electrical service is proposed to be wall-mounted on building and 
painted to match the building color, but not screened, similar to adjacent building. 
 
 

8.   Requirement: Building entrances must be articulated and defined to present a strong  
      entry presence. Must be inset or offset by min 6’.    

 
Response: The proposed building entrance is articulated and defined to present a 
strong entry presence, but not offset by 6’.  See attached Floor Plan and 
Elevations. 
 
 

9.   Requirement: All buildings must be designed and constructed in tri-partite architecture. 
 

Response: The proposed building has storefront, sign band above, and metal 
coping at top of wall parapet similar to the other buildings in the retail center.  See 
attached Elevations. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

10. Requirement: Windows must be a minimum of 40% up to a maximum of 80% or each 
building elevation. 

 
Response: The proposed building has storefront for 60% of the length of the West 
elevation, 20% of the length of the North and South elevations, and 0% of the 
length of the East elevation.  The proposed grading of the site begins to slope 
down once past the storefronts on the North and South elevations, and vegetation 
is desired in lieu of storefront.  Storefront on the East elevation does not work well 
for the future tenant Mattress Firm.  See attached Elevations. 
 
 

11. Requirement: Approved primary and accent building materials must be from the 
approved building materials list. Primary materials 70%-90% ; Accent 10%-30% 

 
Response: The proposed West elevation is 61% stucco and 39% stone, North & 
South elevations are 89% stucco and 11% stone, and the East elevation is 100% 
stucco.  See attached Elevations. 
 
 

12. Requirement: Max 80 lumens per net acre with full cut-off lighting 
 
Response: The response from the lighting consultant is that 80 lumens max. per 
net acre is an unrealistic requirement to safely light a retail site. 

  
        
      13. Requirement: Is there ornamental and decorative lighting where appropriate? 
 

Response: The light fixtures are similar to those throughout the retail center.  See 
attached light fixture cut sheets and Photometric Plan. 

 
 
      14. Requirement: The minimum sign setback from the property line is 10’.  
 

Response: Due to proposed 5’-6” width of the side landscape buffer, the sign is 1’ 
from the property line, though it is adjacent to a vacant lot that is small and will 
likely not be developed due to its size and configuration.  See attached Site Plan. 

 











1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

[PLANNING NO. O-Z-FY-14-04] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AN APPEAL OF CERTAIN I-35 CORRIDOR OVERLAY DISTRICT 
STANDARDS INCLUDING THOSE RELATED TO LANDSCAPING, WINDOW, 
ARCHITECTURAL AND LIGHTING STANDARDS PER SECTION 6.7 OF THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE TO BUILD A NEW 5,000 SQUARE FOOT 
FREE-STANDING BUILDING THAT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE REST OF THE 
BIRD CREEK CROSSING SHOPPING CENTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, this project is located in the I-35 Corridor Overlay District in the City Entry Sub-
District and the applicant is a new 5,000 square foot building which will house a new Mattress Firm 
commercial tenant on an approximate 0.789 acre retail pad site (lot 1, bock 2) within the Bird Creek 
Crossing Shopping Center; 

 
Whereas, in accordance with Article 6 of the Unified Development Code relating to the 

Interstate 35 Corridor Overlay, all new construction is required to conform to the standards of the I-35 
Overlay District;  

 
Whereas, on January 6, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved an appeal of 

standards of Section 6.7 of the Unified Development Code related to the I-35 Corridor Overlay 
District for landscaping, window, architectural and lighting standards to build a new 5,000 square foot 
free-standing building that is consistent with the rest of the Bird Creek Crossing Shopping Center; and 

  
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

approve this action. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves an appeal of standards to Section 6.7 of the Unified 
Development Code related to the following I-35 Corridor Overlay District requirements: 

 
a. Require wheel stops adjacent to all landscaped areas and to all sidewalks, 

except for raised sidewalks at least 6 feet in width (8 feet if parking 
spaces front both sides); 

b. Require foundation plantings required along 70% of the length of any 
visible façade in a bed – a minimum of 6’ deep; 

c. Require a landscape buffer area of 25’ to the front and 10’ on the sides; 
d. Require a minimum 2’ tall berm to be installed for minimum of 50% of 

the buffer area; 
e. Require a minimum of 5 gallon shrubs every 30” on center to soften 

appearance of walls; 



2 
 

f. Require a maximum of 80,000 lumens per acre; 
g. Require windows to be a minimum of 40% up to a maximum of 80% of 

each building elevation; 
h. Must select from a list of approved building materials (maximum 90% 

andminimum70%) stone, architectural metal, brick, stucco, granite, 
marble, painted tilt wall and accent materials (maximum 30% and 
minimum 10%) (UDC 6.7.9D.3.g) cast stone, wood, glass block, tile, 
granite, marble, textured or patterned concrete;  

i. Require a setback of 10’ from public right-of-way for signs; 
j. Require driveways into site to utilize enhanced paving of stone, brick or 

patterned concrete; 
k. Require entrance offset by a minimum of 4’; 
l. Require decorative lighting where appropriate; and 
m. Require all buildings to be designed and constructed in tri-partite 

architecture to express base, mid-section and top. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council approves the exceptions to the above standards that are 
detailed in Exhibit A to this Resolution.   

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 

passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 

  
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
  
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
01/16/14 
Item #15 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing support for the submittal of a tax 
credit project for family living projects by the following:  
 

(1) Blazer Development; and  
(2) Roundstone Development  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Blazer Development is proposing a mixed income, family living project with a 
capital investment of $15,000,000.  The project would include 150 apartment units located on a 12 
acre tract near the northwest corner of West Adams Avenue and Research Parkway, fronting 
Honeysuckle Drive and Research Parkway. The proposed project would include 12 units at 30% area 
median income (AMI), 48 units at 50% AMI, 60 units at 60% AMI, and 30 market rate units.  The 
apartment community would include multiple amenities including: pool with sundeck. Fitness center, 
library/business center, community room with kitchen, media/theater room, outdoor gardens, gazebo 
with grills, game room, limited access security gate, on-site storage, covered parking, and attached 
garages.  Resident supportive services will be offered on-site to include: monthly character building 
program (teen dating violence, drug prevention, internet dangers, etc), quarterly financial planning 
courses (homebuyer education, credit counseling, investing, etc), annual health fair, quarterly health 
and nutritional courses, and Notary Public services. 
 
Rental unit of breakdown of Blazer’s development is as follows:  
 
Unit type # of Units 
1 bedroom 65% or 97 units 
2 bedroom 35% or 53 units 
 
The second proposed tax credit project is by Roundstone Development, which completed a senior 
citizens living project, The Fairways at Sammons Park, in Temple in 2012.  The City Council passed a 
resolution of support for their TDHCA project application in 2010.  They now proposing a family living 
project named Cedar Creek Villas with a capital investment of $11,230,000.  The project would 
include 88 apartment units located on at 6758 West Adams Avenue.  100% of the units will be 
affordable housing units, and will be for those earning 30%, 50%, and 60% of the area median 
income (AMI).  The apartment community would include multiple amenities including a business  
 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #15 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
center, community kitchen, fitness center, playground, perimeter fencing, and swimming pool.  
Resident services will be offered on-site to include quarterly financial planning courses, annual health 
fair, quarterly health and nutritional courses, scholastic tutoring, notary public, twice monthly arts and 
crafts or recreational activities, and twice monthly on-site social events.  
 
Rental unit breakdown for Cedar Creek Villas is as follows:  
 
Unit type # of Units 
1bedroom/1 bath 34 
2/2 34 
3/2 14 
4/2.5 6 
 

Roundstone Development and Blazer Development have met the application requirements of the 
City.  Below is a summary of evaluation criteria for both projects: 
 

Evaluation Criteria Blazer Roundstone 
Senior/elderly developments No No 
Pay property taxes Yes Yes 
Development team experience Yes Yes 
Demonstra. cost & financial feasibility $15,000,000 $11,230,000 
Both tax credit & market rate units Yes No 
No city infrastructure required Yes Yes 
Favorable site conditions Yes, zoned for MF Yes, partially zoned MF 
Quality supportive services See description See description 
Consistency with Comprehensive 
plans, strategic plans 

Future Land Use – 
Suburban Commercial 

Future Land Use – 
Suburban Commercial 

Location where dev. is encouraged Unk – see site map Unk – see site map 
Minimum impact on existing tax credit 
developments & other workforce 
housing dev. 

Current tax credit units on 
ground are senior living, 
not family. Unknown re. 
workforce & Temple 
Housing Authority 

Current tax credit units on 
ground are senior living, 
not family. Unknown re. 
workforce & Temple 
Housing Authority 

Commitment & past experience in the 
community 

New to Temple. Extensive 
experience in general. 

Prior project in Temple. 
Extensive experience in 
general. 

Support from local agencies, etc This stage not started yet This stage not started yet 
Populations with special needs No No 
Repositioning of existing 
developments 

No No 

Impact on elimination of blight No No 
Quality of the units & project as a 
whole 

See attached project 
description 

See attached project 
description 

Level of investment psf ($ total/units) $100,000 per unit $127,614 per unit 
Other evaluation criteria n/a n/a 



 
 
 

 
 

01/16/14 
Item #15 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
In order for the applicant to receive full points with the TDHCA application, the City must provide 
financial support.  This has been traditionally accomplished through the Temple Economic 
Development Corporation with a secured loan.  Both applicants have been in contact with the TEDC, 
and TEDC is awaiting Council direction regarding support.  Terms of the loans are still under 
discussion. The applications require evidence of local support, particularly from elected officials. The 
resolution of the City of Temple is an indication of that support.  In addition, support from Senator 
Fraser and Representative Sheffield will be required to obtain the additional points. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: These family living projects would not a direct financial contribution from the City.  
If either or both projects are supported by Council, a fully secured loan would need to be provided by 
the TEDC.  Terms of the loans are still under discussion. TDHCA will only award one project per 
community. Total development cost by Roundstone will be approximately $11,230,000 with the land 
and improvements being subject to property taxes. Capital investment by Blazer will be approximately 
$15,000,000 with the land and improvements being subject to property taxes.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
General information – Blazer 
Project map and elevations – Blazer 
Resolution - Blazer 
General information - Roundstone 
Project map and elevations – Roundstone 
Resolution – Roundstone 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













RENTAL CRITERIA 
 
Fair Housing: It is our expressed policy not to discriminate against any person based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, familial 
status or handicap. 
 

Identification: Each applicant age 18 and over must have valid government issued picture identification and a social security card.  Non 
U.S. citizens must provide a passport or other picture I.D.  
 

Application Fee – An application fee is required for each person 18 or over in the form of certified funds. This is a non-refundable fee. 
 

Deposits – A deposit is required per apartment. All apartment deposit dispositions will be sent within 30 days of move out as required 
by the lease agreement. If a deposit refund is due, it will be sent with the disposition.  
 

Age – All applicants 18 years or older, must complete an application and pay an application fee, even if living with parent or guardian. All 
occupants 18 and older will be listed as lease holders and must sign lease and addenda. 
 

Occupancy Standard – A maximum of two persons per bedroom is allowed.  Children under six months of age are not considered in this 
calculation. 
 

Animals- Two pets per apartment are permitted at this time. The pets must not exceed our height restriction of 20 inches from the floor 
to the top of the pet’s shoulder. For the protection of our residents we do not allow aggressive breeds. Aggressive breeds include but are 
not limited to Pit Bulls, Rottweiler’s, Dobermans, German Shepherds, Chow-Chows, and Wolf dog Hybrids. Prohibited pets also 
include snakes, mice, arachnids, exotics, and anything poisonous.   
 

Credit – Failure to have established credit will not alone disqualify an applicant.  Unsatisfactory credit references and/or unpaid 
balances with utility companies or landlords may result in an additional deposit or disqualification of the household. Negative check 
writing or payment history may require all payments to be made in the form of certified funds. ALL QUESTIONABLE CREDIT HISTORY 
MUST BE DISCLOSED IN WRITING ON APPLICATION IN ORDER FOR AN APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND COMPLETE. 
 

Criminal – All applicants over the age of 18 are subject to criminal records verification and will be declined if they have been convicted, 
indicted or arraigned of a felony or are/were subject to deferred adjudication for a felony. DWI and theft by check may be considered 
depending on date of offense, other credit history and other criminal history. In addition any applicant over the age of 18 may be 
declined if they have been convicted of a serious misdemeanor including, but not limited to: theft, drug related charges, sex crimes, and 
any violent crime against a person. Violent misdemeanor crimes against a person, regardless of time lapsed, may be rejected. Please 
remember that this requirement does not constitute a guarantee that residents or occupants currently residing in our community have 
not been convicted of a felony or are not subject to deferred adjudication for a felony as our ability to verify this information is limited to 
the information made available to us by the resident credit reporting services used.  This community reserves the right to investigate 
lists of registered sex offenders in any manner including on-line, in newspapers, or by contacting state agencies. ANY AND ALL 
NEGATIVE CRIMINAL HISTORY MUST BE DISCLOSED IN WRITING ON APPLICATION IN ORDER FOR AN APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND 
COMPLETE.  
 

Rental History – To avoid an additional deposit, we require verifiable rental history.  All rental history must include satisfactory rental 
payment history, sufficient move-out notice and all lease terms fulfilled.  No evictions, landlord debt or negative rental history will be 
accepted within the last 12 months. Up to two negative landlord items including, but not limited to, landlord debt, broken leases and 
evictions may be accepted with an additional deposit (as long as they have not occurred within last 12 months.)  Rental history indicating 
failure to cooperate with applicable recertification procedures, violations of the lease and house rules, history of disruptive behavior or 
unfavorable housekeeping violations may result in denial of the application.  Rental history of terminated assistance under any subsidy 
program for fraudulent activity or evictions from a federally funded program for reasons involving drugs or drug related activity will 
result in denial of the application. No rental or mortgage history may require an additional deposit. ANY AND ALL NEGATIVE RENTAL 
HISTORY MUST BE DISCLOSED IN WRITING ON APPLICATION IN ORDER FOR AN APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND COMPLETE. 
 

In addition, please note that we participate in a program that is governed by section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code, therefore 
the income and student restrictions are closely monitored and require appropriate documentation.  We may require additional 
income verifications, affidavits and signed certifications in order to comply with the program. 
 

Income – Gross monthly income of household must be 2 times monthly resident paid portion of rental amount.  Households with zero 
annual income must have the equivalent of 2 times one year’s rent in accessible, verifiable, easily liquidated assets. All sources of earned 
and unearned income must be verified in writing.  Required verifications and forms must be provided to management within 3 days to 
reserve a specific apartment. In order to qualify for a rent restricted apartment you must meet the minimum rent requirements and not 
exceed the maximum income restrictions. More information on the maximum income restrictions are available at each property.   
 

Employment – Applicant must (1) be employed with current employer for at least 6 months; (2) have current job and at least 6 months 
employment with previous employer; or (3) have Social Security, retirement benefits, or other acceptable income that meet the 
properties income requirement.     
 

Special Needs Qualifications- Persons with special needs, as defined by HUD, include persons with disabilities, persons with HIV/AIDS, 
elderly persons, frail elderly persons, persons with alcohol and/ or drug addictions other than addictions caused by current illegal use of 
controlled substances, victims of domestic violence and public housing residents. 
 

Waiting List- Applicants are encouraged to request to be added on the waiting list when a desired or appropriate apartment is not 
available at the time of application. Applicants must complete and sign an application along with the rental criteria and pay the 
appropriate fees. Applicants are selected from the waiting list based on a first come-first served basis as qualified for the available 
apartment.  
 

Students – Households comprised entirely of full time students usually do NOT qualify.  Applicants must inform us if they have attended 
school full time in this calendar year. A full time student is defined as one who attends an educational institution full time for any part of 
5 months in a calendar year (the five calendar months need not be consecutive.) 



Brazos Senior Villas                         Dee TDHCA #11257
5801 Reading Road 80 units
Rosenberg, TX 77471 100% Tax Credit
281/232-0100 Office Senior Living
832/595-0303 Fax  
brazosseniors@blazerrealestate.com  
www.brazosseniorvillas.com Providence P lace  II                   Lisa Conventional

20400 Saums Road 78 Units
Campanile on Eldridge                       Lisa TDHCA# 09242 Katy, Texas 77449 78 Market Rate
13650 Beechnut Street 144 Units 281/647-6470 Office Senior Living
Houston, TX 77083 100% Tax Credit 281/647-6279 Fax Linda Barham
281.983.9100 Senior Living providenceplace@blazerrealestate.com
281.983.9103 Fax Natasha Perkins www.providenceplacewest.com
campanile@blazerrealestate.com
www.campanileoneldridge.com Providence Town Square             Dee TDHCA 10-094

3801 Center Street 188 Units
Deer Park, Texas 77536 87% Tax Credit

Churchill P lace Apartments            Lisa TDHCA# 01166 281/479-3555 Office Senior Living
1201 S. Broadway St 72 Units 281/479-3130 Fax Maria Turrubiartes
La Porte, Texas 77571 84% Tax Credit townsquare@blazerrealestate.com
281/471-0000 Office Senior Living www.providencetownsquare.com
281/471-0013 FAX Susan White
churchillplace@blazerrealestate.com Quail Ridge                                   Lisa TDHCA #060035

645 US Business Hwy 290 E 76 Units
Hempstead, Texas 77445 73 TC/3 MR

Glenwood Trails                                Dee TDHCA #07309 979/826-4800  Office Family
4305 Glenwood Avenue 114 Units 979/826-6306 Fax Linda Newman
Deer Park, Texas 77536 100% Tax Credit quailridge@blazerrealestate.com
281/479-8600 Office Family www.myquailridge.com
281/479/0680 Fax Laura Paredes
glenwoodtrails@blazerrealestate.com Timber Ridge                                 Lisa TDHCA # 01101

5350 Aeropark 192 Units
Houston, Texas 77032 60% Tax Credit

The Grand Parkway                          Lisa Conventional 281/372-0502 Office Family
22777 Franz Road 250 Units 281/372-0503 Fax Irene Gonzalez
Katy, Texas 77449 Market Rate timberridge@blazerrealestate.com
281/395-0555 Office Senior Living
281/395-0561 Fax Dee Holmes Timber Ridge II                              Lisa TDHCA # 03456
grandparkway@blazerrealestate.com 5335 Aldine Bender 124 Units 
www.grandparkwaykaty.com Houston, Texas 77032 100%TC/4% Bond

281/372-0502 Office Family
Justice Park Senior Villas                Lisa TDHCA# 12367 281/372-0503 Fax Irene Gonzalez
39 Justice Park Drive 144 Units timberridge@blazerrealestate.com
Houston, TX 77092 100% Tax Credit
Phone Senior Living
Fax 30%/50%/60% Town Square North                     Dee Conventional
Email Under Construction 3801 Center Street 76 Units
Website Deer Park, TX 77536 Market Rate

281.479.3555 Senior Living
Meadows P lace Senior Village         Lisa TDHCA #03245 281.479.3130 Fax Maria Turrubiartes
12221 S Kirkwood 182 Units townsquare@blazerrealestate.com  
Stafford, Texas 77477 80% Tax Credit  
281/240-1932 Office Senior Living
281/240-0519 Tracie Blakeburn Tranquility Bay                             Dee TDHCA # 04420
meadowsplace@blazerrealestate.com 2920 Oak Road 246 Units

Pearland, Texas 77584 100% TC
281/412-2262 Office 4% TC/Bond

Palms at Cinco Ranch                        Dee Conventional 281/412-2272 Fax Jela Henderson
23600 FM 1093 200 Units tranquilitybay@blazerrealestate.com
Richmond, TX 77406 Market Rate www.mytranquilitybay.com
281/392-0777 Office Family
281/392-0770 Fax Melinda Laramore Tranquility Townhomes              Dee Conventional
palms@blazerrealestate.com 7915 Fite Road 28 Units
www.palmsatcincoranch.com Pearland, Texas 77584 Market Rate

281/412-2262 Office Family
Park at Clear Creek                         Lisa TDHCA # 99177 281/412-2272 Fax Jela Henderson
111 Clear Creek Street 76 Units tranquilitybay@blazerrealestate.com
Hempstead, Texas 77445 100% Tax Credit
979/826-9002 Office Family
979/826-8359 Fax Linda Newman Villas at Willow  Springs               Dee TDHCA # 01003
parkatclearcreek@blazerrealestate.com 1506 South IH 35 220 Units
www.parkatclearcreek.com San Marcos, Texas 78666 61% Tax Credit

512/392-8452 Office Family
Park at Cliff Creek TDHCA # 95003 512/392-8470 Fax Estefany Vallejo 
7310 Marvin D Love Frwy 280 Units willowsprings@blazerrealestate.com
Dallas, Texas 75237 100% Tax Credit www.villasatwillowsprings.com
972/572-0000 Office Family
972-572-9977 Fax Yvonne Woodway Village                           Dee TDHCA # 02444

4600 Nuckols Crossing Road 160 Units
Park at Yellowstone TDHCA # 95120 Austin, Texas 78744 100%TC/4% Bond
3322 Yellowstone Blvd. 210 Units 512/442-1300 Office Family
Houston, Texas 77021 100% Tax Credit 512/447-6393 Fax Phoenix Whiteman
713/748-7275 Office Family woodwayvillage@blazerrealestate.com
713/748-6245 Fax Pat

P lum Creek Townhomes                    Lisa TDHCA # 99011 Woodway Square                          Dee TDHCA # 02461
6969 S. Loop E 152 Units 1700 Teri Road 240 Units
Houston, Texas 77087 75% Tax Credit Austin, Texas 78744 100%TC/4% Bond
713/242-0338 Office Family 512/693-9808 Office Family
713/242-0340 Fax Sylvia Duncan 512/693-9883 Fax Rocio Hunsberger
plumcreek@blazerrealestate.com woodwaysquare@blazerrealestate.com

Providence P lace                               Lisa TDHCA# 05209
20400 Saums Road 174 Units Windsor Gardens                        Dee TDHCA # 02151
Katy, Texas 77449 95% Tax Credit 1620 Spencer Highway 192 Units
281/647-6470 Office Senior Living South Houston, Texas 77587 79% Tax Credit
281/647-6279 Fax Linda Barham 713/944-1600 Office Family
providenceplace@blazerrealestate.com 713/944-1603 Fax Jessica Martinez
www.providenceplacekaty.com windsorgardens@blazerrealestate.com

www.mywindsorgardens.com
Blazer Real Estate Managed                  3408 Tax Credit 2479/MR 929
Third Party Managed                               490 Total Units 3898

BLAZER PROPERTY ROSTER                      12/1/2013

mailto:brazosseniors@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.brazosseniorvillas.com/
mailto:providenceplace@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.providenceplacewest.com/
mailto:campanile@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.campanileoneldridge.com/
mailto:townsquare@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.providencetownsquare.com/
mailto:churchillplace@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:quailridge@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.myquailridge.com/
mailto:glenwoodtrails@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:tranquilitybay@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:grandparkway@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.grandparkwaykaty.com/
mailto:tranquilitybay@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:townsquare@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:meadowsplace@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:tranquilitybay@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.mytranquilitybay.com/
mailto:palms@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.palmsatcincoranch.com/
mailto:tranquilitybay@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:kcanal@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.myquailridge.com/
mailto:willowsprings@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.villasatwillowsprings.com/
mailto:woodwayvillage@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:glenwoodtrails@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:woodwaysquare@blazerrealestate.com
mailto:providenceplace@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.providenceplacekaty.com/
mailto:windsorgardens@blazerrealestate.com
http://www.mywindsorgardens.com/












































 

Blazer	Residential,	Inc.	
Blazer	Building	Texas,	LLC	

Building Excellence Since 1978 



  
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 2 

 

Chris Richardson, President, founded Blazer in 1978 as a general 
contracting company focused on building high-quality multifamily 
communities and other commercial product. Since then, the Blazer 
family of companies has grown into a fully-integrated real estate 
services company handling all phases of a property’s life cycle.  

Development – Blazer Residential has built a strong record of 
success based around a strong belief in relationship driven business; 
whether it be with our investors, vendors or public partners. These 
relationships are the cornerstone of our operating strategy and foster 
an intense knowledge of the markets where we operate. From there, 
Blazer focuses on creating value for our partners at each phase of the 
development process; through site selection, entitlements, design 
and project capitalization. 

Blazer Residential has developed twenty-three (23) communities 
since the mid-1990s, including eighteen (18) Housing Tax Credit 
(HTC) properties and five (5) Market Rate properties. The 
communities developed include 3,600 apartment homes and have a 
combined value of over $240 million. Our communities are primarily 
located in the greater Houston area with apartment homes also 
available in Austin, Dallas and San Marcos. 

 
As market influences have required, Blazer has adapted its product delivery to include a mix of traditional-family 
and senior-oriented communities. As well, our consistently high-quality product has evolved from low-rise, garden-
style to a mid-rise design teamed with bungalows that mirror a traditional single-family living environment. 



  
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 3 

 

Construction – Since its founding in 1978, Blazer Building has provided general construction and construction 
administration services for developers and project owners across a variety of property types. Over its 30+ history, 
Blazer Building has overseen the construction of more than 30,000 apartment homes in twelve different states 
across the south, east coast and mid-west.  Blazer has also been directly involved in the construction of various 
commercial, educational and single-family projects.  
 
Blazer Building is made up of a highly experienced team of professionals with decades of construction industry 
experience.  The company executes all stages of the building process including the following services. 

Pre-Construction 
 Design Management 
 Agency Coordination 
 Budget Analysis 
 Cost Estimating 
 Value Engineering 
 Constructability Review 
 HUD & Tax Credit Preparation 
 Schedule Development 
 Construction Phasing 
 Building Information Modeling 
 Bid Package/Process 

Management 

Construction 
 Project Management 
 Site Logistics 
 Coordination of Subcontractors 
 Quality Control 
 Construction Supervision 
 Contract & Document 

Administration 
 HUD & Tax Credit 

Documentation 
 Cost & Schedule Control 
 Management Reporting 
 Building Information Modeling 
 Bid Package/Process 

Management 

Post-Construction 
 Inspections & Certificates of 

Occupancy 
 Commissioning 
 Warranty Service 



  
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 4 

 

Property & Asset Management – Blazer Real Estate Services provides comprehensive property management 
solutions for all types of multi-family communities including family, senior-oriented, Bond and Low Income Housing 
Tax Credit properties.  Blazer Real Estate Services designs and implements a sophisticated marketing and 
management strategy that ensures the successful operation of our communities. Blazer Real Estate Services 
currently manages nearly 3,900 units in 25 properties across the State of Texas. 

Blazer Real Estate Services recruits highly trained and qualified management professionals. The company 
supervises on-site teams, completes a thorough analysis of operations and financial performance, and manages 
maintenance and renovation services. Blazer Real Estate Services also develops financial controls and produces 
monthly financial reports for each property and the portfolio as a whole.  In addition, Blazer Real Estate Services 
provides training, education, software support, IT services, and administration support for Blazer communities. 

Blazer Real Estate Services provides the following solutions to array of property management needs for both 
Blazer-owned and third-party-owned properties. 

 Staff & Train Property Personnel  
 Drive Leasing Efforts 
 Tailored Marketing Strategies 
 Publish Leasing Activity Reports 
 Billing & Collections 
 Review of Payables 
 Cash Management 
 Safety Training & Site Inspection 

 Scheduled Maintenance Programs 
 Production of Financial Statements 
 Preparation of Annual Budgets 
 Furniture & Equipment Inventory 
 Insurance Claim Preparation 
 Federal, State and Local Compliance Reporting 
 LIHTC/Bond Compliance Reporting 
 



  
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 5 

 

Leadership 
Chris Richardson, President, moved to Houston and began a construction career in the fall of 1972 after 
graduating from Louisiana Tech University (Ruston, Louisiana). Mr. Richardson then founded Blazer in 1978. Under 
Mr. Richardson’s leadership, Blazer focuses on personalized attention, believing strongly in relationship based 
business with owners, investors, vendors and public partners. Further, Mr. Richardson has worked with many of our 
vendor partners for decades and has fine-tuned a list of firms who understand our commitment to quality and desire 
to provide residents a quality living environment. 

Mr. Richardson has built a team of experienced, knowledgeable and driven staff members with decades of 
experience. Following on his passion for the business, the Blazer team focuses relentlessly on delivering quality in 
all phase of development from pre-construction through completion and stabilization, employing forward thinking 
problem solving skills. 

Mr. Richardson and his wife, Anne, of 35 years raised three children in Houston and have become very aware of the 
importance of well-run community affairs in society.  Both devote countless hours to various not-for-profit and 
charitable organizations. 

Jim Wanja, Construction, has spent roughly half of his 33 year construction career with Blazer Building.  Mr. 
Wanja’s commercial and residential construction experience includes ground-up design and development as well as 
comprehensive rehabilitation programs.  Mr. Wanja has managed the construction of virtually all types of real estate 
including, garden and mid-rise multi-family, tract and custom single-family homes, and industrial and office 
properties.  

Under Mr. Wanja’s leadership, Blazer Building has implemented strict cost control procedures, forward-thinking 
construction management practices and successfully tackled a variety of complex design and build projects. Over 
the years, Mr. Wanja has built an extensive base of subcontractor relationships that share Blazer’s passion for 
delivering quality product consistently within budget.  
 



  
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 6 

 

Matt Fuqua, Development, has spent over 10 years with Blazer Residential building a diverse resume of 
construction and development industry experience.  Mr. Fuqua focuses on developing a pipeline of business both in-
house and third-party related work.  Matt researches and locates developable land tracts, negotiates purchase 
contracts and liaises between all involved parties.  Mr. Fuqua also assists in the coordination and preparation of tax 
credit applications, completing due diligence requirements and feasibility analysis. 

Matt also builds relationships with neighborhood and civic groups and municipalities to maintain a consistent level of 
support from those interested parties.  In addition, Mr. Fuqua works with architects and engineers to design Blazer’s 
communities and implements controls to manage the contract buyout, budget monitoring and construction 
processes. Since starting with Blazer, Mr. Fuqua has overseen the construction and development of more than 
3,000 apartment homes across the State of Texas. 

Kim Canal, Property Management, brings over 22 years of real estate and property management experience to the 
Blazer team.  Mrs. Canal has a broad background including management, construction, real estate development, 
accounting, operations, compliance and administration. Her experiences have also developed a niche expertise on 
multi-state Housing Tax Credit, Tax Exempt Bond and HOME program participation and compliance.  Mrs. Canal is a 
Licensed Real Estate Broker in the State of Texas and a Housing Credit Certified Professional. 

Nathan Kelley, Capital Markets & Asset Management, has built an established career as a real estate finance 
professional with commercial banking, underwriting/feasibility analysis and transaction structuring expertise. Prior 
to joining Blazer in 2012, Nathan held various roles within Regions Bank, most recently as Vice President of 
Commercial Real Estate. During his 10-year career in commercial banking, Mr. Kelley underwrote, structured and 
financed over $1 billion of real estate transactions including multifamily developments, retail shopping centers, 
industrial buildings, office buildings, REIT lines of credit, and equity subscription lines of credit. 



Completed Project Detail 
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 7 

 

Project Units Location Year Project Units Location Year 

River Oaks Place 144 Houston, TX 1979  The Chancellor 224 Houston, TX 1983 
Spring Meadows 304 Houston, TX 1979  Streamside Place 200 Houston, TX 1983 
Winterset 408 Houston, TX 1980  Chesapeake Village 120 Houston, TX 1983 
Westvale 124 Houston, TX 1980  Crossroads Place 442 Mesquite, TX 1983 
Northwest Park I 152 Houston, TX 1980  Northlake Apartments 124 Houston, TX 1984 
Cypress Run 64 Houston, TX 1980  Enclave at Pavillion 384 Houston, TX 1983 
Cherry Creek 276 Houston, TX 1980  Bayou Bend 96 Houston, TX 1983 
Northborough Station 300 Houston, TX 1980  Deerbrook Forest 208 Houston, TX 1983 
Klein Oaks I 174 Houston, TX 1981  Parque Del Oro 144 Houston, TX 1983 
Rushcreek Village 200 Houston, TX 1981  Pineloch Apartments 440 Clear Lake, TX 1983 
Rockwood Landing 208 Houston, TX 1981  Enclave at Arlington 348 Arlington,TX 1983 
Bent Tree I 216 Houston, TX 1981  Timberpark 160 The Woodlands, TX 1984 
Klein Oaks II 116 Houston, TX 1981  The Colonies 210 Dallas, TX 1983 
Northwest Park II 152 Houston, TX 1981  Ridgecrest 300 Ft. Worth, TX 1985 
Green Creek 144 Houston, TX 1981  Enclave at Bear Creek 308 Ft. Worth, TX 1985 
Oaks of Westchase 182 Houston, TX 1981  Green Oaks 272 Houston, TX 1985 
Stoney Creek Landing 212 Houston, TX 1982  Northgate Village 264 Houston, TX 1984 
Cranbrook Forest 264 Houston, TX 1982  Village Green 125 San Marcos, TX 1983 
Oaklane 222 Huntsville, TX 1982  Creekwood Landing 256 Victoria, TX 1984 
The Highlands 62 Houston, TX 1983  Mt. Vernon Apartments 384 Mt. Vernon, TX 1985 
The Oaks 264 Houston, TX 1983  Creekside 296 Dallas, TX 1985 
Northpark Apartments 144 Houston, TX 1983  Clarewood Apartments 142 San Marcos, TX 1986 
Cedar Bay 120 Houston, TX 1983  Cove at Lynn Lake 225 Raleigh, NC 1987 
Bent Tree II 252 Houston, TX 1983  Plantation at Northwoods Club 128 Houston, TX 1987 
South Green 268 Houston, TX 1983  Hartford Hills 398 Raleigh, NC 1987 
London Park 254 Houston, TX 1983  Brentridge Apartments 327 Nashville, TN 1987 
Willowbrook 260 Houston, TX 1983  Highland Green 171 Houston, TX 1987 
Hartford Park 324 Raleigh, NC 1983  Guion Road 324 Indianapolis, IN 1987 
Northborough Trails 194 Houston, TX 1985  Lincoln Park Center 236 Kettering, OH 1988 
Ivystone 124 Houston, TX 1984  Oaks of Eagle Creek I 312 Indianapolis, IN 1988 
The Summit 58 Huntsville, TX 1984  Park Forest 151 Atlanta, GA 1988 
Lakeview Apartments 304 LaMarque, TX 1984  Skipper Road East 256 Tampa, FL 1988 
Enclave at Cypress Park 384 Houston, TX 1983  Belmont Apartments 300 Fredricksburg, VA 1987 
St. James 10 Austin, TX 1983  Timber Hollow 368 Prince William, MD 1988 
Green Tree Apartments 137 Houston, TX 1985  Falls at Bells Ferry I 208 Atlanta, GA 1989 
Stoney Creek II 212 Houston, TX 1983  Sherwood Crossing 636 Baltimore, MD 1988 

 



Completed Project Detail 
 

Building Excellence Since 1978 

 

 
Page 8 

 

Project Units Location Year Project Units Location Year 

Henderson Place 264 Columbia, MD 1988  Parkwood Village Apts. 360 Webster, TX 2000 
Falls at Bells Ferry II & III 512 Atlanta, GA 1989  Westlake Residential Apts. 256 Pearland, TX 1997 
Oaks of Eagle Creek II 320 Indianapolis, IN 1990  Plum Creek Townhomes 152 Houston, TX 1997 
Rolling Brook 352 Houston, TX 1989  Park at Clear Creek 76 Hempstead, TX 2001 
Sugar Mill Creek 212 Tampa, FL 1989  Georgetown Place Apts. 176 Georgetown, TX 2001 
Beacon Ridge 144 Nashville, TN 1989  Villas at Costa Brava 250 San Antonio, TX 2001 
Live Oak Plantations I 400 Tampa, FL 1989  Villas at Willow Springs 220 San Marcos, TX 2001 
Hamilton Park 316 Blue Ash, OH 1989  Timber Ridge I 192 Houston, TX 2002 
Providence Place I 228 Atlanta, GA 1990  Windsor Gardens 192 South Houston, TX 2003 
Plantation at Baymeadows 400 Orlando, FL 1990  Woodway Village 160 Austin, TX 2003 
Union Station 346 Wilmington, DE 1990  Woodway Square 240 Austin, TX 2004 
Asbury Commons 204 Atlanta, GA 1990  Timber Ridge II 124 Houston, TX 2004 
Rivergate 316 Dallas, TX 1990  Tranquility Bay Apartments 246 Pearland, TX 2005 
Live Oak Plantations II 400 Tampa, FL 1990  Tranquility Bay Phase II 28 Pearland, TX 2005 
Bristol Bay 256 Sarasota, FL 1990  Providence Place Apartments 174 Katy, TX 2006 
The Summit 362 Raleigh, NC 1990  Quail Ridge Apartments 76 Hempstead, TX 2006 
Parkway Village 288 Webster, TX 1990  Providence Place II Apartments 78 Katy, TX 2007 
Ashton Meadow 178 Columbia MD 1991  Falls at Copper Lake Apartments 374 Houston, TX 2008 
Providence Place II 216 Atlanta, GA 1991  The Grand Parkway 250 Katy, TX 2009 
Live Oak Plantations III 98 Tampa, FL 1991  Glenwood Trails Apartments 114 Deer Park, TX 2010 
Sterling Place 300 Columbus, OH 1991  Campanile on Eldridge 144 Houston, TX 2011 
Ashton Woods 202 Columbia, MD 1991  Palms at Cinco Ranch 200 Richmond, TX 2011 
Waterloo Place 196 Baltimore, MD 1991  Purgatory Creek Apartments 266 San Marcos, TX 2011 
Palm Lake 304 Bradenton, FL 1992  Providence Town Square 188 Deer Park, TX 2012 
Regents Square Apartments 242 Atlanta, GA 1992  Providence Town Square Phase II 76 Deer Park, TX 2012 
Sabal Walk Apartments 164 Orlando, FL 1992  Brazos Senior Villas 80 Rosenberg, TX 2012 
Forest View Apartments 256 The Woodlands, TX 1992  Two Rivers Apartments 179 Georgetown, TX 2012 
Timbermill Apartments 216 The Woodlands, TX 1992  Independence Village 80 Port Lavaca, TX 2013 
Park @ Cliff Creek 280 Dallas, TX 1994  Campanile on Justice Park 144 Houston, TX 2013 
Park Yellowstone Townhomes 210 Houston, TX 1996    
HBU Campus Housing 76 Houston, TX 1996  
New Hope Housing-Phase III  40 Houston, TX 1997  TOTAL UNITS 30,380 
Schreiner College Housing 101 Kerrville, TX 1998  
Houston Baptist University Ph II 24 Houston, TX 1998  
Post Oak Park II 142 Houston, TX 1999  

 



Campanile at Justice Park 
39 Justice Park Drive, Houston TX 
144 Unit Active Senior Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 9 
 

 
    

Developer Nantucket Housing, LLC Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Tax Credit - Senior Completion Date November 2013 

General Contractor Blazer Building Texas, LLC. Property Manager Blazer Real Estate Services, Inc. 



Brazos Senior Villas 
5801 Reading Road, Richmond TX 
80 Unit Active Senior Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 10 
 

 

Developer Nantucket Housing, LLC Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Tax Credit - Senior Completion Date November 2012 

General Contractor Blazer Building Texas, LLC. Property Manager Blazer Real Estate Services, Inc. 
 



Providence Town Square 
3801 Center Street, Deer Park TX 
246 Unit Active Senior Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 11 
 

 
    

Developer Nantucket Housing, LLC Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Tax Credit - Senior Completion Date August 2012 

General Contractor Blazer Building, Inc. Property Manager Blazer Real Estate Services, Inc. 



The Grand Parkway 
22777 Franz Road, Katy, TX 
250 Unit Active Senior Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 12 
 

 
    

Developer Blazer Land, LLC Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Market Rate - Senior Completion Date January 2011 

General Contractor Blazer Building, Inc. Property Manager Blazer Real Estate Services, Inc. 



San Marcos Creek Apartments 
1951 Hunter Road, San Marcos, TX 
286 Unit Multi-Family Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 13 
 

 
    

Developer Larry Peel Company Architect Kelly Grossman Architects, LLC 

Product Type Market Rate – Family Completion Date January 2012 

General Contractor Blazer Building, Inc. Property Manager Larry Peel Company 
 



Palms at Cinco Ranch 
23600 FM 1093, Richmond, TX 
200 Unit Multi-Family Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 14 
 

 
    

Developer CRG Properties / Blazer Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Market Rate – Family Completion Date September 2011 

General Contractor Blazer Building, Inc. Property Manager Blazer Real Estate Services, Inc. 



Falls at Copper Lake 
9140 Highway 6 North, Houston, TX 
374 Unit Multi-Family Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 15 
 

 
    

Developer DeBartolo Development Architect Mucasey & Assoicates 

Product Type Market Rate – Family Completion Date January 2009 

General Contractor Blazer Building, Inc. Property Manager Greystar 



Faudree Ranch Apartments 
2741 Faudree Road, Odessa TX 
300 Unit Multi-family Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 16 
 

 

Developer Ascension Commercial Real Estate Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Market Rate – Multi-family Completion Date Est. May 2014 



Valencia Place Apartments 
3131 W. Bellfort, Houston TX 
246 Unit Multi-family Community Building Excellence Since 1978
 

 

Page 17 
 

 

Developer Bill Burney & John Hunt Architect Mucasey & Associates 

Product Type Market Rate – Multi-family Completion Date Est. May 2014 
 





















RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, SUPPORTING THE SUBMITTAL OF A TAX CREDIT PROJECT 
FOR A FAMILY LIVING PROJECT BY BLAZER DEVELOPMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 
 

Whereas, Blazer Development is requesting support for the submittal of a tax 
credit project for a family living project with a capital investment of approximately 
$15,000,000, and would include 150 apartment units located on an approximately 12 acre 
tract near the northwest corner of West Adams Avenue and Research Parkway, fronting 
Honeysuckle Drive and Research Parkway;  

 
Whereas, the project would include 12 units at 30% area median income (AMI), 

48 units at 50% AMI, 60 units at 60% AMI, and 30 market rate units – the apartment 
community would include multiple amenities such as a pool with sundeck, fitness center, 
library/business center, along with resident supportive services offered on-site; 
 

Whereas, Blazer Development has met the application requirements of the City, 
however, in order for the applicant to receive full points with the Texas Department of 
Housing & Community Affairs, the City must provide financial support and evidence of 
local support, particularly from elected officials; 

 
Whereas, traditionally the financial support has been accomplished through the 

Temple Economic Development Corporation with a secured loan and this Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Temple is an indication of local support from elected officials; 
and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  The City Council supports the submission of a tax credit project for a 
family living project by Blazer Development with a capital investment of approximately 
$15,000,000, and will include 150 apartment units located on an approximately 12 acre 
tract near the northwest corner of West Adams Avenue and Research Parkway, fronting 
Honeysuckle Drive and Research Parkway. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 

any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be needed for 
purposes of this tax credit project. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
         THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               

        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

  
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



Clifton E. Phillips, Director of Development
Robert Colvard, Acquisition Developer
Lisa Taylor, Development Analyst

Brian Rumsey, NCARB, Principal
Brett Flory, Project Manager
Wade Roper, Project Manager

Why Roundstone|KlewinWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion



The Team has Successfully Developed and Designed 9,911 Residential 
Units, multiple Retail, Hospitality and Shopping Centers

Integrated Team – Development and Architecture

Team Commitment to Utilizing Local Small and Minority Businesses

Recent Local Team Experience – We coordinated with city officials 
throughout all aspects of the development process of The Fairways at 
Sammons Park located in Temple, TX completed in 2012. 

Team Experience The Project The Schedule ConclusionWhy Roundstone



The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Sunchase American is a full service residential real estate 
management company. 
Founded in 1990, Sunchase reaches from North Carolina to 
Texas to Florida and offers the best service across the 
southeastern United States. 
Manages over 60 properties in seven states.

Why Roundstone Team Experience



Team ExperienceTeam ExperienceWhy Roundstone The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Roundstone Development
Experience List 



Team ExperienceTeam ExperienceWhy Roundstone The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Cross Architects
Multifamily Projects

 Cross has completed approximately 8,000 units across 
Texas, Mississippi, New Mexico, Florida, and 
Oklahoma 
• Experience with HUD and Tax Credit programs along with    
traditional market rate projects



Team Experience The Project The Schedule ConclusionThe Project The Schedule Conclusion

• 92 Units
• Common Amenities
• Clubhouse

The Fairways at Sammons Park – Temple, TX

Why Roundstone



Team Experience The Project The Schedule ConclusionThe Project The Schedule Conclusion

The Fairways at Sammons Park – Temple, TX

Why Roundstone



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

• 144 Units
• Common Amenities
• Clubhouse

Bella Vista – Gainesville, TX



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Bella Vista – Gainesville, TX



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Bella Vista – Gainesville, TX



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

• 120 Units
• Common Amenities
• Clubhouse

The Lodges at Pinellas Park – Pinellas Park, FL



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

The Lodges at Pinellas Park – Pinellas Park, FL



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Typical Business Center Aurrora Meadows – Eagle Pass, TX



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

• 250+ Unit
• Multi‐Phased 
Development

Village Square– Delray Beach, FL



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

18 months later  - Pinellas Park, FL



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

18 months later  - Pinellas Park, FL



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

6 years later – Plano TX



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

6 years later – Plano, TX



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

 Project Details  
• Project Name – Cedar Creek Villas 
• Located at approximately 6758 West Adams Avenue, 
Temple, TX

• Project is located in a growing area of town near the new 
Scott and White Continuing Care Hospital

• 100% affordable housing units 
• Development site has utilities available
• Minimal impact on existing tax credit developments as the 
closest property is 3 miles away and exclusive to seniors

• Minimal impact on nearby market rate communities as the 
nearly all of these properties are over 90% occupied 

The Roundstone Vision



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Development Site

• Area surrounding site is 
primarily vacant land, thus 
no blight

• There would be no 
repositioning of existing 
developments as the 
closest structures to the 
site are a children’s 
medical clinic and private 
school



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

 Building Details 
• 88 Residential Units

o 34 – 1 bed/1 bath 
o 34 – 2 bed/2 bath 
o 14 – 3 bed/2 bath
o 6 – 4 bed/2.5 bath 

• Two‐story garden style design

The Roundstone Vision

 Project Amenities       
• Perimeter fencing
• Business Center
• Community Kitchen
• Fitness Center
• Playground
• Swimming pool

 Unit Amenities       
• Energy Star Appliances
• Garden tubs
• Walk in Closets
• Coat and Linen Closets
• Full Size Washer Dryer Connections
• Patios
• Refrigerator with icemaker 



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

 Supportive Services

• Quarterly financial planning courses

• Annual health fair

• Quarterly health and nutritional courses

• Scholastic tutoring

• Notary Public Services

• Twice monthly arts and crafts or recreational activities

• Twice monthly on‐site social events

The Roundstone Vision



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Architectural Rendering for Proposed Developmental Style

The Roundstone Vision



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

1 Bedroom Sample Unit Plan (from a similar development) ‐ 750 SF

The Roundstone Vision



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

2 Bedroom Sample Unit Plan (from a similar development) ‐ 990 SF

The Roundstone Vision



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

3 Bedroom Sample Unit Plan (from a similar development) – 1,193 SF

The Roundstone Vision



The ProjectWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

4 Bedroom Sample Unit Plan (from a similar development) – 1,425 SF

The Roundstone Vision



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

The Roundstone Vision

 Project Costs and Financial Feasibility 
• The total development cost is approximately $11.23M 

which equates to $136 per square foot

• Permanent Financing Funding Sources: 
Equity Provider‐ $8,395,141
Conventional Loan ‐ $1,925,000
Local Gov. Contribution ‐ $858,000
Owner Equity‐ $60,546



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

The Roundstone Vision

 Conforms with Comprehensive , workforce 
development  and strategic plans
• Meets special housing needs and goals by providing 

affordable rental housing to young adults and families 
• Fulfills the need for housing  to low and moderate income 

families by providing units for those earning  30%, 50% 
and 60% below the area median income (AMI) 

• Reflects Context Sensitivity by including
architectural elements and a site layout  designed to
compliment surrounding neighborhoods(2 story design)

• Displays a sense of community by incorporating 
perimeter fencing around the development

• Incorporates “Green Building” features
• Sets aside 5% of the units for those with Special Needs



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

The Roundstone Vision

 Project will be built in a Green Building Fashion

• Planting native trees and other landscaping to reduce irrigation 
requirements

• Installing water‐conserving fixtures that meet the EPA’s WaterSense
Label

• Installing Energy‐Star qualified hot water heaters 

• Installing sub‐metered utility meters

• Utilizing healthy finish materials with the Green Seal 11 standard or 
other applicable Green Seal Standard

• Installing daylight sensor, motion sensors or timers on all exterior 
lighting 



Why Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

Local Participation Plan 
Community Outreach – Our Team will coordinate with the City of Temple, the 
Chamber of Commerce, and others. 
Advertising – Local newspaper, property Facebook page, & 
apartmentguide.com
Community Meetings ‐We will coordinate and sponsor a subcontractor 
informational meetings and employment opportunity meeting 
Local and S/M/WBE participation enhancement strategies

• Spilt bid packages into smaller groups thereby facilitating opportunities 
for smaller companies.

• Assist smaller contractors with pre‐qualification paperwork, project 
forms, billings and expedited payment terms.



The ScheduleWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion



The ScheduleWhy Roundstone Team Experience The Project The Schedule Conclusion

The Team has Successfully Developed Over 5,500 Units of 
Tax Credit Financed Housing 

Integrated Team – Development and Architecture

Value to the Community
• Approximately $59,000 per year in property taxes
• In addition to construction jobs, development will add 2.5 
new permanent jobs in property management 

• Ongoing property maintenance will benefit the community 
by outsourcing labor for landscaping, carpet cleaning, pool 
maintenance, pest control, etc. 



RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, SUPPORTING THE SUBMITTAL OF A TAX CREDIT PROJECT 
FOR A FAMILY LIVING PROJECT BY ROUNDSTONE DEVELOPMENT; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, Roundstone Development, which completed a senior citizens living 
project in the City of Temple in 2012, is requesting support for the submittal of a tax credit 
project for a family living project named Cedar Creek Villas, with a capital investment of 
approximately $11,230,000 and would include 88 apartment units located at 6758 West 
Adams Avenue; 

 
Whereas, the project would include 88 apartment units located at 6758 West 

Adams Avenue - 100% of the units will be affordable housing units and will be for those 
earning 30%, 50% and 60% of the area median income (AMI); 

 
Whereas, the family living project would include multiple amenities such as a 

business center, community kitchen, fitness center, along with on-site resident services; 
 
Whereas, Roundstone Development has met the application requirements of the 

City, however, in order for the applicant to receive full points with the Texas Department 
of Housing & Community Affairs, the City must provide financial support and evidence of 
local support, particularly from elected officials; 

 
Whereas, traditionally the financial support has been accomplished through the 

Temple Economic Development Corporation with a secured loan and this Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Temple is an indication of local support from elected officials; 
and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  The City Council supports the submission of a tax credit project for a 
family living project by Roundstone Development, named Cedar Creek Villas, with a 
capital investment of approximately $11,230,000 and which will include 88 apartment 
units located at 6758 West Adams Avenue. 

  
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 

any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be needed for 
purposes of this tax credit project. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 

 
         THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               

        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

  
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

01/16/14 
Item #16 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an approximately 
4.17 acre tract of land near the City of Temple’s landfill. 
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The 
City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of 
real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect 
on negotiations with a third party. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The approximately 4.17 acre tract of land at issue is located in close proximity to 
the City’s landfill. Acquisition of the property is necessary for future landfill expansion. The seller has 
proposed a purchase price which the City Staff feels is reasonable. We will provide additional 
information in executive session.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Taxable Certificate of Obligation Bonds were issued in November 2012 to fund 
costs related to the expansion of the landfill.  Funds are available in account 365-2300-540-6110, 
project 100197 for the purchase of this property. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF AN APPROXIMATELY 4.17 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 4435 LITTLE FLOCK ROAD, 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AND LOCATED NEAR THE CITY OF TEMPLE’S 
LANDFILL; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

  
 
 Whereas, an approximately 4.17 acre tract of land located at 4435 Little Flock Road, 
Temple, Texas is also located in close proximity to the City’s landfill, and the City is interested 
in acquiring the property for future landfill expansion; 
 
 Whereas, the seller has proposed a purchase price which City staff believes is reasonable 
and recommends the purchase of this tract of land;  
 

Whereas, Taxable Certificate of Obligation Bonds were issued in November 2012 to 
fund costs related to the expansion of the landfill; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of an approximately 4.17 acre tract of 
land located at 4435 Little Flock Road, Temple, Texas, which is located near the City of 
Temple’s landfill and is necessary for future landfill expansion. 
 
 Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for the purchase of this 
parcel, including all closing documents. 
 

Part 3:   It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

  PASSED AND APPROVED this the 16th day of January, 2014. 
 

        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
  

 
               

       DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	Copy of ROW Services Cost Projections CDB8 1-6-14.pdf
	Sheet1

	Z-FY-13-36 Attachments.pdf
	School Notification
	Nonresidential Dimensional Standards
	Use table
	Tmed Landscaping
	I35 Windows
	1st and 3rd Overlay District
	Parking rule

	Z-FY-13-36 Attachments.pdf
	School Notification
	Nonresidential Dimensional Standards
	Use table
	Tmed Landscaping
	I35 Windows
	1st and 3rd Overlay District
	Parking rule

	Z-FY-14-06 Attachments.pdf
	Surrounding properties
	Zoning and locations
	Site Plan
	Map_6_Buffer_1
	doc00369920140102141640
	doc00370620140102150926

	Z-FY-14-13 - Attachments.pdf
	C-101 30 scale
	Site Photos
	Zoning Location
	Mailout Map

	Z-FY-14-16 Attachments.pdf
	Site Photos
	Map_1_Location
	2   C01 General Site Plan 7.18.13
	3   C01.1 Landscape Plan 10.21.13
	8   A2 Exterior Elevations 10.17.13
	9   A3 Exterior Elevations 10.17.13
	Map_6_Buffer_1
	doc00571620140102091434_Page_1

	General information Blazer_attachment_reduced.pdf
	20131213154845872
	Hilliard Crossing MS - Multi Family Site
	Proposed Site Location for 150 unit development
	Rental Criteria
	Blazer Property Roster
	Sheet1

	pics multifamily properties_own_op.pdf
	1 Typical Unit
	2 Typical clubhouse community area
	3 Typical tuck under garage apt.townhome

	Pics multifamily properties_own_op2.pdf
	4 Typical pool and gazebo area
	5 Typical clubhouse exterior
	6 Typical exterior

	pics 3.pdf
	7 Typical landscape area
	8 Typical Business Center
	9 Typical Fitness Center





